
 

11 June 2012 Agenda 
Page 1 of 5 

 

 

 
AGENDA 

Henderson City Council Regular Meeting 
Monday, 11 June 2012, 6:00 p.m. 

R. G. (Chick) Young, Jr. Council Chambers, Municipal Building 
134 Rose Avenue 

Henderson, North Carolina 
     

Mayor and City Council Members 
Mayor James D. O’Geary, Presiding 
 
Councilmember James C. Kearney, Jr.  
Councilmember Sara M. Coffey 
Councilmember Michael C. Inscoe 
Councilmember D. Michael Rainey 

 
Councilmember Brenda G. Peace—Jenkins  
Councilmember Garry D. Daeke 
Councilmember Lonnie Davis, Jr. 
Councilmember George M. Daye 

 
City Officials 
A. Ray Griffin, Jr., City Manager 
John H. Zollicoffer, Jr., City Attorney 
Esther J. McCrackin, City Clerk 
 
I. CALL TO ORDER 
 
II. ROLL CALL 
 
III. INVOCATION AND PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
 
IV. OPENING REMARKS 

 
In order to provide for the highest standards of ethical behavior and Transparency in Governance 
as well as provide for good and open government, the City Council has approved Core Values 
regarding Ethical Behavior1 and Transparency in Governance2.  The Mayor now inquires as to 
whether any Council Member knows of any conflict of interest, or appearance of conflict, with 
respect to matters before the City Council.  If any Council Members knows of a conflict of 
interest, or appearance of conflict, please state so at this time. 
 

                                                 
1 Core Value 4:  Ethical Behavior:  We value the public trust and will perform our duties and 
responsibilities with the highest levels of integrity, honesty, trustworthiness and professionalism. 
 
2 Core Value 10:  Transparency in Governance:  We value transparency in the governance and 
operations of the City. 
 



 

11 June 2012 Agenda 
Page 2 of 5 

 

 
V. ADJUSTMENTS TO AND/OR APPROVAL OF THE AGENDA 
 
VI. APPROVAL OF MINUTES 

 
a) 14 May 2012 Regular Meeting [See Notebook Tab 1] 
b) 17 May 2012, Budget Work Session # 1 
c)   22 May 2012, Budget Work Session # 2 
d) 29 May 2012, Special Called meeting and Budget Work Session #3  

 
VII. PRESENTATIONS/RECOGNITIONS 

 
a) Boy Scout Troop #691 
 

VIII. PUBLIC HEARING 
 

a) Consideration of Approval of Ordinance 12-12, 1) Adoption of FY 12 Budget; 2) Amending 
Water, Sewer and Regional Water Rates; 3) Amending Sanitation Fees; and 4) FY 13 Fee 
Schedule. (CAF 12-A-62)  [See Notebook Tab 2] 

   
 Public Hearing 
 Ordinance 12-12 

 
 b)  Consideration of Approval of 1) Ordinance 12-A-06, An Ordinance Providing for the Zoning 

of Wind Turbines and 2) Ordinance 12-B-06, An Ordinance Providing for the Zoning of 
Solar Farms.  (CAF 12-A-09)  [See Notebook Tab 3] 

 
 Public Hearing 
 Ordinance 12-A-06 
 Ordinance 12-B-06 

 
IX. PUBLIC COMMENT PERIOD ON AGENDA ITEMS 

 
Citizens may only speak on Agenda items at this time.  Citizens wishing to address the Council 
must sign-in on a form provided by the City Clerk prior to the beginning of the meeting.  The 
sign-in form is located on the podium. When recognized by the Mayor, come forward to the 
podium, state your name, address and if you are a city resident, and identify the Agenda Item 
about which you wish to speak on the sign up sheet.  Please review the Citizen Comment 
Guidelines that are provided on the last page of this Agenda.3  
 

X. NEW BUSINESS 
 
 a) Consideration of Approval of Ordinance 12-26, FY11-12 Budget Amendment #51, Creating 

Fund 73: Economic Development Capital Reserve Fund and Resolution 12-46, An 
Authorizing Resolution by the Henderson City Council in Support of a NC Building 
Restoration and Reuse Grant Program for Economic Development Prospect 10-C.   (CAF 12-
46)  [See Notebook Tab 4] 

    
 Ordinance 12-26 
 Resolution 12-46 



 

11 June 2012 Agenda 
Page 3 of 5 

 

 
  b) Consideration of Approval of Ordinance 12-38, FY 12 Budget Amendment #48, to Provide 

Funds to Restock Parts for the Kerr Lake Regional Water Facility. (CAF 12-69)  [See 
Notebook Tab 5] 

 
 Ordinance 12-38 

  
 c) Consideration of Approval of Resolution 12-43, Approval of Official Results for Municipal 

Election Held 8 May 2012 and Action to Receive by Council and File with the City Clerk.  
(CAF 12-64) [See Notebook Tab 6]   

 
 Resolution 12-43 

 
 d) Consideration of Approval of Resolution 12-14, Authorizing Submission of the FY12 BJA 

Bulletproof Vest Grant Application for the Police Department.  (CAF 12-67)  [See Notebook 
Tab 7] 

 
 Resolution 12-14 

 
 e) Consideration of Approval of Resolution 12-36, A Resolution Ratifying and Approving an 

Application to the US Department of Justice for a BJA-2012 Grant for Henderson 
Community Revitalization Initiative (CRI) Enhancement Grant. (CAF 12-72)  [See Notebook 
Tab 15 – Please note this Tab number is out of sequence] 

 
 Resolution 12-36 

 
X. CONSENT AGENDA 

 
All matters listed under the Consent Agenda have either been previously discussed by City 
Council during a previous meeting and/or are considered in the ordinary course of business by 
the City Council and will be enacted-on by one motion and a roll call vote in the form listed.  If 
discussion is desired by either the Council or the Audience, the item in question will be removed 
from the Consent Agenda and considered separately after the revised consent agenda has been 
approved.  
 

 a) Consideration of Approval of Ordinance 12-13, FY 12 Budget Amendment #47, to Close Out 
the 2010 Weed & Seed Grant 2010-WS-QX-0108. (CAF 12-16) [See Notebook Tab 8]   

 
 Ordinance 12-13 

 
  b) Consideration of Approval of Ordinance 12-39, Authorizing FY 12 Budget Amendment #49, 

to Budget a Reimbursement from Vance County for the City’s Participation in a Disaster 
Preparedness Training Exercise Sponsored by FEMA.  (CAF 12-70)  [See Notebook Tab 9] 

  
 Ordinance 12-39 



 

11 June 2012 Agenda 
Page 4 of 5 

 

  c) Consideration of Approval of Resolution 12-27, Authorizing the Closeout of the 2007 HOPE 
VI Grant Number NC19URD27536M07 and Ordinance 12-30, FY12 Budget Amendment 
#40, Close Out the Revenue and Expense Accounts for this Grant. (CAF 12-11)  [See 
Notebook Tab 10] 

 
 Resolution 12-27 
 Ordinance 12-30 

 
 d) Consideration of Approval of Tax Releases and Refunds from Vance County for the Months 

of July 2011 through January 2012.  (CAF 12-68) [See Notebook Tab 11] 
 
 e) Consideration of Approval of Resolution 12-45, Issuing Sewer Credit for Outside Watering 

of Lawns, Plants and Vegetation from 1 June 2012 through 31 October 2012. (CAF 12-65). 
[See Notebook Tab 12] 

 
 Resolution 12-45 

 
  f)  Consideration of Approval of Ordinance 12-40, FY 12 Budget Amendment #50, Amending 

the 2010 BJA JAG Grant Fund Providing the Necessary Funds to Cover the Expense of Four 
(4) Mobile Data Terminal Computers and Docking Stations. (CAF 12-71)  [See Notebook 
Tab 13] 

 
 Ordinance 12-40 

 
PUBLIC COMMENT PERIOD ON NON-AGENDA ITEMS 

 
Citizens may speak on non-Agenda items only at this time.  Citizens wishing to address the 
Council must sign-in on a form provided by the City Clerk prior to the beginning of the meeting.  
The sign-in form is located on the podium. When recognized by the Mayor, come forward to the 
podium, state your name, address and if you are a city resident.  Please review the Citizen Comment 
Guidelines that are provided on the last page of this Agenda.3 

                                                 
3 Citizen Comment Guidelines 
The Mayor and City Council welcome and encourage citizens to attend City Council meetings and to offer comments on matters of concern 
to them.  Citizens are requested to review the following public comment guidelines prior to addressing the City Council. 
1)  Citizens are requested to limit their comments to five minutes; however, the Mayor, at his discretion, may limit comments to three 
minutes should there appear to be a large number of people wishing to address the Council;  
2)  Comments should be presented in a civil manner and be non-personal in nature, fact-based and issue oriented.  Except for the public 
hearing comment period, citizens must speak for themselves during the public comment periods;  
3)  Citizens may not yield their time to another person;  
4) Topics requiring further investigation will be referred to the appropriate city official, Council Committee or agency and may, if in order, 
be scheduled for a future meeting agenda;  
5)  Individual personnel issues are confidential by law and will not be discussed.  Complaints relative to specific individuals are to be 
directed to the City Manager;  
6)  Comments involving matters related to an on-going police investigative matter and/or the court system will not be permitted; and  
7)  Citizens should not expect specific Council action, deliberation and/or comment on subject matter brought up during the public 
comment section unless and until it has been scheduled as a business item on a future meeting agenda. 
 



 

11 June 2012 Agenda 
Page 5 of 5 

 

XI. REPORTS 
a) Mayor/Mayor Pro-Tem 
b) City Manager  
c) City Attorney 
d) City Clerk 

i. Calendar Notes and Schedule Update [See Notebook Tab 14] 
ii. Various Departmental Reports  

 Henderson Fire Department 
 Henderson-Vance County 911 
 Code Compliance 

 
XII. ADJOURNMENT 



 

 
Minute Book 42 

14 May 2012 Regular Meeting Minutes  
Page 1 of 8 

City Council Minutes--DRAFT 
Regular Meeting 

14 May 2012 

 
PRESENT 
 
Mayor Pro Tem Lonnie Davis, Jr., Presiding; and Council Members James C. Kearney, Sr., Sara 
M. Coffey, Michael C. Inscoe, D. Michael Rainey, Brenda G. Peace-Jenkins, Garry D. Daeke, 
Lonnie Davis, Jr., and George M. Daye. 
 
ABSENT 
 
Mayor James D. O’Geary 
 
STAFF PRESENT 
 
City Manager Ray Griffin, City Attorney John Zollicoffer, City Clerk Esther J. McCrackin, 
Assistant City Manager Frank Frazier, Finance Director Katherine C. Brafford, Planning 
Director Erris Dunston, Henderson Water Reclamation Facility Director Tom Spain, Recreation 
and Parks Director Alan Gill, Fire Chief Danny Wilkerson, Engineering Director Peter Sokalski, 
Code Compliance Director Corey Williams, Human Resources Director Cathy Brown and the 
Police Chief Keith Sidwell along with various members of the Police Force. 
 
CALL TO ORDER    
   
The 14 May 2012 Regular Meeting of the Henderson City Council was called to order by Mayor 
Pro Tem Lonnie Davis, Jr., at 6:00 p.m. in the R. G. “Chick” Young, Jr. Council Chambers, 
Municipal Building, and 134 Rose Avenue, Henderson, NC. 
 
ROLL CALL 
 
The City Clerk called the roll and advised a quorum was present.   
 
INVOCATION AND PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
 
Council Member Peace-Jenkins led those in attendance in the Lord’s Prayer and the Pledge of 
Allegiance.   
 
Mayor Pro Tem Davis stated it was a pleasure to see so many in the audience and said concern 
about the affairs of the municipality were important.  He congratulated Council Members on 
being re-elected and also congratulated Mr. Vernon Brown on being elected to represent Ward 4.  
Mr. Davis said it’s easy to sit on sidelines but indicated this Council has done a good job. 



 

 
Minute Book 42 

14 May 2012 Regular Meeting Minutes  
Page 2 of 8 

ADJUSTMENTS TO/APPROVAL OF AGENDA 
 
Mayor Pro Tem Davis asked if there were any adjustments to the Agenda as presented.  City 
Clerk McCrackin said two issues will be added to the Closed Session (a total of three issues will 
be discussed).  Mr. Davis asked if there would be any comment following the meeting and City 
Attorney Zollicoffer said possibly.  Council Member Peace-Jenkins moved to accept the 
amended Agenda.  Motion seconded by Council Member Rainey and unanimously approved. 
 
APPROVAL OF MINUTES 
 
Mayor Pro Tem Davis asked for any corrections to and/or approval of the minutes. Council 
Member Coffey moved the approval of the following minutes:  23 April 12 Short Regular 
meeting and 24 April 12 Special Called Meeting.  Motion seconded by Council Member Daye 
and unanimously approved. 
 
PRESENTATIONS/RECOGNITIONS 
 
Mayor Pro-Tem Davis asked Chairman Pro-Tem Rainey to present a Proclamation to Police 
Chief Sidwell for Peace Officers’ Memorial Day and National Police Week.  Mr. Rainey read the 
proclamation which Chief Sidwell accepted.  Chief Sidwell then asked each officer to introduce 
himself and to state which Ward they work.  City Hall will fly all flags at half-mast on May 15th 
to honor Peace Officers’ Memorial Day. 
 
PUBLIC COMMENT PERIOD ON AGENDA ITEMS 
 
The City Clerk advised the Mayor and Council Members that no citizen wished to address 
Council regarding agenda matters.   
 
(Clerk’s Note:  Council Member Daeke arrived at 6:11 p.m.) 
 
NEW BUSINESS 
 
Supporting the Amended Changes to the Andrews Avenue Crossing, Including Acquiring 
Properties Along Andrews Avenue between the Intersection of Garnett Street and 
Chestnut Street, and Requesting an Urban Design Exit Ramp onto Garnett Street be 
Incorporated in the Proposed Amendment.  (Reference:  CAF 12-63; Resolution 12-42) 
 
City Manager Griffin asked Planning Director Erris Dunston to introduce the North Carolina 
Department of Transportation (DOT) representatives.  Ms. Dunston introduced Mr. Wally 
Bowman, division engineer with the DOT and his team.  Mr. Bowman distributed two maps 
showing Council the incomplete, preliminary plans for erecting a retaining wall on Andrews 
Avenue between Garnett and Chestnut streets.  These revised plans call for acquiring properties 
along Andrews Avenue.  The revised plan also showed reasons to deny Council’s request for an 
urban design exit ramp onto Garnett Street.  The purpose of the plans is to be prepared for the 
High Speed Rail project which is being considered. 
 
City Attorney Zollicoffer asked if Andrews Avenue would be four lanes to handle the increased 
traffic flow since it is a major corridor.  Council Member Rainey asked for clarification about 
what the State planned for Andrews between Pinkston Street and Garnett. 



 

 
Minute Book 42 

14 May 2012 Regular Meeting Minutes  
Page 3 of 8 

 
The DOT spokesperson said the plan proposes three lanes from Rowland to Chestnut to alleviate 
traffic backups by incorporating a turn lane.  They emphasized the importance of establishing a 
plan now by saying other communities that had plans in place have already received funding.   
 
Council Member Coffey asked about the parking on Hamilton Street and expressed concern 
about the street being too narrow when discussion turned to using Hamilton Street as an option 
for traveling North/South through the City.   Mr. Bowman said that was certainly a concern to be 
reviewed. 
 
Discussion then turned to the urban ramp.  Mr. Hamel, the rail planning engineer for the DOT 
cited several reasons the ramp would be unacceptable.  The ramp would make the Andrews 
Avenue/Chestnut street intersection too congested with very limited space to determine the 
desired path of travel --- he felt the ramp would set the intersection up for multiple vehicle 
accidents.  He also stated having only one ramp (i.e., only an on-ramp and not an off-ramp) 
would be unacceptable to the State and Federal authorities.   
 
During the discussion, the DOT showed a map with a roundabout intersection at North Chestnut, 
North Garnett and Beckford Drive, that they propose to alleviate traffic flow problems.  They 
stated if accepted, it would be built to accommodate two lanes of traffic in the future but would 
not be painted for two lanes until drivers had experienced many years of one lane traffic in the 
roundabout. 
 
Mr. Hamel said no property/right-of-ways would be purchased until the High Speed Rail project 
was approved and he said at this time, Henderson is still being considered as one of the few, 
passenger rail station stops. 
  
With no further questions Mr. Bowman confirmed that Council endorsed the plan for the 
amended changes to Andrews Avenue including acquiring properties along Andrews Avenue 
between Garnett and Chestnut streets and were willing to reject the request for an urban design 
exit ramp.   
 
Mayor Pro Tem Davis then asked for the pleasure of Council 
 
Council Member Rainey moved the amended approval of Resolution 12-42, by removing the 
request for an urban designed exit ramp off Andrews Avenue going southeast on to Garnett 
Street.  The amended Resolution 12-42 now  
reads, Supporting the Amended Changes to the Andrews Avenue Crossing, Including Acquiring 
Properties Along Andrews Avenue between the Intersection of Garnett Street and Chestnut 
Street.  Motion seconded by Council Member Peace-Jenkins and APPROVED by the following 
vote:  YES: Kearney, Coffey, Inscoe, Rainey, Peace-Jenkins, Daeke, and Daye NO: None.  
ABSTAIN:  None.  ABSENT: None.  (See Resolution Book 2, p.333)   
 
Authorizing the Vance County Tourism Development the Right to Issue Peddler’s or 
Vendor’s Permits During Special Tourism Sponsored Events.  (Reference: CAF 12-45; 
Ordinance 12-26) 
 
City Manager Griffin stated the Vance County Tourism Development Authority has requested 
Council’s authorization to issue peddler or vendor permits during Tourism sponsored events.  



 

 
Minute Book 42 

14 May 2012 Regular Meeting Minutes  
Page 4 of 8 

Mr. Griffin said Nancy Wilson, Director of the Vance County Tourism Development Authority 
and Mr. Bill Edwards, former Director of the Chamber of Commerce were both present to 
answer any questions regarding this request.  He then asked City Attorney Zollicoffer to explain 
the ordinance. 
 
City Attorney Zollicoffer said the ordinance allows the Tourism Authority to issue permits 
during any Tourism sponsored event located in downtown Henderson and approved by the 
Henderson City Council relative to all peddlers or vendors operating on the streets within a one 
block radius of the event boundaries.   
 
Council Member Rainey asked if this would include events such as Meet in the Street and 
Council Member Inscoe asked about the where the revenue goes.    City Attorney said the 
revenue would go to the Tourism Authority.  City Manager Griffin said if the City issued the 
permits, the funds would go into the general funds. 
 
Mr. Edwards told Council that Chamber events such as Meet in the Street occurs with sponsor 
support only and the vendors are restricted to the sponsors.  Ms. Wilson said the Tourism 
Authority follows proper channels and obtains a permit from the City for their events.  She said 
their events require all vendors/peddlers to produce certificates of insurance and health 
inspections.  If an attendee were injured or became ill from a non-permitted vendor/peddler,   the 
attendee might look to the City/Tourism Authority for compensation.  
 
Council Member Rainey asked if the one block radius was enough.  Ms. Wilson said yes.  
Council Member Coffey felt this would be good to maintain health control and Council Member 
Daeke asked who would control non-permitted individuals.  Ms. Wilson said Henderson Police. 
 
City Manager Griffin explained that when a petition is received at City Hall for an event, the 
request is forwarded to the public safety department heads (i.e., police, fire, etc.) and if there are 
problems, the City works with the application so their event can occur, if at all possible, in a safe 
manner. 
 
City Attorney Zollicoffer asked if the ordinance should be re-drafted to include Chamber events.  
It was decided to not only include the Chamber but also the Downtown Development 
Commission. 
 
With those changes, Mayor Pro Tem Davis asked for Council’s pleasure. 

 
Council Member Coffey moved the approval of Ordinance 12-26, Authorizing the Vance County 
Tourism Development the Right to Issue Peddler’s or Vendor’s Permits During Special Tourism 
Sponsored Events with the addition of the Chamber of Commerce and the Downtown 
Development Commission.  Motion seconded by Council Member Rainey and APPROVED by 
the following vote:  YES:  Coffey, Inscoe, Rainey, Peace-Jenkins, Daeke, Daye and Kearney.  
NO:  None.  ABSTAIN:  None.  ABSENT: None.  (See Ordinance Book 8, p. 403)   
 
2012-2014 Strategic Plan.   (Reference:  CAF 12-29; Resolution 12-41) 
 
City Manager Griffin reminded Council that the Strategic Plan was reviewed during the Retreat 
in January and asked City Clerk McCrackin to brief Council on the Changes.  Ms. McCrackin 



 

 
Minute Book 42 

14 May 2012 Regular Meeting Minutes  
Page 5 of 8 

said there were very few changes and pointed out the changes as they were outlined in the 
agenda packet. 
 
There was no discussion.  Mayor Pro Tem Davis asked for Council’s pleasure. 
 
Council Member Kearney moved the approval of Resolution 12-41, 2012-2014 Strategic Plan.  
Motion seconded by Council Member Coffey and APPROVED by the following vote:  YES: 
Inscoe, Rainey, Peace-Jenkins, Daeke, Daye, Kearney and Coffey. NO: None: ABSTAIN: None. 
ABSENT: None.   (See Resolution Book 2, p 331) 
  
Establishing Date of Organizational Meeting to Seat New Council.   (Reference:  CAF 12-61; 
Resolution 12-39) 
 
City Manager Griffin reminded Council that during the 28 March 2011 meeting the date for 
seating of new council members was stated as July in the CAF.  However, the resolution did not 
state a date and this Resolution officially establishes the seating of the new Council as 9 July 
2012.  Mr. Griffin stated this is in accordance with G.S. §160A-23.1(d) which states the Council 
may be seated any time after the results of the election but no later than the first regular meeting 
in December.  Because of the delayed election, this timing differs from regular election statutes. 
 
Council Member Kearney mentioned this shortens the term.  Mr. Griffin said yes.  Because of 
implementing the staggered terms there was a long term for existing Council Members and the 
seating in July establishes a short term until the next election in November 2013. 
 
There was no discussion.  Mayor Pro Tem Davis asked for Council’s pleasure. 
 
Council Member Inscoe moved the approval of Resolution 12-39, Establishing Date of 
Organizational Meeting to Seat New Council.  Motion seconded by Council Member Peace-
Jenkins and APPROVED by the following vote:  YES: Rainey, Peace-Jenkins, Daeke, Daye, 
Kearney, Coffey and Inscoe.  NO: None:  ABSTAIN: None. ABSENT: None.   (See Resolution 
Book 2, p 327) 
 
(Clerk’s Note:  Council Member Rainey left the meeting at 7:10 p.m. and returned at 7:12 p.m.  
Council Member Peace-Jenkins left the meeting at 7:15 p.m. and returned at 7:18 p.m.) 
 
CDBG Infrastructure Hook-Up Grant.   (Reference:  CM 12-07) 
 
Mr. Griffin said that based on the responses received regarding the CDBG program regarding the 
infrastructure hook-up grant, the Kerr-Tar Regional Council of Governments is recommending 
no further efforts be put into this grant application. 
 
(Clerk’s Note:  Council Member Inscoe asked to abstain from voting.) 
 
There were no comments made.  Although this was a CM (Council Memo) it was the consensus 
of Council to vote on this grant application so Mayor Pro Tem Davis asked for Council’s 
pleasure. 
 



 

 
Minute Book 42 

14 May 2012 Regular Meeting Minutes  
Page 6 of 8 

Council Member Peace-Jenkins moved to withdraw this grant request.  Motion seconded by 
Council Member Daye and APPROVED by the following vote:  YES:  Peace-Jenkins, Daeke, 
Daye, Kearney, Coffey, Inscoe and Rainey.  NO:  None.  ABSTAIN:  Inscoe.  ABSENT:  None. 
 
PUBLIC COMMENT PERIOD ON NON-AGENDA ITEMS 
 
City Clerk McCrackin advised no citizen signed-in to address Council. 
 
WORK SESSION 
 
Accepting the State Revolving Fund Grant/Loan for Future Funding Relative to 
Improvements at the Sandy Creek Pump Station of the Sanitary Sewer Collection System; 
and 2) Approving an Engineering Contract with McGill Associates to Prepare a 
Preliminary Engineering Report; and 3) Approval of Ordinance 12-37, FY 12 Budget 
Amendment #46, Amending the CIP Sewer Fund Relative to the Preliminary Engineering 
Report for the Sandy Creek Pump Station Improvements Project.  (Reference:  CAF 12-A-
36; Resolution 12-A-18 and Ordinance 12-37) 
 
City Manager Griffin asked both Assistant City Manager Frazier and Henderson Water 
Reclamation Facility Director Tom Spain to address Council on this matter.  Mr. Frazier stated 
the City has received notification from the Infrastructure Finance Section (IFS) that the City’s 
application was found eligible to receive a low interest CWSRF loan for the Sandy Creek Pump 
Station Improvement Project.  The loan offers $900,000 in the form of principal forgiveness with 
the balance ($900,000) offered at the prevailing CWSRF interest rate at the time of approval by 
the Local Government Commission (LGC) which is expected to be approximately 2.445%.  Due 
to the timing required to proceed with this project, the next deadline is 2 July 2012. 
 
It was the consensus of Council to bring this item back to the 11 June 2012 meeting. 
 
Due to a misunderstanding, Council agreed to allow Ms. Henrietta Clark to address Council at 
this time. 
 
 Ms. Henrietta Clark, 620 Witherspoon Street.  Ms. Clark had several concerns 
regarding traffic on Pearl Street.  She felt it was being used as a speedway and with trees 
overhanging the street, vision is limited.  She urged the City to take preventive measures so 
children would not be injured.  She also expressed concern regarding the overgrown lot behind 
her deceased sister’s home. 
 
The City Manager said he would look into her concerns and staff spent additional time with her 
outside Council chambers. 
 
Presentation of FY 12-13 Budget 
 
City Manager Griffin distributed the FY 12-13 budget work book to Council and staff, and gave 
a brief PowerPoint presentation.  He highlighted key fund issues and reviewed items impacting 
the budget. Mr. Griffin said in order to balance the budget in these difficult times, tax increases 
were inevitable and said he looked forward to working with Council during the Work Sessions in 
establishing a budget for FY 12-13.  He thanked the staff for their conservative budget requests 
and also thanked Council for their dedication in reviewing the budget materials. 



 

 
Minute Book 42 

14 May 2012 Regular Meeting Minutes  
Page 7 of 8 

 
Council Member Rainey mentioned the countless hours he has seen Mr. Griffin put in to put the 
budget work sheets together.  Council Member Inscoe inquired about the Drug Forfeiture dollars 
and Council Member Coffey inquired about the possibility of selling the old water meters for 
scrap. 
 
Mr. Griffin thanked Mr. Rainey for his kind words.  He said asset forfeiture dollars are being 
received and that the old water meters will be sold for scrap metal.  He said a sale of the meters, 
along with other obsolete equipment is planned for July or August and that the monies gained 
will be allocated to the associated fund. 
 
REPORTS 
 

a) Mayor/Mayor Pro-Tem/Chairman Pro-Tem - Chairman Pro-Tem Rainey represented the 
City at the Girls on the Run event last Saturday.  He stated it was a great event with over 
220 runners. 

b) City Manager  (No Report) 
c) City Attorney (No Report) 
d) City Clerk   (No Report)  
 
Council Member Coffey sponsored a basketball team at the Aycock Center.  Her team took 
first place and she wanted everyone to know how proud she is of that team. 
 
Council Member Inscoe represented the City at Kerr Lake Nursing Home for Nursing Home 
Week.  He said the nursing home has a week of events planned for the residents and staff. 

 
With no further discussion, Mayor Pro-Tem Davis asked if Council was prepared to go into 
Closed Session and stated there possibly could be a report following the session. 
 
CLOSED SESSION 
 
Council Member Rainey moved for Council to convene in closed session pursuant to G.S. §143-
318.11(a)(3) for an Attorney-Client Privilege Matter. Motion seconded by Council Member 
Coffey and unanimously approved.  
 
Council Member Coffey moved for Council to convene in open session.  Motion seconded by 
Council Member Daeke and unanimously approved.   
 
City Attorney Zollicoffer stated an ordinance exempting franchises and certain non-profits from 
payment of right-of-way permit fees was discussed during the Closed Session.  This ordinance 
allows for the waiver of fees for any non-profit organization providing utility services to schools, 
libraries, hospitals or other non-profit entities and also for governmental issued franchises except 
for the following:  1) Excavation Permit Fees set forth in Section 16A-11(a); 2) Construction 
permit fees set forth in Section 1A-11(b); and 3) annual right-of-way cost recover fees as set 
forth in Section 16A-11(c), (d) and (e). 
 
Mayor Pro Tem Davis asked for the pleasure of Council. 



 

 
Minute Book 42 

14 May 2012 Regular Meeting Minutes  
Page 8 of 8 

Council Member Peace-Jenkins moved the approval of Ordinance 12-09, An Ordinance 
Exempting Franchises and Certain Non-Profits From Payment of Right-Of-Way Permit Fees. 
Motion seconded by Council Member Coffey and APPROVED by the following vote:  YES:  
Daeke, Daye, Kearney, Coffey, Inscoe, Rainey and Peace-Jenkins.  NO: None.  ABSTAIN:  
None.  ABSENT:  None. 
 
ADJOURNMENT 
 
Council Member Rainey moved for adjournment.  Motion seconded by Council Member Daeke 
and unanimously approved.  The meeting adjourned at 9:42 p.m. 
 
 
 
 
____________________________ 
Lonnie Davis, Jr. 
Mayor  Pro Tem     ATTEST: 
 
 
      _____________________________ 
      Esther J. McCrackin 
      City Clerk 



 

 
Minute Book 42 

17 May 2012 Budget Work Session #1 Minutes  
Page 1 of 6 

 
 
 

City Council Minutes 
Henderson City Council Budget Work Session #1 

17 May 2012 

 
PRESENT 
 
Mayor James D. O’Geary, Presiding; and Council Members Sara M. Coffey, Michael C. Inscoe, 
D. Michael Rainey, Brenda G. Peace—Jenkins, Garry D. Daeke, and George M. Daye. 
 
Council Member Elect Vernon Brown. 
 
ABSENT 
 
Council Member James C. Kearney, Sr. and Lonnie Davis, Jr. 
 
STAFF PRESENT 
 
City Manager Ray Griffin, Assistant City Manager, Frank Frazier, City Clerk Esther J. 
McCrackin, Finance Director Katherine Brafford, Kerr Lake Regional Water Plant Manager 
Christy Lipscomb and Fiscal Compliance Officer Edna Vaught. 
 
CALL TO ORDER    
   
The 17 May 2012 Henderson City Council Budget Work Session #1 was called to order by 
Mayor James D. O’Geary at 6:06 p.m. in the R. G. “Chick” Young, Jr. Council Chambers, 
Municipal Building, 134 Rose Avenue, Henderson, NC. 

            
ROLL CALL 
 
The City Clerk called the roll and advised Mayor O’Geary a quorum was present.   
 
OPENING REMARKS 
 
Mayor O’Geary welcomed everyone.  He regretted both Council Members Davis and Kearney 
were unable to attend this evening.   
 



 

 
Minute Book 42 

17 May 2012 Budget Work Session #1 Minutes  
Page 2 of 6 

Review of and Discussion About the Global Budgetary Situation 
 
Mayor O’Geary asked City Manager Griffin to begin this discussion.   
 
City Manager Griffin began by distributing and reviewing a Core Services color-coded chart that 
showed how all but three divisions with the City fall under the General Fund.  
 
Kerr Lake Regional Water (KLRW) - Mr. Griffin then introduced KLRW Plant Manager 
Christy Lipscomb and Fiscal Compliance Director Edna Vaught and turned Council’s attention 
to the Utilities section of the budget Work Book.  He referenced several charts in the workbook 
and reminded Council that the only revenue for utilities comes from user fees.  He mentioned 
KLRW is co-owned by the City of Henderson (COH), Warren County and the City of Oxford.  
Mr. Griffin said the anticipated plant expansion and operational needs such as chemicals and 
electricity are the driving forces for the proposed increase. The debt service shown in the budget 
is the full amount; however, Oxford and Warren County are responsible for 20% respectively.  
Mr. Griffin said a 1% KLRW rate increase correlates to a 1% on the City rate. 
   
Council Member Daeke asked what 1% would yield.  Mr. Griffin said approximately $38,000. 
No other questions were asked at this time. 
 
Water Fund – City Manager Griffin said he started with KLRW because that influences the 
Water Fund.  He said the collection rate has improved over the last year and credited this mainly 
to the work of the Customer Service personnel in the Water Department and the establishment of 
the security deposit policy.  Prior to requiring a security deposit, approximately 450-550 
customers were on the cut-off list.  With the security deposit there was a significant drop.  He 
said there are about 300-350 customer per month that are not in compliance with bill paying and 
that there are approximately 8,800 total customers in the system.  Mr. Griffin said the proposed 
budget is built on a 7% increase this year with reductions in the coming years.   
 
Council Member Inscoe asked for a full accounting of the costs for chemicals and electricity at 
KLRW.  Council Member Daeke wondered if the reduction in fees earlier this year should have 
taken place and Mr. Griffin said the reduction certainly made a difference.  Council Member 
Coffey asked for a monthly percentage of customers on the cut-off list and whether the list 
contains the same customers.  Mr. Griffin said he would research this request.  Council Member 
Rainey asked if these are all active customers on the cut-off list.  Mr. Griffin said yes. This 
information will be provided at the next meeting.  Mr. Griffin added it is illegal for individuals to 
reside in a dwelling without utilities and that the Code Compliance department is now getting 
more involved in follow-up of situations involving lack of utilities.  He went on to say arrears are 
slowly decreasing thus reducing the City’s expose to losses.  Council Member Daeke asked for 
more information regarding the fee structure changes made earlier and what amount the City lost 
with the reduction in those fees. 
 
It was stated that Franklin County has no plans to increase their water rate; however; the 
information received from Warren County is that they are looking at a 5% increase on water and 



 

 
Minute Book 42 

17 May 2012 Budget Work Session #1 Minutes  
Page 3 of 6 

0% increase on sewer. Information from Oxford will be provided when received – hopefully, the 
next meeting. Currently the outside rates for water in Henderson are competitive with the 
County.  
 
Mr. Griffin added that payment #2 from Granville County is included in the Rate Stabilization 
budget figures.  
 
Sewer Fund - The discussion then turned to the Sewer Fund.  Again, Mr. Griffin directed 
Council to specific pages in the budget book which showed the need for the 9% increase in 
sewer rates.  It is anticipated that the sewer rates will decrease after the renovation of the sewer 
plant.  Specifics for the proposed increase are the renovation of the sewer plant at a cost of $16M 
with $1,000,000 in principal forgiveness; the sanitary sewer improvements at $1M with 
$500,000 in principal forgiveness and the upgrade at Sandy Creek Basin pump station at $1.8M 
with $900,000 in principal forgiveness.  Mr. Griffin said due to variables such as business 
growth, the anticipated rate reductions could change.   
 
Debt Service - Mr. Griffin moved on to Debt Service which is always a huge item.  He said 
Finance Director Brafford recalculated the debt service through 2015-2016 which is important 
due to the refinancing of the 2001 bonds.  The only items added to debt service other than those 
already mentioned are one new backhoe into the Water Fund, a dump truck and a tractor into the 
Sewer Fund.  However, Mr. Griffin stated there were requests for lease purchases from Regional 
Water and General Fund departments, which were not considered in this proposed budget. 
 
Mr. Griffin directed Council to the chart on page 177 of the Work Book which showed the legal 
debt margin since 2004.  There has been a decrease in the overall debt which is a good indicator 
of the status of the City.  It is anticipated the debt will be less than 2% in 2015 due to the pay 
down on the Aycock and Police buildings.  Then it will increase with the improvements at both 
the Sewer plant and KRLW plant. 
 
The total debt by type shows the largest areas are associated with water and sewer.  The auditors 
and State law require this type of disclosure and they pay particular attention to the general debt 
because the general debt is normally supported by tax rates.   
 
Powell Bill - This brought the discussion to the Powell Bill which is the City’s share of the 
gasoline tax received by the State.  Powell Bill dollars are distributed by the total amount 
collected throughout the State, the population of the municipality and the number of City 
maintained lane miles.  Since Henderson has lost population, the amount of dollars received from 
the Powell Bill has decreased significantly since 2008 (see page 106 of the Budget Work Book).   
 
(Clerk’s Note:  Council Member Rainey left the room at 6:55 p.m. and returned at 6:59 p.m.) 
 
Council Member Coffey asked if there were specific uses for the Powell Bill dollars.  Mr. Griffin 
said yes --- streets and sidewalks can be improved with Powell Bill dollars; however, other needs 
such as streetlights cannot use Powell Bill dollars.  Council Member Daeke asked about the cost 



 

 
Minute Book 42 

17 May 2012 Budget Work Session #1 Minutes  
Page 4 of 6 

of asphalt.  Assistant City Manager Frazier said it fluxuates with oil prices and most contractors 
will not include a price in their proposal for more than thirty (30) days. 
 
General Fund - The General Fund summary discussion came next with Mr. Griffin saying there 
are three (3) primary sources to cover the majority of the Core Services.  These sources are: 1) 
property taxes; 2) sales tax; and 3) sanitation fees. 
 
Council Member Coffey asked if the collection rate fluxuates.  Mr. Griffin responded yes and 
went on to say Vescom and the hospital will help stabilize the rate.  Council Member Rainey 
asked if the dollars shown reflected both Vescom and the hospital.  Mr. Griffin said yes; 
however, the personal tax for the hospital has yet to be verified.  Mr. Rainey asked how 
comfortable Mr. Griffin felt with the collection rate of 95%.  Mr. Griffin responded the 95% is a 
goal.  Mr. Rainey asked staff to find out what percentage the County has set for a goal.  
 
Before continuing on, Mr. Griffin asked if there were any questions. 
 
Council Member Inscoe thanked Mr. Griffin and the staff for compiling the detailed Work Book.  
He went on to ask for the thoughts of other Council Members  stating he was not in favor of a 
property tax increase and Council could either send a request through the City Manager to find 
ways to decrease the budget without a tax increase or Council could review the budget line item 
by line item.  He felt Henderson had been hit hard by the recession well before 2008 and felt the 
elderly, retirees and small businesses were hurting too much to absorb the proposed increases.  
Mr. Inscoe asked Mr. Frazier to confirm the proposed water increase with the suggestions made 
by the engineers working on the water plant upgrade.  He suggested reducing the dollars for 
water meter replacement by $25,000 to help balance the budget. 
 
Council Member Rainey agreed that he would like to see no tax increases and asked that the 
Manager attempt to keep the budget as close as possible to the current year. 
 
Council Member Coffey said she has mixed feelings.  Council Member Peace-Jenkins felt 
everything should be done to lower the increases and Council Member Daeke said the budget 
document was well done and showed the Manager’s experience and expertise but he agreed with 
Mr. Inscoe and Rainey that taxes should not be raised.  He also said the sanitation fee might 
require an increase.   
 
Council Member Daye spoke to his first-hand knowledge about having to pay late fees and could 
not help but to sympathize with citizens on fixed income who would find tax increases difficult 
to meet.   
 
Council Member Coffey felt the water meter purchases would be a start toward reducing the tax 
increases and felt the sale of old water meters as scrap metal would also contribute toward the 
reduction. 



 

 
Minute Book 42 

17 May 2012 Budget Work Session #1 Minutes  
Page 5 of 6 

Mr. Griffin responded as far as the water collection rate, there are definite needs for recurring 
revenue sources and the revenue lost from the reduction in the utility fees made a difference.  He 
said the meter replacement project is important as many old, existing meters are not working.  
The new meters provide for actual usage rather than an estimate which ultimately provides for 
more efficiency and more accurate collection rates.  Mr. Griffin said this is an important priority 
for the next year. 
 
Council Member Inscoe called for a polling of Council Members to request staff to find cuts to 
eliminate the tax increase and to preserve as much of the fund balance as possible.   
 
Mayor O’Geary asked Council for their pleasure. 
 
Council Members Coffey, Inscoe, Rainey, Peace-Jenkins, Daeke and Daye were all in agreement 
with the request to staff to find cuts to eliminate the tax increase and preserve the fund balance as 
much as possible.  Council discussed reducing the Fund Balance allocation by $41,000. 
 
Council Member Rainey mentioned the increase for Waste Industries and asked if the City is 
actually saving dollars by using this company.  Mr. Griffin said yes; the City saved over 
$500,000 in fleet replacement and the customer satisfaction rate exhibits the good service 
provided by Waste Industries.  Mr. Rainey felt figures such as this should be made public as 
many citizens only see one side --- the cost to them and they do not know about the cost-savings 
over the years. 
 
Council Member Peace-Jenkins asked if the REEF Project was included in the budget.  Mr. 
Griffin said no.  It was cut in an effort to balance the budget and he understood this cut to be 
unpopular. 
 
Council Member Inscoe said the only way to not raise taxes and still get what Council sees as 
important is to look for grants.    Council Member Coffey agreed saying Code Enforcement is 
asked to enforce but then they are not given the “teeth” to finish their job.  Mr. Inscoe suggested 
staff use the $25,000 reduction of meter purchases as a starting point. 
 
Mr. Griffin asked for clarification regarding the sewer rate increase and it was decided to leave 
that discussion for another night. 
 
Council Member Daeke again asked for more information regarding the dollars lost when the 
utility fees were lowered thinking the reinstating of these fees might help reduce the budget.  
Council Member Rainey said the fees are not guaranteed and would probably not contribute 
much to the overall budget. 
 
Mr. Griffin asked if the Budget Work Session Scheduled for Monday, 21 May could be 
cancelled to allow time for staff to work on Council requests. 



 

 
Minute Book 42 

17 May 2012 Budget Work Session #1 Minutes  
Page 6 of 6 

The Mayor polled Council members and it was the consensus of Council to cancel the Monday 
night meeting and to reconvene on Tuesday, 22 May to continue discussion. Those in favor of 
cancelling the meeting on 21 May (Monday) were:  Coffey, Inscoe, Rainey, Peace-Jenkins, 
Daeke and Daye. 
 
Mayor O’Geary asked if there was anything else Council wished to discuss.  There were no 
questions so Mayor O’Geary asked if Council wished to adjourn. 
 
Guidance for Staff: 
 
To summarize the discussion, Council would like see 0% property tax and a reduction of 1% 
respectively in the Water Fund, Sewer Fund and Regional Water Fund. 
 

Council would like: 
 
a) Specific chemical and electricity costs for KLRW 
b) Percent of repeat customers on cut off list 
c) Dollars lost when utility fees were reduced 
d) Revenue lost re: Powell Bill 
e) County goal for collecting taxes 
f) Collection rate for County greater than City 
g) Water rate increase compared to suggested rate increase by engineers 
h) Savings recognized by using Water Industries 
 
 

ADJOURNMENT 
 
Council Member Rainey moved for adjournment.  Motion seconded by Council Member Coffey 
and unanimously approved.  The meeting adjourned at 7:47 p.m. 
 
 
 
____________________________ 
James D. O’Geary 
Mayor 
 
 
      ATTEST: 
 
 
      _____________________________ 
      Esther J. McCrackin 
      City Clerk 
  



 

 
Minute Book 42 

22 May 2012 Budget Work Session #2 Minutes  
Page 1 of 8 

 
 
 

City Council Minutes 
Henderson City Council Budget Work Session #2 

22 May 2012 

 
PRESENT 
 
Mayor James D. O’Geary, Presiding; and Council Members James C. Kearney, Sr., Sara M. 
Coffey, Michael C. Inscoe, D. Michael Rainey, Brenda G. Peace—Jenkins, Garry D. Daeke, 
Lonnie Davis, Jr. and George M. Daye. 
 
Council Member Elect Vernon Brown. 
 
ABSENT 
 
None. 
 
STAFF PRESENT 
 
City Manager Ray Griffin, Assistant City Manager, Frank Frazier, City Clerk Esther J. 
McCrackin, and Finance Director Katherine Brafford 
 
CALL TO ORDER    
   
The 22 May 2012 Henderson City Council Budget Work Session #2 was called to order by 
Mayor James D. O’Geary at 6:05 p.m. in the R. G. “Chick” Young, Jr. Council Chambers, 
Municipal Building, 134 Rose Avenue, Henderson, NC. 

            
ROLL CALL 
 
The City Clerk called the roll and advised Mayor O’Geary a quorum was present.   
 
OPENING REMARKS 
 
Mayor O’Geary greeted everyone and then asked City Manager Griffin to present the budget 
discussion items. 
 



 

 
Minute Book 42 

22 May 2012 Budget Work Session #2 Minutes  
Page 2 of 8 

Car Park Issues: 
 
1.  Kerr Lake Regional Water Plant (KLRW) Electrical Costs- City Manager Griffin said 
KLRW Director Christy Lipscomb has worked closely with Progress Energy over the past few 
years to reduce energy costs.  The recommended budget for utilities is $408,000 which is slightly 
less than FY11. By working with Progress Energy, there has been a meaningful decrease in 
utility costs. The proposed chemical costs are approximately $40,000 above the current year 
budget.  The departmental request was 7% more than this and was requested due to the volatile 
costs of chemicals, particularly caustic chemicals which are projected to increase 33%. 
 
Council Member Rainey asked if bids are taken for the necessary chemicals.  Mr. Griffin 
responded yes.  He said chemicals are tailored to water types and Assistant City Manager Frank 
Frazier added motor fuel costs also influence the cost of chemicals.  
 
2.  Utility Cut Off List - The next issue was the utility cut off list and Mr. Griffin said the City 
averages 350 customers per month.  This figure is calculated on the first billing cycle and 
showed the highest number of people on the list since implementing the new policies. 
 
Council Member Kearney saw this as a good thing as it limits the City’s exposure and provides 
better cash flow.   
 
3.  Reconnection Fee - Mr. Griffin said the FY11 data for loss of revenue relative to the 
reduction of the for reconnection fees is approximately $158,000.  There was a brief discussion 
regarding the policy which Mr. Griffin summarized by saying the problem is now a structural 
deficit so there needs to be a way to find revenue to fill the gap. He suggested increasing the fee 
from $13 to $27 to close the revenue gap.  This would equate to a 0.65% decrease in the 
recommended Water Rate and 1% decrease in the recommended Sewer Rate. 
 
4.  Powell Bill Reserves - A question was raised at the first budget meeting regarding the Powell 
Bill fund reserves.  Mr. Griffin reminded Council that the City receives Powell Bill dollars based 
on city population, City street lane miles and gasoline tax receipts.  Since Henderson has lost 
population, along with decreases in the other two areas, Powell Bill funds have decreased which 
means less street work dollars.  Mr. Griffin said the only recent increase in street miles was the 
eight-tenths of a mile with the completion of Carey Chapel.  He gave the example that Powell 
Bills funds can be used for street work, crossing lights but not for street lights. 
 
5.  Tax Collections - The tax collection rate for the County is basically equal to the collection 
rate for the City.  Mr. Griffin said Ms. Porcia Brooks has worked hard on collections and she is 
currently averaging about 93-95% collections.  He told Council that there was no response from 
the County as far as its goal for collections in FY12-13.   
 
Council Member Rainey asked for information regarding how far back the County is carrying 
arrears and what the total dollars in arrears amounts to, along with what the time frame is for 
collecting arrears.  He also asked who initiates liens on property.  Mr. Griffin said the City can 
request the County to place a lien on a property and continued by saying Code Compliance 



 

 
Minute Book 42 

22 May 2012 Budget Work Session #2 Minutes  
Page 3 of 8 

Director Corey Williams has been working closely with Ms. Brooks so liens are being placed 
before foreclosure proceeding start.  He said this year, for the first time in a very long time, the 
City received lien dollars.  Mayor O’Geary said this is a good start. 
 
(Clerk’s Note:  Council Member Davis left the meeting at 6:38 p.m. and returned at 6:52 p.m.) 
 
6.  Proposed Rate Increases - Mr. Griffin said he spoke to Mr. Dennie Martin from McGill 
Associates regarding the suggested rate increases they propose for Water.  For the current year 
they suggested 3% and Council approved 2.2% 
 
Council Member Kearney asked for an explanation of how the KLRW rate correlates with the 
Water rate.  Mr. Griffin clarified that as the KLRW rate increases the City’s cost for purchasing 
potable water.  The only way to recover the increased costs is via the water rate.   
 
Mr. Griffin went on to say McGill suggested a 6% increase in Sewer rates through 2015 and then 
dropping the rate to 5%.  He said 5% was budgeted for the current year and Council approved 
2.5%.  It is anticipated that once the plant renovations are completed the Sewer rates will be 
reduced due to an easier, more modernized, efficient plant and a reduction in personnel – perhaps 
in 2017. 
 
Council Member Inscoe said there is needed pain now to realize the gain after the plant is 
complete.  He also said that since the current rate was approved at 2.5% the City is already 
behind the curve by 2.5% and if the suggested increase is not approved this year, the City will be 
further behind next year.  Mr. Griffin said a delay would certainly make the improvements more 
costly. 
 
Mr. Griffin said McGill suggested a 3% increase through 2015 for water and 2% after.  For the 
current year 5% was recommendation and Council approved 4%.  He has asked McGill to update 
the CIP plan due to Granville County’s water agreement.  He also said it did not look like Vance 
County would make any impact on the budget for FY 12-13. 
 
7. Waste Industries - The savings by using Waste Industries comes mainly from avoiding 
purchase of large equipment.  The fleet was 12-17 years old when the City contracted with 
Waste Industries and the cost to replace each of three (3) trucks would have been $180,000 each 
and one new truck per year thereafter, in order to keep the fleet in a working reliable condition.  
Then there would be routine replacement beside maintenance, personnel, etc.  The cost per roll-
out barrel is $44.55, and the City has approximately 6,300 customers.  That calculates to over 
$325,000. 
 
Council Member Kearney asked what percentage responded to the survey regarding service 
received.  Mr. Griffin said 10-12%.  Mr. Kearney asked what the City pays Waste Industries per 
customer.  Assistant City Manager said $6.51 per household per month.   
 
Mr. Griffin said he would prepare a cost of comprehensive sanitation services provided by the 
City and what falls in that category for the next budget meeting.  Council Member Rainey asked 



 

 
Minute Book 42 

22 May 2012 Budget Work Session #2 Minutes  
Page 4 of 8 

if recycling would have any impact.  Mr. Griffin said higher participation equates with more 
pickups and the need for more carts. 
 
8.  Proposed Increased by Other Counties/Cities - A request was made to know the percentage 
Warren County, Oxford and Franklin County was proposing for their budgets.  Council learned 
that Warren County’s proposal was 0% for sewer and 5% for water; Oxford was proposing 4% 
for water and 0% for sewer; and Franklin County was proposing 0% for water and sewer.  
Council Member Inscoe shared that Oxford has a new waste water plant and the rates increased 
17% for the current year. 
 
Mr. Griffin told Council that Planning Director Erris Dunston recently talked with the State Main 
Street Program staff and was told that in municipalities greater than 5,000, there must be a full-
time staff person dedicated to this program.  Since 2006-07 the City has had a part-time staff 
member.  Ms. Dunston will be continuing talks with the Program staff but the City may need to 
reinstate that position which is currently vacant.  Mr. Griffin has spoken to the DDC (Downtown 
Development Commission) regarding the possibility of contracting with them for the necessary 
staff person.   
 
Mr. Griffin said although no dollars are associated with this Program, participation helps the City 
obtain grants/funds.  Council Member Kearney asked if there was a more effective/cheaper way 
to provide for the position and Council Member Daeke asked how effective the DDC would be 
in overseeing the position.  Council Member Rainey asked what tax amount was generated from 
the Hope VI Phase I project.  Mr. Griffin will check with the tax collector for the tax value 
before and after the project was completed.  
 
Review of Proposed Revenue and Expenditure Reductions 
 
Regional Water Fund: 
 
 Mr. Griffin recommended reducing the Regional Water rate by 1% by taking from two capital 
items – contingency and removing the 2% cost of living increase which allows for an Automatic 
reduction of 1% in the water rate.  This will allow for a 1% rate reduction in the Water Fund. 
 
Water Fund:  
 
Mr. Griffin said he is recommending a combination of things; reducing 1% in the Regional 
Water rate which is allowable and Council felt a reduction of $25,000 in the purchase of radio 
read water meters was appropriate.  This would permit another 1% decrease.  If the disconnect 
service fee was increased from $13 to $27 that would provide for an effective 0.65% rate 
reduction and 1% reduction in the Sewer Fund because revenues are split 70% between the 
Sewer Fund and 30% in the Water Fund.   The combined effect of this recommendation is a 
2.65% rate reduction; or a 4.35% increase vs the recommended 7% increase. 
 
Council Member Inscoe asked when the grant/loan for the new water meters would be 
announced.  Assistant City Manager Frazier said a response is anticipated by the end of June.  



 

 
Minute Book 42 

22 May 2012 Budget Work Session #2 Minutes  
Page 5 of 8 

Mr. Inscoe suggested that the purchase of meters be decreased by $50,000 in order to provide for 
a 2% decrease in the rate. He further suggested if the grant/loan application is rejected Council 
has the option to reconsider the rate increase for full funding of the water meters during the fiscal 
year.  
 
Council Member Inscoe then asked if the major equipment purchases could be delayed six 
months.  Mr. Griffin said if the purchase is delayed, it would influence the new budget for the 
next budget year.  Mr. Inscoe asked if the loan could be extended for longer than five (5) years.  
Mr. Griffin said no.  Council Member Kearney asked if there was a better way to purchase the 
equipment other than lease purchase.  Mr. Griffin said no, and added the ideal situation would be 
to pay for equipment in full with cash but unfortunately, the City is not in that position to do this.  
He also reminded Council that the Water Fund has capital needs, human resource needs and 
needs to pay KLRW for water consumption.    Mr. Griffin said in the long run he would rather 
see Council reduce the Regional Fund by 2% and take those dollars to reduce the Water Fund 
rate increase than taking dollars from meter replacement and equipment purchases.  
  
Council Member Daeke asked what percent of water meters have been replaced with the radio 
read meters.  Assistant City Manager Frazier responded approximately one-quarter saying about 
400-500 have been replaced a year.  Council Member Kearney asked about the impact of these 
replacements.  Mr. Frazier responded significant in efficiency and effectiveness, and Mr. Griffin 
said customers are now paying for their consumption where with the old meters readings were 
not accurate.  Council Member Kearney said he felt it inappropriate to increase the reconnect fee 
so soon after decreasing the fee.  He felt customers would feel this would be a slap in the face 
and most Council Members agreed. 
 
Mr. Griffin summarized by saying he understood Council to be looking at reducing the meter 
reading purchase by $50,000 for 2% rate reduction and a 1% rate reduction from regional.  Those 
three provide a 3% reduction if Council choses to go this way.  Again, Mr. Griffin recommended 
reducing the Regional Rate to keep the Capital in place.   
 
Council Member Inscoe clarified he is not against the replacement of the meters and said he felt 
Council needed to determine what their goal is for reducing the proposed rate. 
 
Mayor O’Geary asked for Council’s consensus regarding the Water rate.  Council Member 
Kearney favored the 4%.  Council Member Coffey, Inscoe, Rainey, Peace-Jenkins, Daeke, Davis 
and Daye were in agreement.  Council Member Daeke said 5%.  The consensus was seven of 
eight Council Members agreeing to 4% with the reductions to be provided as follows: a 1% 
reduction in the proposed Regional Water rate and the meter replacement decrease providing 2% 
to achieve the 3% reduction.  
 
(Clerk’s Note:  Council Member Peace-Jenkins left the room at 7:40 and returned at 7:50) 



 

 
Minute Book 42 

22 May 2012 Budget Work Session #2 Minutes  
Page 6 of 8 

Sewer Fund: 
 
 Mr. Griffin said in proposing the increase in the disconnect fee would have brought this brought 
down the proposed increase by 1%.  Council has resolved this issue so the rate is back to 9% for 
the sewer fund right now - 7% going to the capital reserve and the 2% going to the operating 
expenses within the fund. 
 
Council Member Inscoe said since there is no additional revenue for the sewer fund, postponing 
the increase now will only make future increases higher.  He said the sewer plant is 70 years old 
and is currently functioning on life-support.  Council Member Kearney said the City has to 
provide a system that works.  Council Member Daeke suggested a 6% increase for capital 
reserve.  Mr. Griffin said the 9% is steep but necessary. Council Member Kearney mentioned the 
plant upgrade should be completed in about 4-5 years and then the rate could be reduced.  
Council Member Coffey asked what comprised the 2% operating costs.  There was a short 
discussion culminating with the examples of the two recent major water main breaks of AC pipe 
where one valve cost $13,000. 
 
Council Member Kearney said he preferred a 7% increase but was ok with 9%.  Council Member 
Coffey said 9% since there is no room to play.  Council Members Inscoe, Rainey, Peace-Jenkins, 
Daeke, Davis and Daye all agreed with 9%.   The consensus of Council was to keep the rate 
increase at 9%. 
 
(Clerk’s Note:  Council Member Rainey left the room at 8:03 p.m. and returned at 8:06 p.m.) 
 
General Fund: 
 
The discussion now turned to the General Fund.  City Manager Griffin said the cuts he has made 
are not pretty and he is not happy with them due to the impacts on the operating budgets. 
 
Before reviewing the cuts, he said Police Chief Sidwell just informed him that the Police 
Department has received partial funding for bullet proof vests.  Council Member Coffey asked 
for an explanation re: asset forfeiture dollars and why that money could not be spent on vests.  
Mr. Griffin said it can be used for overtime, grant match but would ask for a full listing from 
Chief Sidwell. 
 
Council Member Kearney asked about the personnel list in the budget book for the Police 
Department, saying the numbers did not seem correct.  Mr. Griffin said he would double check 
the numbers.  Council Member Coffey said she had read that 2 officers per 1,000 citizens is a 
nationwide average and asked how many officers comprise the total number of personnel in the 
police department and how many civilian positions exist.  Council Member Daeke asked if all 
the positions are filled. 
 
Mr. Griffin then reviewed some of the major cuts he made such as the health fair, and police/fire 
gear.  Again, he said he is not happy doing this but the budget is so lean now, there are not many 
places to take from to meet Council’s wish to eliminate the property tax. 



 

 
Minute Book 42 

22 May 2012 Budget Work Session #2 Minutes  
Page 7 of 8 

 
Council Member Rainey said he was concerned with the reduction in police/fire gear.  Mr. 
Griffin said he would like to restore those dollars but again, there is not much to cut from the 
smaller departments.  He said the fire department has been unsuccessful in obtaining grants for 
gear and that the gear currently being used definitely needs replacement.  That was why he had 
requested a penny of the proposed tax increase go into a perpetual fund so turnover of gear could 
happen yearly for both the police and fire departments.  He also said the police/fire departments 
are the largest departments within the core services area and with gasoline prices increasing so 
does the cost of running their vehicles. 
 
Council Member Kearney asked about the two proposed positions for the Recreation and Parks 
Department.  Mr. Griffin reiterated these were not positions he wanted to cut as citizens are now 
using Fox Pond more, and Aycock needs more maintenance/custodian attention.   
 
Council Member Coffey asked for more information regarding the costs involved with officers 
taking vehicles to their homes outside the City.  She also requested detailed information on 
contracted services for Human Resources.  Mr. Griffin said he would compile information 
regarding the costs detail requested and said $7,000 of the contracted services is for the annual 
health fair which provides health information employees might not otherwise receive.  Council 
Member Davis felt the costs of driving vehicles outside the City was minimal compared to the 
services they offer 
 
Council Member Daeke asked what the COLA increase cost the City for a full year.  Mr. Griffin 
said he would provide that information at the next meeting. 
 
City Manager Griffin then asked for guidance for staff regarding the General Fund.  Council 
Member Inscoe suggested holding off until the next meeting so Council could fully review the 
cuts made by staff.  Council Member Kearney had trepidation about making any decisions at this 
time and Council member Daeke said he would like to review the cuts more thoroughly.   
 
Council Member Coffey said she would like to look more closely at Code enforcement saying 
the department does not have enough money for demolition.  
 
Council Member Davis asked if there is an ordinance regarding how long a house can be boarded 
up. 
 
It was the consensus of Council to cancel the budget work session scheduled for 24 May and to 
reconvene on Tuesday 29 May at 6:00 p.m. 
 
Council Member Kearney requested a list of personnel by gender, race, tenure, rank and salary 
grade. He also requested turnover information in the Police Department for the last three years 
and stated he has never seen a copy of the Manager’s contract. 
 
Assistant City Manager Frazier asked if Council would be agreeable to calling a Special Called 
Session before the work session on 29 May 2012 to consider approval of the State revolving fund 



 

 
Minute Book 42 

22 May 2012 Budget Work Session #2 Minutes  
Page 8 of 8 

grant/loan funding for the Sandy Creek Pump Station and execution of a contract with McGill 
Associates to perform the preliminary engineering report.  Mr. Frazier said this decision needed 
to be before the end of May.  It was the consensus of Council to have the Mayor call the special 
meeting. 
 
Guidance/Questions for Staff: 
 
1. How far back does the County carry arrears and what is the total outstanding 
2. Visual graph of water/water cost balance 
3. Updated CIP Plan from McGill 
4. Cost of Comprehensive Sanitation Services 
5. Check with tax collector re: Hope VI Phase I pre and post taxes 
6. Breakdown of what asset forfeiture funds can be used for 
7. Reformat police personnel (FT/PT – types of part time), including titles 
 Clarify number of officers 
8. Confirm research stating number of officers per 1,000 individuals per municipality 
9. Number of police positions filled/vacant 
10. Look at costs of police/fire force who drive City vehicles to homes out of town 
11. Full year cost for the COLA 
12. Any ordinance stating homes can be boarded for a certain length of time 
13 Diversity of departments – gender/race/rank/grade, etc. 
14 Turnover in the police department in last 3 years 

 
 

ADJOURNMENT 
 
Council Member Daeke moved for adjournment.  Motion seconded by Council Member Inscoe 
and unanimously approved.  The meeting adjourned at8:57 p.m. 
 
 
 
____________________________ 
James D. O’Geary 
Mayor 
 
      ATTEST: 
 
 
      _____________________________ 
      Esther J. McCrackin 
      City Clerk  



 

 
Minute Book 42 

29 May 2012 Special Called Meeting & Budget Work Session #3 Minutes  
Page 1 of 8 

 
 
 

City Council Minutes 
Henderson City Council Special Called Meeting and  

Budget Work Session #3 
29 May 2012 

 
PRESENT 
 
Mayor James D. O’Geary, Presiding; and Council Members James C. Kearney, Sr., Sara M. 
Coffey, Michael C. Inscoe, D. Michael Rainey, Brenda G. Peace—Jenkins, Garry D. Daeke, 
Lonnie Davis, Jr. and George M. Daye.yt 
ABSENT 
 
None. 
 
STAFF PRESENT 
 
City Manager Ray Griffin, City Attorney John Zollicoffer, City Clerk Esther J. McCrackin, and 
Finance Director Katherine Brafford. 
 
CALL TO ORDER    
   
The 29 May 2012 Henderson City Council Special Called Meeting and Budget Work Session #3 
was called to order by Mayor James D. O’Geary at 6:08 p.m. in the R. G. “Chick” Young, Jr. 
Council Chambers, Municipal Building, 134 Rose Avenue, Henderson, NC. 

            
ROLL CALL 
 
The City Clerk called the roll and advised Mayor O’Geary a quorum was present.   
 
OPENING REMARKS 
 
Mayor O’Geary greeted Council members saying he was glad to see everyone in attendance. 



 

 
Minute Book 42 

29 May 2012 Special Called Meeting & Budget Work Session #3 Minutes  
Page 2 of 8 

OLD BUSINESS 
 
Accepting the State Revolving Fund Grant/Loan for Future Funding Relative to 
Improvements at the Sandy Creek Pump Station of the Sanitary Sewer Collection System; 
Approving an Engineering Contract with McGill Associates to Prepare a Preliminary 
Engineering Report; and Amending the CIP Sewer Fund Relative to the Preliminary 
Engineering Report for the Sandy Creek Pump Station Improvements Project.  (Reference:  
CAF 12-A-36) 
 
City Manager Griffin reported that Assistant City Manager Frazier was unable to present this 
item due to a death in his family.  He said Mr. Andy Lovingood from McGill Associates was 
present to answer any questions regarding this grant/loan.  Mr. Griffin reminded Council that this 
is a $1.8M project with $900,000 in loan forgiveness to replace the lift station at Sandy Creek.  
Approval of this contract gives McGill Associates the go ahead to complete the Preliminary 
Engineering Report which is due to the State by the end of June. 
 
There were no questions so Mayor O’Geary asked for the consensus of Council. 
 
Council Member Coffey moved the approval of Resolution 12-A-18, Accepting the State 
Revolving Fund Grant/Loan for Future Funding Relative to Improvements at the Sandy Creek 
Pump Station of the Sanitary Sewer Collection System; Approving an Engineering Contract with 
McGill Associates to Prepare a Preliminary Engineering Report; and Ordinance 12-37, 
Amending the CIP Sewer Fund Relative to the Preliminary Engineering Report for the Sandy 
Creek Pump Station Improvements Project.  Motion seconded by Council Member Peace-
Jenkins and APPROVED by the following vote:  YES: Kearney, Coffey, Inscoe, Rainey, Peace-
Jenkins, Daeke, Davis and Daye. NO: None: ABSTAIN: None.  ABSENT: None. (See 
Resolution Book 2, p 285-A; Ordinance Book 8, p 425) 
 
BUDGET WORK SESSION #3 
 
Review of 22 May 2012 Minutes – The consensus was to accept the minutes as presented. 
 
Car Park Issues: 
 
1. Delinquent taxes owed the City -  City Manager Griffin said the total amount owed in 
back taxes as of 30 June 2011, according to the City’s  FY11 Audit is $810,861 and he said the 
State allows municipalities to keep the books open for ten (10) years.   
 
Council Member Rainey inquired about the timeframe for foreclosing on property and whether 
liens are placed on all the properties with uncollected taxes.  This led directly to the next Car 
Park item. 



 

 
Minute Book 42 

29 May 2012 Special Called Meeting & Budget Work Session #3 Minutes  
Page 3 of 8 

 
2. Foreclosure Proceedings – Mr. Griffin said Finance Director Brafford met with the Tax 
Collector Portia Brooks and was told foreclosures are initiated on properties after they are two 
years past due.  Ms. Brooks is going through the list of unpaid back taxes alphabetically, not by 
year or amount, and she sends ten accounts at a time to the tax attorney.  
 
Council Member Rainey asked if payment plans are offered to those in arrears.  Ms. Brafford 
said yes but she was unsure how many and to what extent the plans are offered.  
 
3. Tax Value Comparison of Hope VI Phase 1 Project from before the project started 
to 2012 tax year assessed value.  Mr. Griffin expressed disappointment in having to report that 
according to the Tax Collector, the Inspectors had not turned in the permits on this property so 
the tax rate had not been adjusted to reflect the upgraded property.  He has placed a call to the 
County Manager to discuss this issue and in the meantime the Tax Collector will go back to 
2010/2011 and adjust the tax base accordingly.  As soon as that information is available, Mr. 
Griffin will inform Council.  
 
Mayor O’Geary stated there have been a lot of permits issued this year and Council Member 
Coffey asked if there would be some type of coordination with the County Inspection  
Department.  Mr. Griffin said coordination would be established. 
 
4.   Monthly Sanitation Fee Allocation – Council requested an analysis of the monthly 
sanitation fee and City Manager Griffin said since FY00 the monthly fee has increased from $16 
to $26.  He went on to explain the increase supports basic sanitation costs, recycling, pick up of 
curbside debris, leaf pick-up, household refuse and Code Compliance programs.  It also 
contributes to paying debt service for the Operations Center, Police Station and Aycock 
Recreation Center --- it has helped recover lost revenue with the State withheld State-shared 
funds and property tax increases have been avoided with funds from this fee.  There were no 
questions. 
 
5. Revenue from Property and Sales Tax Goes Where?  City Manager Griffin explained 
that this source fluxuates and increased this year mainly due to Internet Cafés and an increase in 
sales tax.  He said tax collections are up in FY11-12 but overall, the figures are truly an estimate.  
He then reviewed the proposed adjustments to the General Fund budget and explained areas 
where loss of income occurs such as the privatization of the opening/closing of cemetery plots, 
the Senior Citizen exemption, etc.  He also mentioned Council needs to consider rebuilding the 
LEO fund account. 
 
Council Member Coffey asked why the cemetery loss.  Mayor O’Geary said cremations, 
population loss and limited plots all contribute to the loss.   
 
Ms. Coffey asked about the overtime cost increase.  Mr. Griffin said the Police overtime comes 
mainly from the asset forfeiture dollars but the $6,400  adjustment on the Chart is mainly for the 
street crews.  This led to a discussion regarding comp time which Mr. Griffin prefers to pay 
employees rather than accruing time.  He told Council comp time is limited to 40 hours. 



 

 
Minute Book 42 

29 May 2012 Special Called Meeting & Budget Work Session #3 Minutes  
Page 4 of 8 

 
Ms. Coffey then asked if there would be any benefit to review the possibility of reducing the full-
time position in Code Compliance to part-time that was discussed during the budget process last 
year. It was decided a part-time position would not provide the dollars needed to obtain the final 
line Council desired.  Mayor O’Geary said there is certainly enough work for a full-time position 
and Council Member Kearney was uncomfortable singling out one department. 
 
Council Member Daeke asked for clarification regarding the Ad Valorem Tax growth.  Mr. 
Griffin said he would review the figures. 
 
6. Asset Forfeiture Funds – Asset Funds cannot be used for salaries, unless it is the first 
year of a newly created position.  The Funds can be used for anything police related, as long as 
that item is not minimized or supplanted from the previous year’s total budget (re: equipment, 
overtime, uniforms, etc).  There was no discussion. 
 
7. Accepted Norm for Number of Police Officers per 1,000 population – Mr. Griffin 
said the International Association of Chiefs of Police (IACP) offers a general rule of thumb of 
2.0 officers per population of 10,000 to 24,999.  However, other factors must be considered such 
as current crime rate, court conditions, economic conditions, public tolerance, population density 
and spread of the city limits.  There was no discussion. 
 
8.   Authorized Positions and Staffing – City Manager Griffin explained an error occurred 
with the staffing position numbers included in the Budget Work Book on page 74.  He said the 
department is authorized for 52 full-time sworn officers; 7 civilian full time administrative 
positions; 1 Safety Officer (parking enforcement) and 7 part-time positions.  This is a total of 60 
full-time positions and 7 part-time positions. 
 
Council Member Coffey asked for a breakdown of how many hours the part-time employees 
work.  Mr. Griffin said the Crime Analyst and the Administrative Assistant work approximately 
20 hours per week.  The crossing guards work less but he was unsure of the exact number of 
hours. 
 
Council Member Daeke asked if the Police salary dollars from vacant positions could go into the 
Fund Balance.  Mr. Griffin said a portion of the unused dollars contributed to the 2% COLA and 
are often recycled into other areas.  Mr. Daeke asked for a year end listing of recycled dollars. 
 
9. Police Officers Living Outside City Limits – Mr. Griffin said currently there are 47 
sworn officers of which 8% live within the city limits.  Officers living within more than 15 miles 
of the Vance County line are required to provide mileage reimbursement to the City for driving a 
City vehicle home.  Of the 47 officers, 8 live within the City limits; 26 live in Vance County; 10 
live outside Vance County but within the 15 mile perimeter and 1 officer lives outside Vance 
County and outside the 15 miles of the County Line. 
 
Council Member Coffey felt more than one officer resided outside the 15 mile perimeter and Mr. 
Griffin asked that she discuss this further in private so as not to violate confidentiality.   



 

 
Minute Book 42 

29 May 2012 Special Called Meeting & Budget Work Session #3 Minutes  
Page 5 of 8 

 
Ms. Coffey asked for the total number of vehicles in the Police Department and what happens to 
wrecked vehicles.  Mr. Griffin said he thought there were a total of 55-60 vehicles.  He said 
some vehicles are sold on GovDeal and others are repaired, depending on the damage.    Council 
Member Rainey asked if there was any attempt to salvage parts.  Mr. Griffin said yes. 
 
Mr. Griffin explained that surplus items for listing on GovDeal this year has been slow but with 
the hiring of an Assistant Finance Director, this will become one of his/her duties, working in 
conjunction with the Fiscal Compliance Officer. 
 
10. Police Department Turnover - Mr. Griffin said turnover has improved by 
approximately 6% since FY11 and shared that in the first three quarters of FY 11, turnover was 
19.35%.  For the same period in FY12, turnover was 13.4%.   
 
Council Member Kearney asked for an assessment of the departmental reorganization which 
took place last July.  City Manager Griffin said he felt overall the reorganization was successful 
as turnover has decreased and the most recent applicant is a college graduate. 
 
11. Flex Plan Utilization – Mr. Griffin said this program saves the City dollars as it does not 
have to pay FICA on the amount withdrawn for the Flex plan.  Currently there are 8 employees 
participating and the Human Resources Director Kathy Brown hopes to see that number increase 
to at least 16 in FY13. 
 
Council Member Daeke asked if the City’s savings could be calculated.  Mr. Griffin said yes and 
asked Finance Director Brafford to put this information together.  
 
12 COLA Increase -   Mr. Griffin said the other “half year” expense regarding the 2% 
COLA increase is approximately $57,265 and approximately $18,000 for the increase from $100 
to $200 salary supplement (holiday bonus).  There was no discussion. 
 
13. Diversity – Mr. Griffin distributed a chart showing diversity for full-time positions in 
FY12. 
 
Council Member Kearney felt he would like to review the information provided and discuss at a 
later date and said he was disappointed that the data did not include the specific salary for each 
position.  Council Member Daeke concurred he would like to review the data before discussion. 
 
14. How Long can a Structure be Boarded-Up?  Mr. Griffin said Code Compliance 
Director Corey Williams advised there is no ordinance proscribing a time line for how long a 
structure can be boarded up. 
 
Council Member Davis asked if an ordinance should be drafted. Mr. Griffin said he would look 
into this with the Code Compliance Director Corey Williams and the City Attorney. 
 
Review of Proposed Revenue and Expenditure Reductions 



 

 
Minute Book 42 

29 May 2012 Special Called Meeting & Budget Work Session #3 Minutes  
Page 6 of 8 

 
(Council Member Rainey left the room at 7:15 p.m. and returned at 7:20 p.m.) 
 
City Manager Griffin now directed Council to the list compiled and distributed at the 22 May 
2012 meeting, at Council’s request, to balance the budget to eliminate the property tax and 
reduce the Fund Balance by $41,000. 
 
Council Member Inscoe summarized the consensus of Council that there should be no tax 
increase, the Fund Balance appropriation recommendation of $200,000 should be reduced by 
$41,000, the Sanitation fee will increase by $0.50; the Water rate will increase 4%; the Sewer 
rate will increase 9% and Regional Water will increase 4%.  He went on to say Council now 
needs to determine what adjustments need to be made to meet their consensus. 
 
Council Member Kearney said he finds it hard to say where the cuts need to come from but he 
felt the police/fire equipment/safety requests for protective clothing should not be cut and 
suggested a 3.6% decrease in the Fund Balance to allow the full requested amount.  
 
Council Member Inscoe suggested reducing the request for bulletproof vests as the Police 
Department recently received a grant for vests and eliminating the Governing Body Travel 
dollars.  Mr. Griffin reminded Council of their State required Ethics Training costs.  Council 
Member Coffey felt the protective gear is critical and suggested Council Members share the 
expense of training.  Council Member Davis reminded members of the flip side by addressing 
what is lost by not fully participating in State meetings.  A general discussion followed regarding 
possible items for elimination with Council Member Inscoe again summarizing by saying the 
budget offers control as best it can with the information currently available.   
 
Council Member Coffey suggested taking funds from the General Fund Bad Debt Reserve and 
Council Member Daeke asked again about the salary offset.  Mr. Griffin said if $9,000 is 
removed from the Bad Debt then that only leaves $6,000 as a cushion for bad checks and other 
write-offs. 
 
Council Member Daeke asked about the demolition issue and the lack of dollars.  Discussion led 
to whether any asset forfeiture dollars could be used as demolition would reduce drug and sex 
trades.  Council Member Davis suggested using the forfeiture dollars for raids.  Council Member 
Rainey asked if City staff and equipment could not be used to demolish structures.  Council 
Member Coffey thought Kittrell Job Corp offered to help at one time but remembered there was 
a problem because of asbestos/lead paint issues.  City Manager Griffin said the issues are staff 
not being trained in demolition, liability issues of private property and higher workers comp 
costs.  Mr. Griffin stated the Fire Department has been able to assist with some structures.  The 
consensus of Council was more dollars are needed to eliminate structures already earmarked for 
demolition.  The estimated cost to demolish one structure is $6,000.  It was suggested another 
$0.50 increase in the sanitation fee would raise an additional $35,000 to be earmarked for 
demolition.  By the following vote it was decided to wait until the Public Hearing was held 
before making a final decision on the increase:  TO WAIT:  Inscoe, Rainey, Peace-Jenkins, 



 

 
Minute Book 42 

29 May 2012 Special Called Meeting & Budget Work Session #3 Minutes  
Page 7 of 8 

Davis and Daye.  Council Members Coffey and Daeke were for the increase and Council 
Member Kearney was against the increase. 
 
City Manager Griffin summarized the meeting by asking Council if the consensus regarding the 
FY12-13 Budget was the following: 
 
 1. 0% Tax increase 
 2. $0.50 Sanitation Fee increase 
 3. 4% Regional Water Rate increase 
 4. 4% Water Rate increase 
 5. 9% Sewer Rate increase 

6. Restoration of the Fire Protective Gear request  
7. Wait until the Public Hearing to consider another $0.50 increase in the Sanitation 

Fee 
 
With no disagreement, this completed Council’s review of the proposed FY12-13 Budget.  Mr. 
Griffin said unless there was need for further discussion, the remaining Work Sessions would be 
cancelled and the Public Hearing on the budget would be held on Monday 11 June 2012.  
Depending on citizen feedback, Council has the option of either adopting the budget during the 
11 June meeting or holding another work session and adopting the budget during the 25 June 
meeting. 
 
Mayor O’Geary asked for the pleasure of Council. 
 
Council Members Coffey and Daeke felt the budget should be adopted 25 June, to provide time 
to consider citizen comments. Council Member Kearney felt if there were no issues at the Public 
Hearing the budget could be adopted on 11 June and Council Members Inscoe, Rainey, Peace-
Jenkins, Davis and Daye concurred.  
 
City Manager Griffin stated if Council was happy with the budget after the Public Hearing, staff 
would be prepared with the required budget ordinances.  If Council felt another budget session 
was needed, a meeting would be held on Tuesday 12 June at 6:00 p.m. All Council Members 
were in agreement. 
 
Council Member Davis then congratulated Council Members by saying this is the best Council 
he has worked with.  He stated the deliberations were civil and members were respectful of their 
peers.  Since this is the last budget deliberation he will participate in he wanted to express his 
pleasure in working over the last four years with all the members saying they had a sense of 
humor, were honest and candid in their comments and yet held no grudges.  He complimented 
the Mayor, City Manager.  Mr. Davis said he felt the retreats created knowledge and respect 
between Council and staff.   
 
Mayor O’Geary thanked Mr. Davis for his kind words and thanked Mr. Davis for his 
contributions.  Although this was not his last meeting, Mayor O’Geary said he will be sincerely 
missed and it has been a pleasure working with Mr. Davis. 



 

 
Minute Book 42 

29 May 2012 Special Called Meeting & Budget Work Session #3 Minutes  
Page 8 of 8 

 
Mayor O’Geary then asked if there were any other items for discussion. 
 
Council Member Kearney mentioned the invitation from the Economic Development 
Commission to tour Semprius during their 13 June Board meeting and reminded Council to 
RSVP. 
 
Guidance/Questions for Staff: 
 
1. Check on how long before liens are placed on properties 
2. Process for payment plans for uncollected property taxes 
3. Hope VI, Phase I tax base 
4. Ad Valorum Tax base calculations 
5. School Crossing Guard hours 
6. List of how unused salary dollars are spent 
7. Flex Spending Savings to City 
8. Ordinance for boarded up properties 
9. Number of vehicles in Police fleet 

 
ADJOURNMENT 
 
Council Member Daye moved for adjournment.  Motion seconded by Council Member Kearney 
and unanimously approved.  The meeting adjourned at 8:08 p.m. 
 
 
 
____________________________ 
James D. O’Geary 
Mayor 
 
      ATTEST: 
 
 
      _____________________________ 
      Esther J. McCrackin 
      City Clerk  



 
FY 13 Budget Message—Adoption  

Page 1 of 31 
 

 
 
 
 
 

 
________________________________________ 

 
30 May 2012 

 
TO: The Honorable Mayor James D. O’Geary and Members of City Council 
 
FR: A. Ray Griffin, Jr., City Manager 
 
RE: CAF:  12-A-62 Consideration of Approval of Ordinance 12-12, 1) Adoption of FY13 

Budget, 2) Amending Water, Sewer and Regional Water Rates; 3) Amending 
Sanitation Fees, and; 4) FY13 Fee Schedule. 

 
Ladies and Gentlemen: 
 
Council Goals Addressed By This Item: 
 
 All KSO’s in the Strategic Plan are addressed with this Budget. 
 
Recommendation: 
 
 Conduct the Budget Hearing 
 
After considering public comments made during the Hearing, Council may elect to approve the 
Budget or continue its deliberations at a budget work session.  Should Council feel comfortable 
in proceeding with budget adoption, it is recommended the following ordinance be approved: 
 
 Ordinance 12-12, 1) Adoption of FY13 Budget; 2) Amending Water, Sewer and Regional 

Water Rates; 3) Amending Sanitation Fees, and; 4) FY13 Fee Schedule. 
 

Executive Summary  
 
City Council reviewed the FY13 Budget during three (3) budget work session meetings, not 
including the night of budget presentation.  At its last budget work session held on Tuesday, 29 
May, the Council confirmed the following points of consensus to the FY13 Budget.  The 
attached Ordinance is crafted around the consensus points found during the budget deliberations. 
 
 
 
 
10:  General Governmental Fund 
 

City Council Action Form 
Office of City Manager 

P. O. Box 1434 
Henderson, NC  27536 

252.430.5701 

         
 
 
 
Agenda Item:         ___________ 
 
Council Meeting: 11 June 2012 Meeting  



 
FY 13 Budget Message—Adoption  

Page 2 of 31 
 

2

 Elimination of Two Cents Tax Rate Increase:  The unanimous consensus was to eliminate 
the recommended two cents property tax increase. The property tax will remain at $0.585. 
Staff was directed to recommend $164,000 in expenditure reductions in the General Fund 
and recommendations were reviewed during the second and third budget work sessions. 
Consensus on the reductions was achieved at the third budget work session. 
 

 Reduction in Transfer from Unappropriated Fund Balance:  The unanimous consensus 
of Council was to reduce the recommended $200,000 appropriation by $41,000.  Staff 
provided a list of potential reductions in expenditures to achieve this goal and same was 
reviewed during the second and third budget work sessions.  Consensus on the reductions 
was achieved at the third budget work session. 

 
 Increase in Sanitation Fee:  The unanimous consensus of Council was to increase the the 

monthly sanitation fee by $0.50 in order to provide for the increased cost of the contract with 
Waste Industries, Inc. The fee will increase from $26.00 to $26.50. The unanimous 
consensus of Council was reached on this matter during the second budget work session. 

 
 Fund Consensus:  The balance of the General Fund was accepted as recommended by the 

City Manager.  With that said, several Council Members did express concern for the need for 
more funding for demolition of abandoned structures and the REEF project.  The consensus 
of Council was to not make any decisions regarding these two items until after the Budget 
Hearing on 11 June.  The General Fund consensus was achieved at the third budget work 
session. 

 
64:  Regional Water Enterprise Fund 
 
 Reduction of Regional Water Rate Increase:  The unanimous consensus of Council was to 

reduce the Regional Water Rate Increase from 5% to 4%. Reductions were made in several 
of the operating line items in order to provide for the decrease.  Council achieved consensus 
on this matter during its second budget work session. 
 

 Fund Consensus:  The balance of the Regional Water Fund was accepted as recommended 
by the City Manager.  This consensus was achieved during the second budget work session. 

 
30:  Water Enterprise Fund 
 
 Reduction of Water Rate Increase:  The unanimous consensus of Council was to reduce 

the Water Rate Increase from 7% to 4%.  The decrease is allowed by the reduction of the 
Regional Water Rate increase of 1%, and the remaining 2% from reducing the water meter 
replacement line item.  Consensus was achieved on this matter during the second budget 
work session. 
 

 Fund Consensus:  The balance of the Water Fund was accepted as recommended by the 
City Manager.  This consensus was achieved during the second budget work session. 

 
31:  Sewer Enterprise Fund 



 
FY 13 Budget Message—Adoption  

Page 3 of 31 
 

3

 
 Sewer Rate Increase:  The unanimous consensus of Council was to increase the Sewer Rate 

by 9% as recommended by the City Manager.  Seven percent (7%) of the increase is 
dedicated to rate stabilization in preparation for the major plant renovation that is scheduled 
to begin in 2013.  The remaining 2% provides for a realignment of revenues.  Consensus was 
achieved on this matter during the second budget work session. 
 

 Fund Consensus:  The balance of the Sewer Fund was accepted as recommended by the 
City Manager.  This consensus was achieved during the second budget work session. 

 
All Other Funds 
 
The unanimous consensus of Council was to approve all other funds in the FY13 Budget as 
recommended by the City Manager.  Key decisions made in the four operating funds as noted 
above did not have the effect of altering any recommendations in the following funds: 
 

 11:  Powell Bill Governmental Fund 
 12:  Debt Service Internal Service Fund 
 40:  Public Library Trust Fund 
 50:  Law Enforcement Officers’ Retirement Trust Fund 
 51:  Elmwood Cemetery Trust Fund 
 70:  Utilities Capital Reserve Fund 
 72:  General Capital Reserve Fund 
 73:  Economic Development Capital Reserve Fund 
 78:  Regional Water Capital Reserve Fund 
 79:  Rate Stabilization Capital Reserve Fund 

 
 
Enclosures: 
 

1. Ordinance 12-12 



 
FY 13 Budget Message—Adoption  

Page 4 of 31 
 

4

O R D I N A N C E  12—12 
 

APPROVAL OF THE FY 12-13 ANNUAL OPERATING BUDGET, 
ESTABLISHING THE 2012 AD VALOREM PROPERTY TAX RATE AND 

APPROVING THE ANNUAL FEE SCHEDULE 
 
 
Whereas, pursuant to North Carolina General Statues 159-13, the State of North Carolina 

requires its local governments to operate on a 1 July – 30 June fiscal year basis; and 
 
Whereas, said State law further requires local governments adopt a balanced budget not later 

than 1 July; and 
 
Whereas, the City Manager presented the FY 12-13 Recommended Budget to the City Council 

on Monday, 14 May 2012 and subsequent to the Budget Presentation, City Council met 
in several budget work sessions to discuss the budget and to make changes as it deemed 
appropriate and necessary for the public health, safety and welfare; and 

 
Whereas, the City Council heard comments from the public during its duly advertised Budget 

Hearing on Monday, 11 June 2012; and 
 
Whereas, the City Council, after receiving public comments throughout the budget review 

process and Budget Hearing,  and deliberating the various budgetary issues, has achieved 
consensus on the FY 12-13 Budget. 

 
Now, Therefore Be It Ordained by the Henderson City Council that it does hereby approve: 

 The FY 12-13 Budget; and 
 Establishes the 2012 Ad Valorem property tax rate; and 
 Increases the  Regional Water, Water and Sewer rates; and 
 Increases the monthly Sanitation Fee; and 
 Affirms and Readopts the Annual Fee Schedule;  

as set forth in the following sections: 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Section 1:  Total FY 12-13 Total Budget Summary 



 
FY 13 Budget Message—Adoption  

Page 5 of 31 
 

5

 

Recommended Approved Requested Recommended Approved

10 General Operating 14,976,900$         14,774,000$         18,950,800$         14,976,900$         14,774,000$         
11 Powell Bill Operating 466,700$              466,700$              445,100$              466,700$              466,700$              

-$                     
30 Water Enterprise 5,902,000$           5,827,000$           6,033,000$           5,902,000$           5,827,000$           
31 Sewer Enterprise 4,607,300$           4,607,300$           4,742,300$           4,607,300$           4,607,300$           
64 Regional Water Enterprise 4,461,500$           4,423,500$           4,541,300$           4,461,500$           4,423,500$           

-$                     
12 Debt Service 3,404,000$           3,404,000$           3,404,000$           3,404,000$           3,404,000$           

-$                     
40 Library Trust -$                      -$                     -$                     -$                     -$                     
50 LEO Pension Trust -$                      -$                     -$                     -$                     -$                     
51 Elmwood Cemetery Trust 1,000$                  1,000$                  1,000$                  1,000$                  1,000$                  

-$                     
70 Capital Reserve Utilities 122,500$              122,500$              207,500$              122,500$              122,500$              
72 Capital Reserve General -$                      -$                     -$                     -$                     -$                     
73 Capital Reserve Economic Development 10,000$                10,000$                25,000$                10,000$                10,000$                
78 Capital Reserve Regional 674,200$              674,200$              674,200$              674,200$              674,200$              
79 Capital Reserve Rate Stabilization 1,226,300$           1,226,300$           1,226,300$           1,226,300$           1,226,300$           

Subtotal 35,852,400$         35,536,500$         40,250,500$         35,852,400$         35,536,500$         

FR 11 Powell Bill to 10 General 466,700$              466,700$              TO: 10 from 30 361,300$              361,300$              
FR 30 Water to 10 General 361,300$              361,300$              TO: 10 from 11 466,700$              466,700$              

FR 31 Sewer CA to 10 General 402,800$              402,800$              TO: 10 from 51 1,000$                  1,000$                  
FR 51 Elmwood to 10 General 1,000$                  1,000$                  TO: 10 from 31 CA 402,800$              402,800$              

FR 64 Regional CA to 10 General 225,000$              225,000$              TO 10 from 64 CA 225,000$              225,000$              
FR: 10 General to 12 Debt Service 917,200$              917,200$              TO: 12 from 10 917,200$              917,200$              

FR 30 Water to 12 Debt Service 556,500$              556,500$              TO 12 from 30 556,500$              556,500$              
FR 31 Sewer to 12 Debt Service 756,500$              756,500$              TO 12 from 31 756,500$              756,500$              

FR 64 Regional to 12 Debt Service 1,173,800$           1,173,800$           TO 12 from 64 1,173,800$           1,173,800$           
FR 31 Sewer CA to 30 Water 202,500$              202,500$              TO: 30 from 31 CA 202,500$              202,500$              

FR 64 Regional CA to 30 Water 80,000$                80,000$                TO: 30 from 64 CA 80,000$                80,000$                
FR: 31 Sewer to 70: CR Utilities 77,800$                77,800$                TO: 70 from 31 77,800$                77,800$                
FR: 30 Water to 70 CR Utilities 44,600$                44,600$                TO: 70 from 30 44,600$                44,600$                

FR: 10 General to 73 CR Econ Dev 10,000$                10,000$                TO 73 from 10 10,000$                10,000$                
FR 64 Regional to 78 Regional Reserve 669,000$              669,000$              TO: 78 from 64 669,000$              669,000$              

FR  31: Sewer Fund to 79 CRRates 264,200$              264,200$              TO: 79 from 31 264,200$              264,200$              
Total: Inter-Fund Transfers 6,208,900$           6,208,900$           6,208,900$           6,208,900$           

Revenue Summary
Operating Budgets' Total 35,852,400$         35,536,500$         35,852,400$         35,536,500$         

Less Inter-Fund Transfers' Total 6,208,900$           6,208,900$           6,208,900$           6,208,900$           

TOTAL FY 13 REVENUES 29,643,500$         29,327,600$         29,643,500$         29,327,600$         

31 May 12

Less Inter-Fund Transfers--ExpendituresLess Inter-Fund Transfers--Revenues

Internal Service Funds

Trust Funds

Capital Reserve Funds

Fund
Governmental Funds

Enterprise Funds

EXPENDITURES

FY 12-13 TOTAL COUNCIL APPROVED BUDGET SUMMARY

REVENUES

 
 
 
 
 



 
FY 13 Budget Message—Adoption  

Page 6 of 31 
 

6

Section 2: 10: General Governmental Fund 
10 GENERAL GOVERNMENTAL FUND

City Manager City Council
Recommend Approved

Ad Valorem Taxes
10-100-400-000 Ad Valorem-All Prior Years 30,000$          30,000$            
10-100-400-308 Ad Valorem-2008 5,000$            5,000$              
10-100-400-309 Ad Valorem-2009 25,000$          25,000$            
10-100-400-310 Ad Valorem-2010 80,000$          80,000$            
10-100-400-311 Ad Valorem-2011 190,000$        190,000$          
10-100-400-312 Ad Valorem-2012 5,488,200$     5,324,200$       
10-100-400-401 Debt Set-Off Ad Valorem 2,000$            2,000$              
10-100-400-450 Tax Penalties & Interest 80,000$          80,000$            

Subtotal-Ad Valorem Taxes All Years 5,900,200$     5,736,200$       
Other Local Taxes & Licenses

10-100-400-500 ABC Net Revenues 16,000$          16,000$            
10-100-400-520 1% Local Option Sales Tax (LOST) 925,000$        925,000$          
10-100-400-521 Two 1/2% LOST 960,000$        960,000$          
10-100-400-530 1/4 % LOST Hold-Harmless 440,000$        440,000$          
10-100-400-535 Solid Waste Disposal Tax 6,400$            6,400$              
10-100-400-540 Business Privilege License (BPL) 320,000$        320,000$          
10-100-400-550 Motor Vehicle Licenses 95,000$          95,000$            
10-100-400-555 Vehicle Rental Tax 11,000$          11,000$            

Subtotal-Other Taxes & Licenses 2,773,400$     2,773,400$       
Inter-Governmental Unrestricted

10-100-400-570 Payment in Lieu of Tax: Vance Co PHA 1,500$            1,500$              
10-100-400-560 Vance County ABC Bottle Tax 5% 1,800$            1,800$              
10-100-411-010 State Beer and Wine Tax 75,000$          75,000$            
10-100-411-020 State Utility Franchise Tax 850,000$        850,000$          

Subtotal-Inter-Governmental Unrestricted 928,300$        928,300$          
Inter-Governmental Restricted

10-100-455-800 NCDOT Mowing Contract 6,500$            6,500$              
Subtotal-Inter-Governmental Restricted 6,500$            6,500$              

Sales & Services

10-100-433-100 Garage Sales 738,300$        738,300$          
Subtotal-Garage Sales 738,300$        738,300$          

10-100-455-400 Refuse Collection 1,680,000$     1,680,000$       
10-100-455-402 Rubbish Pick-Up 5,000$            5,000$              
10-100-455-410 Miscellaneous Refuse Collection 4,100$            4,100$              
10-100-455-500 Bad Debt Recovery Sanitation 1,500$            1,500$              
10-100-455-501 Bad Debt Recovery-Debt Set-Off 500$               500$                 
10-100-455-035 Sale of Leaf Bags 1,500$            1,500$              
10-100-455-200 Demolition & Lot Cleaning Fees Paid 4,000$            4,000$              
10-100-400-453 Demolition & Lot Liens Collected 3,000$            3,000$              

Subtotal-Sanitation Sales & Services 1,699,600$     1,699,600$       

10-100-433-200 Recreation Fees & Revenues 62,000$          62,000$            
10-100-433-201 Aycock-Aquatic Center Revenues 68,000$          68,000$            
10-100-433-300 Rental-Fox Pond Park 1,200$            1,200$              
10-100-477-020 Vance County-45% Operations 367,300$        361,100$          
10-100-477-040 Vance County Youth Services 195,900$        195,900$          
10-100-477-021 Vance County-50% Aycock Debt Service 293,400$        281,700$          

Subtotal-Recreation Program & Services 987,800$        969,900$          

10-100-455-300 Zoning & BOA Permits 15,000$          15,000$            
10-100-455-600 Cemetery Lot Sales & Services 6,000$            6,000$              
10-100-422-220 Rental-Police Training Center 2,000$            2,000$              

Subtotal-Miscellaneous Sales & Services 23,000$          23,000$            

Subtotal for All Sales and Services 3,448,700$     3,430,800$       

Subtotal All Categories for this Page 13,057,100$   12,875,200$     

Recreation Programs & Services

Miscellaneous Sales & Services

FY 12-13

Revenues
Operating Revenues

Garage Internal Service

Sanitation Sales & Services

 



 
FY 13 Budget Message—Adoption  

Page 7 of 31 
 

7

 
Section 2:  10:  General Governmental Fund (continued) 
 

10 GENERAL GOVERNMENTAL FUND
City Manager City Council
Recommend Approved

13,057,100$   12,875,200$     
Miscellaneous  

10-100-422-110 Court Cost Fees 10,000$          10,000$            
10-100-422-212 Parking Violations 4,000$            4,000$              
10-100-422-212 Fire Code Violations 500$               500$                 
10-100-457-000 Sale of Assets & Material 15,000$          15,000$            
10-100-444-010 Investments 5,000$            5,000$              
10-100-455-015 Miscellaneous 5,000$            5,000$              

Subtotal-Miscellaneous 39,500$          39,500$            
Budgetary Appropriations

10-980-461-011 Transfer from: 11 Powell Bill Fund 466,700$        466,700$          
10-985-461-051 Transfer from 51: Elmwood Cemetery -$               1,000$              
10-985-471-030 Transfer from 30: Water-Cost Allocation 361,300$        361,300$          
10-985-471-031 Transfer from 31: Sewer-Cost Allocation 402,800$        402,800$          
10-985-471-064 Transfer from 64: Regional-Cost Allocation 225,000$        225,000$          

Subtotal-Inter-Fund Transfers 1,455,800$     1,456,800$       

10-100-461-053 Fund Balance Federal Drug Seizure 224,500$        244,500$          
10-990-490-999 Fund Balance Appropriated 200,000$        158,000$          

Subtotal-Fund Balance Appropriations 424,500$        402,500$          

Subtotal-Budgetary Appropriations 1,880,300$     1,859,300$       

Total-This Page 14,976,900$   14,774,000$     

Subtotal-Ad Valorem Taxes All Years 5,900,200$     5,736,200$       
Subtotal-Other Taxes & Licenses 2,773,400$     2,773,400$       

Subtotal-Inter-Governmental Unrestricted 928,300$        928,300$          
Subtotal-Inter-Governmental Restricted 6,500$            6,500$              

Subtotal-Sales & Services 3,448,700$     3,430,800$       
Subtotal-Miscellaneous 39,500$          39,500$            

Subtotal-Budgetary Appropriations 1,880,300$     1,859,300$       

Total Revenues 14,976,900$   14,774,000$     

Inter-Fund Transfers

Fund Balance Appropriations

Total Fund Revenue Summary

FY 12-13

Revenues (continued)

Total- All Categories  From Prior Page

 
 



 
FY 13 Budget Message—Adoption  

Page 8 of 31 
 

8

Section 2:  10:  General Governmental Fund 

(continued)

10 GENERAL GOVERNMENTAL FUND
City Manager City Council
Recommend Approved

Departmental Expenditures

10-410 Governing Body 193,200$        192,200$          
10-414 City Attorney 65,600$          63,600$           

Subtotal-Legislative 258,800$        255,800$          

10-420 Administration 352,800$        351,300$          
10-425 Human Resources 147,800$        140,800$          
10-440 Finance 469,100$        468,100$          
10-450 Information Services 66,000$          41,000$           

Subtotal-Administrative 1,035,700$     1,001,200$       

10-423 Code Compliance 138,200$        137,700$          
10-495 Planning & Community Development 145,700$        144,700$          
10-496 Main Street-Downtown Development 32,900$          32,900$           

Subtotal-Planning & Community Development 316,800$        315,300$          

10-510 Police 3,851,900$     3,833,900$       
10-512 Police-Asset Forfeiture 224,500$        244,500$          
10-530 Fire 2,143,800$    2,193,100$       

Subtotal-Public Safety 6,220,200$     6,271,500$       

10-500 Public Buildings 95,500$          94,500$            
10-501 Bennett Perry House 7,600$            6,100$              
10-545 Public Services Administration 136,300$        136,300$          
10-555 Garage 893,700$        886,700$          
10-560 Cemetery 75,000$          75,000$            
10-570 Street Maintenance 726,700$        717,700$          
10-571 Powell Bill-Street Maintenance 466,700$        466,700$          
10-580 Sanitation 934,700$        926,300$         

Subtotal-Public Services 3,336,200$     3,309,300$       

10-620 Recreation Services 879,300$        865,500$          
10-622 Youth Services 195,900$        195,900$          
10-623 Aycock/Aquatics Center 353,900$        327,800$         

Subtotal-Recreation & Parks 1,429,100$     1,389,200$       
-$               -$                  

10-650 City & County Shared Programs 918,400$        918,400$          
10-660 Non-Departmental 1,426,400$     1,280,700$       
10-670 Local Agencies 35,300$          32,600$           

Subtotal-Non-Departmental 2,380,100$     2,231,700$       

Subtotal-All Departments 14,976,900$   14,774,000$     

Subtotal-Legislative 258,800$        255,800$          
Subtotal-Administrative 1,035,700$     1,001,200$       

Subtotal-Planning & Community Development 316,800$        315,300$          
Subtotal-Public Safety 6,220,200$     6,271,500$       

Subtotal-Public Services 3,336,200$     3,309,300$       
Subtotal-Recreation & Parks 1,429,100$     1,389,200$       
Subtotal-Non-Departmental 2,380,100$    2,231,700$       

Total Expenditures 14,976,900$   14,774,000$     

Total General Fund Revenues 14,976,900$   14,774,000$     
Total General Fund Expenditures 14,976,900$   14,774,000$     

Variance of Revenues to Expenditures -$               -$                  

Non-Departmental 

Total Fund Expenditure Summary

Legislative

Administrative

Planning & Community Development

Public Safety

Public Services

Recreation & Parks

FY 12-13

Expenditures

 



 
FY 13 Budget Message—Adoption  

Page 9 of 31 
 

9

 
 
 
 
Section 3:  11:  Powell Bill Governmental Fund 
 

11 POWELL BILL GOVERNMENTAL FUND
City Manager City Council
Recommend Approved

11-110-411-120 Powell Bill Allocation 445,000$        445,000$          
Subtotal 445,000$        445,000$          

Miscellaneous Revenues
11-110-444-010 Investments 100$               100$                 

Subtotal 100$               100$                 
Budgetary Appropriations

11-990-490-999 Fund Balance Appropriated 21,600$          21,600$            
Subtotal 21,600$          21,600$            

Total Revenues 466,700$        466,700$          
Expenditures
Departmental Expenditures

11-690-561-010 Powell Bill 466,700$       466,700$          

Total Expenditures 466,700$        466,700$          

Variance of Revenues to Expenditures -$               -$                 

FY 12-13

Revenues
Inter-Governmental Restricted Revenues

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 
FY 13 Budget Message—Adoption  

Page 10 of 31 
 

10

Section 4:  30: Water Enterprise Fund 
 

30  WATER ENTERPRISE FUND
City Manager City Council
Recommend Approved

30-300-433-420 Account Set Up Fee 12,000$          12,000$            
30-300-433-430 Water Taps 35,000$          35,000$            
30-300-433-410 Water User Revenues 2,608,000$     2,533,000$       
30-300-433-416 Water Charges-Franklin County 2,612,000$     2,612,000$       
30-300-433-425 Water Charges-Kittrell WA 82,000$          82,000$            
30-300-433-450 Sprinkler/Hydrant Fees 111,000$        111,000$          
30-300-433-440 Late Fee Charges 71,000$          71,000$            
30-300-433-460 Reconnect Service Fee 20,000$          20,000$            
30-300-433-407 Returned Check Fee 4,200$            4,200$              
30-300-455-010 Miscellaneous 2,000$            2,000$              
30-300-455-500 Bad Debt Recovery 5,000$            5,000$              
30-300-455-501 Bad Debt Rec-Debt Set Off 1,500$            1,500$              

Subtotal 5,563,700$     5,488,700$       
Non-Operating Revenues

30-300-444-010 Investments 2,300$            2,300$              
30-300-433-470 Sale of Materials 1,500$            1,500$              
30-300-457-000 Sale of Assets 2,000$            2,000$              
30-300-455-025 Sprint PCS Agreement 25,000$          25,000$            
30-300-455-030 T-Mobile Agreement 25,000$          25,000$            

Subtotal 55,800$          55,800$            
Budgetary Appropriations

30-985-471-031 Transfrom 31: Sewer Cost Alloc 202,500$        202,500$          
30-985-471-064 Trans from 64 Regional Cost Alloc 80,000$          80,000$            

Subtotal 282,500$        282,500$          

Total Revenues 5,902,000$     5,827,000$       
Expenditures
Departmental Expenditures

30-660 Non-Departmental 1,145,400$     1,145,400$       
30-715 Public Services Administration 147,900$        147,900$          
30-720 Engineering 248,200$        248,200$          
30-725 Customer Service 489,000$        489,000$          
30-818 Water Distribution Operations 3,871,500$    3,796,500$       

Total Expenditures 5,902,000$     5,827,000$       

Variance of Revenues to Expenditures -$               -$                 

FY 12-13

Revenues
Operating Revenues

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 
FY 13 Budget Message—Adoption  

Page 11 of 31 
 

11

Section 5:  31:  Sewer Enterprise Fund 
 

31 SEWER ENTERPRISE FUND
City Manager City Council
Recommend Approved

31-310-433-420 Account Set Up Fee 25,000$          25,000$            
31-310-433-435 Sewer Taps 8,000$            8,000$              
31-310-433-485 Sewer User Revenues 4,065,000$     4,065,000$       
31-310-433-480 Sewer Surcharges 13,000$          13,000$            
31-310-433-440 Late Fee Charges 175,000$        175,000$          
31-310-433-460 Reconnect Service Fee 40,000$          40,000$            
31-310-433-495 FOG Monitoring Inspection Fee 7,000$            7,000$              
31-310-433-485 Sewer Code Violations 5,000$            5,000$              
31-310-455-500 Bad Debt Recovery 8,500$            8,500$              
31-310-455-501 Bad Debt Rec-Debt Set Off 5,000$            5,000$              

Subtotal 4,351,500$     4,351,500$       
Non-Operating Revenues

31-310-444-010 Investments 200$               200$                 
31-310-461-230 Vance Co DS NVHS Sewer 77,800$          77,800$            
31-310-477-052 Vance Co DS Ruin Ck Sewer 77,800$          77,800$            

Subtotal 155,800$        155,800$          
Budgetary Appropriations

31-990-490-999 Fund Balance Appropriated 100,000$        100,000$          
Subtotal 100,000$        100,000$          

Total Revenues 4,607,300$     4,607,300$       
Expenditures
Departmental Expenditures

31-660 Non-Departmental 1,876,900$     1,876,900$       
31-822 Water Reclamation Facility 2,119,500$     2,119,500$       
31-828 Sewer Collection Operations 405,500$        405,500$          
31-829 Sewer I & I Operations 205,400$        205,400$          

Total Expenditures 4,607,300$     4,607,300$       

Variance of Revenues to Expenditures -$               -$                 

FY 12-13

Revenues
Operating Revenues

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 
FY 13 Budget Message—Adoption  

Page 12 of 31 
 

12

Section 6:  64:  Regional Water Enterprise Fund 
 

64 REGIONAL WATER ENTERPRISE FUND
City Manager City Council
Recommend Approved

64-640-433-415 Sale of Water 4,410,000$     4,372,000$       
Subtotal 4,410,000$     4,372,000$       

Non-Operating Revenues
64-640-444-010 Investment Income 3,000$            3,000$              
64-640-455-010 Miscellaneous 7,000$            7,000$              
64-640-457-000 Sale of Assets -$               -$                  

Subtotal 10,000$          10,000$            
Budgetary Appropriations

64-990-490-999 Fund Balance Appropriation 41,500$          41,500$            
Subtotal 41,500$          41,500$            

Total Revenues 4,461,500$     4,423,500$       
Expenditures
Departmental Expenditures

64-660 Non-Departmental 2,240,400$     2,233,600$       
64-900 Regional Water Plant 2,221,100$     2,189,900$       

-$               -$                  
Total Expenditures 4,461,500$     4,423,500$       

Variance of Revenues to Expenditures -$               -$                 

Operating Revenues
Revenues

FY 12-13

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 
FY 13 Budget Message—Adoption  

Page 13 of 31 
 

13

Section 7:  12:  Debt Service Internal Service Fund 
 

12 DEBT SERVICE INTERNAL SERVICE FUND
City Manager City Council
Recommend Approved

Budgetary Appropriations
12-980-461-010 Transfer from: 10 General Fund 917,200$        917,200$          
10-980-461-030 Transfer from: 30 Water Fund 556,500$        556,500$          
10-980-461-031 Transfer from: 31 Sewer Fund 756,500$        756,500$          
10-980-461-064 Transfer from: 64 Regional Fund 1,173,800$     1,173,800$       

Subtotal 3,404,000$     3,404,000$       

Total Revenues 3,404,000$     3,404,000$       
Expenditures
Departmental Expenditures

12-101 City Hall 32,800$          32,800$            
12-102 Aquatic Center 322,000$        322,000$          
12-103 Police Department Building 465,500$        465,500$          
12-110 Debt Service Accounts 96,900$          96,900$            
12-201 Overhead Water Storage-Water Share 33,400$          33,400$            
12-202 Warren County Water Line 10,400$          10,400$            
12-212 2011 Revenue Bonds-Water Portion 512,700$        512,700$          
12-301 Sanitary Sewer 146,700$        146,700$          
12-302 Northern Vance HS Sewer 74,000$          74,000$            
12-303 Ruin Creek Sewer Outfall 135,100$        135,100$          
12-312 2011 Revenue Bonds--Sewer Portion 400,700$        400,700$          
12-401 Overhead Water Storage-Regional Share 16,000$          16,000$            
12-402 KLRWP Loopline 450,400$        450,400$          
12-403 KLRWP Priority 1 Improvements 515,700$        515,700$          
12-404 KLRWP Raw Water 191,700$        191,700$          

Total Expenditures 3,404,000$     3,404,000$       

Variance of Revenues to Expenditures -$               -$                 

FY 12-13

Revenues

 
 
Section 8:  40: Public Library Trust Fund 
 

40 PUBLIC LIBRARY TRUST FUND
City Manager City Council
Recommend Approved

Budgetary Appropriations
40-400-461-020 Transfer from 10: General Fund -$               -$                  

Subtotal -$               -$                  

Total Revenues -$               -$                  
Expenditures
Departmental Expenditures

40-850 Library -$               -$                 

Total Expenditures -$               -$                  

Variance of Revenues to Expenditures -$               -$                 

FY 12-13

Revenues

 
 



 
FY 13 Budget Message—Adoption  

Page 14 of 31 
 

14

Section 9:  50:  Law Enforcement Officers’ Retirement Trust Fund 
 

50 LAW ENFORCEMENT OFFICERS' RETIREMENT TRUST FUND
City Manager City Council
Recommend Approved

Budgetary Appropriations
50-550-491-000 Fund Balance Appropriation -$               -$                  

Subtotal -$               -$                  

Total Revenues -$               -$                  
Expenditures
Departmental Expenditures

50-860 Non-Departmental -$               -$                 

Total Expenditures -$               -$                  

Variance of Revenues to Expenditures -$               -$                 

FY 12-13

Revenues

 
 
Section 10:  51:  Elmwood Cemetery Trust Fund 
 

51 ELMWOOD CEMETERY TRUST FUND
City Manager City Council
Recommend Approved

Budgetary Appropriations
51-480-444-010 Investments 1,000$            1,000$              

Subtotal 1,000$            1,000$              

Total Revenues 1,000$            1,000$              
Expenditures
Departmental Expenditures

51-855 Cemetery 1,000$            1,000$             

Total Expenditures 1,000$            1,000$              

Variance of Revenues to Expenditures -$               -$                 

FY 12-13

Revenues

 
 



 
FY 13 Budget Message—Adoption  

Page 15 of 31 
 

15

Section 11:  70:  Utilities Capital Reserve 
Fund

70 UTILITIES CAPITAL RESERVE FUND
City Manager City Council
Recommend Approved

70-801-444-010 Investments 100$               100$                 
Subtotal 100$               100$                 

Budgetary Appropriations
70-801-461-030 Trans from 30: Water Fund 44,600$          44,600$            
70-851-461-031 Trans from 31: Sewer Fund 77,800$          77,800$            

Subtotal 122,400$        122,400$          

Total Revenues 122,500$        122,500$          
Expenditures
Departmental Expenditures

70-801-509-850 Water Reserve 44,700$          44,700$            
70-851-509-850 Sewer Reserve 77,800$          77,800$           

Total Expenditures 122,500$        122,500$          

Variance of Revenues to Expenditures -$               -$                 

FY 12-13

Revenues
Miscellaneous Revenues

 
 
 
Section 12:  72:  General Capital Reserve Fund 
 

72 GENERAL CAPITAL RESERVE FUND
City Manager City Council
Recommend Approved

72-722-444-010 Investments -$               -$                  
Subtotal -$               -$                  

Total Revenues -$               -$                  
Expenditures
Departmental Expenditures

72-875 Capital Reserve -$               -$                 

Total Expenditures -$               -$                  

Variance of Revenues to Expenditures -$               -$                 

FY 12-13

Revenues
Miscellaneous Revenues

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 
FY 13 Budget Message—Adoption  

Page 16 of 31 
 

16

 
Section 13:  73:  Economic Development Capital Reserve Fund 

73 ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT CAPITAL RESERVE FUND
City Manager City Council
Recommend Approved

73-980-461-010 Transfer from 10: General Fund 10,000$          10,000$            
Subtotal 10,000$          10,000$            

Total Revenues 10,000$          10,000$            
Expenditures
Departmental Expenditures

73-660 Non-Departmental 10,000$          10,000$           

Total Expenditures 10,000$          10,000$            

Variance of Revenues to Expenditures -$               -$                 

FY 12-13

Revenues
Budgetary Appropriations

 
 
Section 14:  78:  Regional Water Capital Reserve Fund 
 

78 REGIONAL WATER CAPITAL RESERVE FUND
City Manager City Council
Recommend Approved

Corps of Engineers 78-911-461-064 Transfer from Regional Fund 64 9,000$            9,000$              
Corps of Engineers 78-911-444-010 Investment Income 100$               100$                 
20 MGD 78-922-461-064 Transfer from Regional Fund 64 610,000$        610,000$          
20 MGD 78-922-444-010 Investment Income 4,100$            4,100$              
Regional CR 78-865-461-064 Transfer from Regional Fund 64 50,000$          50,000$            
Regional CR 78-865-444-010 Investment Income 1,000$            1,000$              

Subtotal 674,200$        674,200$          

Total Revenues 674,200$        674,200$          
Expenditures
Departmental Expenditures

78-911-509-850 Corp of Engineers Reserve 9,100$            9,100$              
78-922-509-850 20 MGD Reserve 614,100$        614,100$          
78-865-509-850 Regional Capital Reserve 51,000$          51,000$           

Total Expenditures 674,200$        674,200$          

Variance of Revenues to Expenditures -$               -$                 

FY 12-13

Revenues
Revenues by Project

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 
FY 13 Budget Message—Adoption  

Page 17 of 31 
 

17

Section 15:  79:  Rate Stabilization Capital Reserve Fund 
 

79 RATE STABILIZATION CAPITAL RESERVE FUND
City Manager City Council
Recommend Approved

Water Plant 79-641-433-418 Water Reservation Fee-Granville Co. 951,100$        951,100$          
Water Plant 79-641-444-010 Investments 10,000$          10,000$            
HWRF 79-652-461-031 Transfer from 31: Sewer Fund 264,200$        264,200$          
HWRF 79-652-444-010 Investments 1,000$            1,000$              

Subtotal 1,226,300$     1,226,300$       

Total Revenues 1,226,300$     1,226,300$       
Expenditures
Departmental Expenditures
Water Plant 79-641-535-750 20 MGD Rate Stabilization 961,100$        961,100$          
HWRF 79-652-535-750 HWRF Rate Stabilization 265,200$        265,200$          

Total Expenditures 1,226,300$     1,226,300$       

Variance of Revenues to Expenditures -$               -$                 

FY 12-13

Revenues
Revenues by Project

 
 
Section 16:  Ad Valorem Property Tax Rate Established 
 
There is hereby levied an Ad Valorem property tax rate of $0.585 on each one hundred dollars ($100) 
valuation of taxable property, both real and personal, as listed for taxes as of 1 January 2012 for the 
purpose of raising the revenue set forth in the 10: General Fund budget estimates in order to finance its 
authorized appropriations necessary for the proper running of the government and delivery of its 
services to citizens and customers.  The 2012 Ad Valorem property tax revenue is based on an 
estimated overall valuation of $957,736,800 at a collection rate of 93.5%. 
 
Section 17:  Sanitation Fee Increased 
 
The monthly Sanitation Fee shall increase from $26.00 to $26.50 for all bills rendered on or after 1 July 
2012, and shall be reflected in the Annual Fee Schedule. 
 
Section 18:  Regional Water Rate Increased 
 
The Regional Water Rate shall be increased by 4% for all bills rendered on or after 1 July 2012 as 
reflected in the following table, and shall be included in the Annual Fee Schedule. 

 
Regional Water Rate FY 12-13 

  Fixed Rate Used Rate 
Per Million Gallons  $          1,235.00  $         1,931.00  

     
 
 
 



 
FY 13 Budget Message—Adoption  

Page 18 of 31 
 

18

Section 19:  Water Rate Increased 
 
The Water Rate shall be increased by 4% on all customers, unless proscribed differently via a water 
sales contract, for all bills rendered on or after 1 July 2012 as reflected in the following Table, and said 
rates shall be included in the Annual Fee Schedule: 
 

In City Out of City Per 1,000 Gallons In City Out of City
Regular Water Users

0 - 499 cubic feet (minimum) 10.07$             25.18$              
500 - 4,000 cubic feet 2.28$               5.70$                
All Over first  4,000 cubic feet 1.72$               4.30$                

Large Quantity Water Users
First 100,000 cubic feet 1.29$               3.19$                
All Over 100,000 cubic feet 1.03$               2.57$                

Kittrell Water Association
0 - 499 cubic feet (minimum) 22.66$                      

500 - 4,000 cubic feet 5.13$                        

All Over first  4,000 cubic feet 3.87$                        

Bulk Water Us\sers
0 - 500 gallons (minimum) 7.96$               13.79$           

All over 500 gallons, per gallon 0.006$             0.009$           

Bulk User
Per Gallon

Water Rates  FY 12-13
Special Governmental Contract 

Rate
Per 100 Cubic Feet

Customer Groups

 
 
Section 20:  Governmental Water Sales Contract  
 
The water sales rates for the Franklin County Water Rate and the Granville County Triangle North 
Water Rate shall be increased by 4% on all bills rendered on or after 1 July 2013. 
 
Section 21:  Sewer Rate Increased 
 
The Sewer Rate shall be increased by 9% on all customers for all bills rendered on or after 1 July 2012 
as reflected in the following Table, and said rates shall be included in the Annual Fee Schedule.   
 

Minimum 0 - 10,000 CF Over 10,001 CF
Charge per 100 CF per 100 CF

In City 13.21$         plus 4.70$            3.37$                 
Out of City 33.01$         plus 11.76$          8.46$                 

Note:  CF = cubic feet of water consumed or sewer metered through a sewer measuring device

Sewer Rates  FY 12-13

Plus

 
 

Section 22:  Special Authorizations 
 
The City Manager shall be authorized to re-allocate departmental appropriations among the various 
objects of expenditures within any budget department as he deems appropriate and necessary.  
Additionally, he shall be authorized to re-allocate departmental appropriations among other departments 
within the same fund via an intra-fund transfer as he deems appropriate and necessary.  Notation of 
such appropriations shall be made to the City Council on the next financial report.  All inter-fund 



 
FY 13 Budget Message—Adoption  

Page 19 of 31 
 

19

transfers must also be approved in advance by the Finance Director. 
 
Section 23:  Restrictions 
 

 The inter-fund transfer of funds shall be made only with the prior consent of City Council via a 
formal Budget Ordinance Amendment. 

 
 Contingency funds shall only be appropriated with the prior consent of City Council via a 

formal Budget Ordinance Amendment. 
 

 Funds may only be appropriated from the Capital Reserve funds 70: Utilities Capital Reserve 
Fund; 72: General Capital Reserve Fund; 73: Economic Development Capital Reserve Fund; 78: 
Regional Water Capital Reserve Fund; and 79:  Rate Stabilization Capital Reserve Fund; with 
the prior consent of the City Council via a formal Budget Ordinance Amendment. 

 
Section 24:  Capital Project and Grant Project Funds 
 

 The City Manager may recommend to the City Council the establishment of any new 
capital project and or grant project, or recommend amendments to existing capital project 
and/or grant project via a formal Budget Ordinance Amendment.  

 
 Capital projects and grant projects are considered to be open for the life of the project and 

shall be reported to City Council in the same manner in which regular financial reports 
are provided. 

 
 Once a capital and/or grant project is authorized by City Council, the City Manager may 

treat said project as though it were any other operating fund provided if such actions are 
consistent with project and/or grant restrictions and guidelines.  
 

Section 25:  Utilization of Budget and Budget Ordinance 
 
The FY 12-13 Budget Ordinance and the Budget it adopts shall be the basis of the financial plan 
for the City of Henderson for the period beginning 1 July 2012 and ending 30 June 2013. The 
City Manager shall administer guidance and direction to the Department Directors and/or other 
duly authorized staff to implement their appropriate portion of the Budget.  Copies of the Budget 
Ordinance and its appropriate detail shall be provided to the Finance Director and all Department 
Directors. The Finance Director shall establish records consistent with the Budget and its 
authorizing Ordinance and in compliance with the North Carolina General Statutes and rules and 
regulations as may exist or be promulgated in the future by the North Carolina Local 
Government Commission. 
 
Section 26:  Fee Schedule Affirmed and Readopted  
 
The Annual Fee Schedule incorporates the rates and fees associated the various changes for 
services and penalties for violations of City Codes.  The Annual Fee Schedule is more fully 



 
FY 13 Budget Message—Adoption  

Page 20 of 31 
 

20

articulated in Attachment 1 to this Ordinance and is hereby reaffirmed and adopted as part of this 
Ordinance. 
 
Section 27:  Utilities Multi-Year Capital Improvements Plan Affirmed and Readopted 
 
The Utilities Multi-Year Capital Improvements Plan for the period 2012 – 2021, and initially 
approved on 13 June 2011 via Resolution 11-59 is hereby reaffirmed and readopted as the City  
of Henderson’s multi-year capital improvements plan for its Regional Water, Water and Sewer 
systems.  Said plan is on permanent file in the Office of the City Clerk and is incorporated herein 
as part of this Ordinance by reference. 
 
Section 28:  Effective Date 
 
This Ordinance shall become effective at midnight on 1 July 2012. 
 


 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 


 
The foregoing Ordinance 12-38, upon motion of Council Member *** and second by Council 
Member ***, and having been submitted to a roll call vote and received the following votes and 
was **** on this the 11th  day of June  2012:  YES:  . NO:  .   ABSTAIN:  .   ABSENT:   .          
    
 
 

___________________________________ 
James D. O’Geary, Mayor 

ATTEST: 
 
_______________________________ 
Esther McCrackin, City Clerk 
Reference:  Minute Book 42, p.**; CAF 12-A-62 
 
 __________ 
 



 
FY 13 Budget Message—Adoption  

Page 21 of 31 
 

21

 
 
STATE OF NORTH CAROLINA - CITY OF HENDERSON 
I, Esther McCrackin, the duly appointed, qualified City Clerk of the City of Henderson, do 
hereby certify the attached is a true and exact copy of Ordinance 12-38  adopted by the 
Henderson, City Council in Regular Session on 11 June 2012. This Ordinance is recorded in 
Ordinance Book 8, p.***. 
 
Witness my hand and corporate seal of the City, this ****. 
 
_________________________ 
Esther McCrackin 
City Clerk 
City of Henderson, North Carolina 
 
 
Reviewed by:  _______________________________ Date:  _______________________ 
                         Katherine C. Brafford, Finance Director 
 
Reviewed by:  _______________________________ Date: _______________________ 
  A. Ray Griffin, Jr., City Manager  



 
FY 13 Budget Message—Adoption  

Page 22 of 31 
 

22

 
Attachment No. 1 

Annual Fee Schedule 
 
Cemetery1 
 Grave Plot………………………………………………………………………..………………..…. $750.00 
  
Engineering 
 Soil Erosion & Sedimentation Control Permit  
  Plan Review Fee…………………………………………………………….... $75.00 (.50 - .999 acres) 
    $100.00 (1- 3 acres)  
    $125.00 minimum (more than 3 acres plus $20.00 per acre) 
 Soil Erosion & Sedimentation Control Permit  
  Permit Inspection Fee………………………………..………………………… $125.00 (.50- .999 acres) 
    $225.00 (1-3 acres) 
    $325.00 minimum (more than 3 acres plus $25.00 per acre) 
 Stormwater Permit Review Fee……………………………………………………………………… $400.00 
 Maps…………………………………………………………………………………….……. $1.00 to $20.00 
 Petition to Close Street………………………………………………………….…………………… $800.00 
 
Finance 
 Late Fee (One Time Waiver with Good Standing History)…………………………………………… $12.00 
 Privilege Licenses ………………………………………………………………….  (See Privilege Licenses)  
 Reconnection Fee……………………………………………………………………………………… $13.00 
 Returned Check Fees……………………………………………………………………………….… $25.00 
 Security Deposits 
  Residential Services Inside City Limits 
  Water, Sewer & Sanitation ………………………………………………………………………. $75.00 
  Water & Sewer only (those living in apartment complexes providing commercial green boxes).. $75.00 
  Water or Sewer & Sanitation………………………………………………………………….. $75.00 
  Residential Services Outside City Limits 
  Water & Sewer………………………………………………………………………………...… $100.00 
  Water Only………………………………………………………………………………………. $100.00 
  Sewer Only………………………………………………………………………………………. $100.00 
 Commercial/Non-Profit & Industrial Services Inside City Limits  

 (Small User: 0 to 5,000 cf) 
 Water, Sewer & Sanitation (businesses in downtown area that do not utilize commercial 
  Green box service)………………………………………………………………………… $200.00 
 Water & Sewer…………………………………………………………………………………. $150.00 

  Commercial/Non-Profit & Industrial Services Outside City Limits  
 (Small User: 0 to 5,000 cf) 

  Water & Sewer…………………………………………………………………………………. $350.00 
  Water only……………………………………………………………………………………… $110.00 
  Commercial/Non-Profit & Industrial Services Inside City Limits  

 (Medium User:5,001 – 20,000 cf) 
  Water & Sewer…………………………………………………………………………………. $400.00 
  Commercial/Non-Profit & Industrial Services Outside City Limits  
   (Medium User: 5,001 – 20,000 cf) 

 Water & Sewer………………………………………………………………………………… $750.00 
 Water only…………………………………………………………………………………….. $500.00 

  Non-Profit & Industrial Services Inside City Limits  
 (Large User: > 20,001 cf) 
 Water & Sewer…………………………………………………………………...................... $1,000.00 

                                                 
1 City stopped opening/closing graves in 2011 – thus charges are not longer valid. 



 
FY 13 Budget Message—Adoption  

Page 23 of 31 
 

23

  Commercial/Non-Profit & Industrial Services Outside City Limits  
 (Large: > 20,001 cf) 
 Water & Sewer………………………………………………………………………………... $2,000.00 
 Water only……………………………………………………………………………………. $800.00 

 

Fire 
 Fire Reports……………………………………………………………………………..……………… $1.00 
 Fire Code Violation Citations 
  Approved Fire Evacuation Plan Required and Posted…………………………………………...   $50.00 
  Street Address not Posted…………………………………………………………………..…….  $50.00 
  Street Address not Visible………………………………………………………..........................  $50.00 
  Key Boxes…………………………………………………………………………………..…….  $50.00 
  Breach in Fire Wall/Fire Stops………………………………………………………….……….  $50.00 
  Fire/Exit Door Inoperative………………………………………………………….…………… $200.00 
  Fire Alarm Needs Testing……………………………………………………….……………… $50.00 
  Sprinkler or Fire Alarm Inoperable…………………………………………………………....   $200.00 
  Sprinkler/Standpipe not Complying with Code……………………………………………….... $50.00 
  Sprinkler Heads Blocked/Covered (immediate)………………………………………………… $500.00 
  Standpipe System not Complying with Code…………………………………………………… $50.00 
  Portable Fire Extinguishers……………………………………………………………………….. $50.00 
  Fire Alarm and Detection Systems……………………………………………………………….. $50.00 
  Overcrowding (immediate)……………………………………………………………..…….… $500.00 
  Maximum Occupancy Load Certificate not Posted………………………………………………. $50.00 
  Storage in or on Fire Escape (immediate)………………………………………….…………… $500.00 
  Blocked Stairwells or Stairways……………………………………………………………….... $500.00 
  Blocked Means or Egress……………………………………………………………..…… $500.00 
  No Required Exit Directional Signs……………………………………………………………… $50.00 
  Exit Illuminated and Markings…………………………………………………………………… $50.00 
  Locked Exit Door (immediate)……………………………………………………..................... $500.00 
  Exit or Egress Door Needs Repair………………………………………………………………… $50.00 
  Fire Exit or Aisle Blocked………………………………………………………………………. $500.00 
  Spray Booth Not Complying to Code…………………………………………….……………… $50.00 
  All Other Code Violations…………………………………………………………………….…. $50.00 
   
Planning 
 Rezoning Application 
  Zoning Map Amendment to Residential District…………… $250.00 plus $50 per acre or part thereof 
  Zoning Map Amendment – Other………………………..$250.00 plus $100.00 per acre or part thereof 
 Review by Technical Review Committee…………………………………………………..………. $100.00 
 Sign Permit  
  0-50 sq. ft.………………………………………………………………………………………… $25.00  
  51 – 100 sq. ft……………………………………………………………………………………. $50.00 
  101 – 200 sq. ft………………………………………………………………………………….. $75.00 
  201 sq ft. and larger…………………………………………………………………………….. $100.00 
 Subdivision Plat Approval 
  Major………………………………………………………………………... $250.00 plus $10.00 per lot 
  Minor…………………………………………………………………………………………….. $150.00  
  Minor Residential……………………………………………………………………………….. $100.00 
  Exempt…………………………………………………………………………………………… $50.00 
 Special Use Permit ………………………………………………………………………………….. $250.00 
 Text Amendment 
  Change affecting only one subsection of Ordinance…………………………………………….. $100.00 
  Other……………………………………………………………………………………………. $150.00 
 Variances……………………………………………………………………………………………. $250.00 
 Zoning Permit 



 
FY 13 Budget Message—Adoption  

Page 24 of 31 
 

24

  Residential……………………………………………………………………………………….. $40.00 
  Commercial……………………………………………………………………………………… $50.00 
  Name Change/Change of Ownership…………………………………………………………….. $50.00 
  Home Occupation Permit………………………………………………………………………… $50.00 
  Certificate of Zoning Compliance……………………………………………………………….. $25.00 
 Zoning Ordinance……………………………………………………………………………………... $25.00 
 Subdivision Regulations………………………………………………………………………………. $25.00 
 Exempt Plat……………………………………………………………………………………….…… $50.00 
Police 
 Handicapped/Fire Lane Parking………………………………………………………..……..………. $75.00 
 Fire Hydrant, Loading Zone, Blocking Driveway, No  
  Parking Zone, Parking on Wrong Side of Street, Parking on  
  Sidewalk, Blocking Sidewalk/Crosswalk, Double Parking……………………………...…….…. $20.00 
 Overtime Parking, Parking too Close to Corner, Other………………………………………………… $8.00 
 
Privilege Fees 
 

Code/Category                                Fee  
 
1 Advertisement ……………………………………………………………………….... $35.00 
2  Amusements (Entertainments, Dances, Traveling, Banquet Room Rental)……........... $25.00 
3  Adult Entertainment Sales (Annual Fee)……………………………………………… $800.00  
4  Antique Furniture……………………………………………………………………… $50.00 
5  Auto Service Station…………………………………………………………………… $12.50  
6  Automobile Dealer (New & Used)……………………………………………………. $25.00  
7  Bakery Products………………………………………………………………………. $50.00 
8  Balloons, Novelties, Souvenirs……………………………………………………….. $10.00 
9  Barber Shops (Per Chair)……………………………………………………………..... $2.50 
10  Beauty Shops (Per Chair)…………………………………………………………..…... $2.50 
11  Beer Off Premises……………………………………………………………………... $5.00 
12  Beer On Premises……………………………………………………………………… $15.00 
13  Bicycle Dealer…………………………………………………………………………. $25.00  
14  Billiard Tables……………………………………………………………..…………… $25.00  
15  Book Store……………………………………………………………………………… $20.00  
16  Bowling Alleys (Per Lane)…………………………………………………………….. $10.00  
17  Brick Dealers and Manufacturers………………………………………………………. $20.00  
18  Brokers & Commission Merchants …………………………………………………..... $50.00 
19  Building Materials………………………………………………………………………. $50.00  
20  Cabinet & Carpenter Shops (1 Emp)…………………………………………………… $20.00  
21  Cabinet & Carpenter Shops (2 Or More Emp)………………………………………….. $50.00  
22  Car Wash……………………………………………………………………………..… $12.50 
23  Carnival Companies……………………………………………………………………. $300.00  
24  Chain Stores…………………………………………………………………………….. $50.00  
25  Check Cashing Business………………………………………………………………. $100.00  
26  Cigarette, Cigar, Tobacco………………………………………………………………... $4.00 
27  Circus & Animal Shows (Per Day)……………………………………………………… $25.00 
28  Clothing Stores…………………………………………………………………………. $50.00  
29  Cold Storage & Freezer Locker……………………………………………………….. $100.00  
20  Collection and Claim Agencies…………………………………………………............. $50.00  
31  Confectionery & Fruit Stands…………………………………………………………… $30.00  
32  Contractor - Electrical ………………………………………………………………….. $50.00  
33  Contractor – General……………………………………………………………………. $10.00 
34  Contractor – Heating / Air………………………………………………………………. $50.00 
35  Contractor – Plumbing………………………………………………………………….. $50.00 
36  Contractor – Sprinkler System………………………………………………………… $100.00 
37  Contractor – Wallpaper Hanging……………………………………………………….. $20.00 



 
FY 13 Budget Message—Adoption  

Page 25 of 31 
 

25

38  Contractor -  Roofing…………………………………………………………………… $50.00 
39  Contractor – Painting…………………………………………………………………… .$10.00 
40  Cotton Warehouse…………………………………………………………………….. $100.00 
41  Creameries or Dairies…………………………………………………………………… $50.00  
42  Day Care………………………………………………………………………………… $50.00 
43  Dealer of Firearms………………………………………………………………............ $50.00 
44  Dealer of Other Weapons…………………………………………………………….. $200.00 
45  Drugstores……………………………………………………………………………….. $3.00  
46  Dry Cleaners…………………………………………………………………………..... $50.00  
47  Electric Company……………………………………………………......................... $100.00  
48  Electronic Gaming Operations – (Per Terminal)……………………………………. $1,000.00 
49  Electronic Gaming Operations – Annual Fe………………………………………… $2,000.00 
50  Employment Agencies………………………………………………………………… $100.00 
51  Express Companies……………………………………………………………………. $100.00  
52  Feed or Grain Stores……………………………………………………………………. $50.00  
53  Fertilizer Dealers……………………………………………………………………….. $50.00  
54  Fish & Oyster Dealer – Retail………………………………………………………….. $50.00  
55  Florist…………………………………………………………………........................... $30.00  
54  Gas Company………………………………………………………………………….. $100.00 
55  Gas, Benzene, Lube, Oil & Grease……………………………………………………. $100.00  
56  Grocery Stores………………………………………………………………………….. $30.00  
57  Hardware Stores………………………………………………………………………… $50.00  
58  Harvesting & Agricultural Machine……………………………………………………. $50.00  
59  Health Facilities, Spas, Gyms, etc……………………………………………………… $50.00 
60  Hotels Per Room ($25.00 Minimum)……………………………………………………. $1.00 
61  Ice Cream Mfg, & Dealer - Retail…………………………………………………….…. $2.50  
62  Ice Cream Mfg. & Dealer - Wholesale…………………………………………………. $25.00  
63  Ice Dealers……………………………………………………………………………… $50.00  
64  Itinerant Merchants & Salesman………………………………………………………. $100.00  
65  Jewelry Repair………………………………………………………………………..…. $20.00  
66  Jewelry Stores……………………………………………………………………….…. $50.00  
67  Juke Box (Each)………………………………………………………............................... $5.00  
68  Junk Dealers……………………………………………………………………………. $75.00  
69  Knitting Mills………………………………………………………………………….. $50.00  
70  Laundries/Launderettes………………………………………………………………… $30.00  
71  Lawn Care & Mowing…………………………………………………………………. $50.00 
72  Loan Agencies ……………………………………………………………………….. $100.00  
73  Locksmiths……………………………………………………………………………... $50.00 
74  Lunch Stands……………………………………………………………………………. $5.00  
75  Manufacturers………………………………………………………………………….. $10.00  
76  Meat Retailers………………………………………………………………………….. $50.00  
77  Meat Wholesale ……………………………………………………………………… $100.00  
78  Merry-Go-Round, Etc. (Arcade Games)………………………………………………. .$50.00  
79  Metal & Machine Shop………………………………………………………………… $50.00  
80  Mills, Corn, Flour or Feed………………………………………………………........... $60.00  
81  Miscellaneous………………………………………………………………………….. $50.00 
82  Monument Erecting & Sales…………………………………………………………… $80.00 
83  Motorcycle/ATV/Scooter Dealer……………………………………………………… $12.50  
84  Movie Theaters……………………………………………………………………….. $200.00 
85  Musical Instrument Sales……………………………………………………………… $10.00  
86  Nail Salon (per chair)…………………………………………………………………… $2.50 
87  Newspaper Sales……………………………………………………………………….. $50.00  
88  Office Supplies & Servicing…………………………………………………………… $50.00  
89  Operators of Vending Machines………………………………………………………. $20.00  
90  Outdoor Theaters………………………………………………………………........... $100.00  
91  Pawnbroker…………………………………………………………………………… $100.00  



 
FY 13 Budget Message—Adoption  

Page 26 of 31 
 

26

92  Peddler (Cart or Vehicle)………………………………………………………………. $25.00  
93  Peddler (on foot)……………………………………………………………….............. $10.00 
94  Photo Engravers……………………………………………………………………….. $20.00  
95  Piano Repairers & Tuners………………………………………………………………. $5.00  
96  Printing Establishments………………………………………………………………… $20.00  
97  Rags, Hides, Wastepaper Dealers………………………………………………………. $20.00  
98  Repair Shop……………………………………………………………………………. $20.00 
99  Restaurants (0-4 Seats)………………………………………………………………… $25.00  
100  Restaurants (5 or More Seats)…………………………………..................................... $42.50  
101  Retail Merchants…………………………………………………………………….. $50.00  
102  Secondhand Dealers……………………………………………………………………. $40.00 
103  Security Dealers………………………………………………………………………. $100.00  
104  Service Merchant………………………………………………………………………. $50.00 
105  Shoe Shop………………………………………………………………………………. $20.00 
106  Sporting Goods…………………………………………………………………………. $50.00 
107  Storage Warehouse/ Mini Storage…………………………………………………….. $100.00  
108  Sundries…………………………………………………………………………………. $4.00 
109  Tailors…………………………………………………………………………………. $30.00  
110  Tanning Salon (Per Unit)………………………………………………………….......... $5.00  
111  Tattoo or Body Piercing ( Per Emp)…………………………………………………. $100.00 
112  Taxicab (Per Vehicle)………………………………………………………………….. $30.00  
113  Telegraph Companies………………………………………………………………….. $50.00 
114  Tobacco Leaf Dealers………………………………………………………………….. $50.00  
115  Tobacco Warehouses…………………………………………………............................. $50.00  
116  Undertakers & Coffin Retailers………………………………………............................ $50.00  
117  Upholstery Shops………………………………………………………………………. $20.00  
118  Video Games (Each)……………………………………………………………………. $5.00  
119  Video Rental…………………………………………………………………………… $25.00  
120  Wholesale Auto, Equipment/Supplies…………………………………………………. $37.50 
121  Wholesale Dealers……………………………………………………………………. $100.00  
122  Wine On Premises……………………………………………………………………… $15.00  
123  Wine Off Premises…………………………………………………………………….. $10.00  
124  Wood & Coal Dealer – Retail…………………………………………………………. $50.00 
125  Wood & Coal Dealer – Wholesale…………………………………………………. $150.00 
126  Wood Dealers………………………………………………………………………….. $20.00  
127  Wrestling & Boxing……………………………………………………………………. $100.00  

  
Regional Water 
 Bacteria Analysis………………………………………………………………………………………. $50.00 
 Potable Water (Used rate)…………………………………………………………………………... $1,235.00 
 Potable Water (Fixed Rate)………………………………………………………………………….$1,931.00 
 
Sanitation 
 Sanitation Charge – Monthly      
   1 Pickup per week per dwelling (includes one 96 gallon roll-out)………………………….….… $26.50 
   Additional 96 gallon roll-out container…………………………………………….………… $3.87 
  2 Pickups per week per business…………………………………………………….…................. $52.00 
  3 Pickups per week per business………………………………………………….…………….… $78.00 
  4 Pickups per week per business………………………………………………………………… $104.00 
  5 Pickups per week per business………………………………………………………................ $130.00 
 Roll-out Container Replacement Fee…………………………………………………………………. $75.00 
 Large Trash Collection Fee……………………………………………….…….. $75.00 per hr (min. $75.00) 
 Appliance Collection Fee……………………………………………….…………………. $15.00 per item 
 Commercial Recycle Monthly (ABC License only)  
  Weekly pickup…………………………………………………………………………………… $30.00 
 Construction Materials………………………………………….……….…… $350.00 per hr (min. $350.00)  



 
FY 13 Budget Message—Adoption  

Page 27 of 31 
 

27

 Landfill Fee (Business Customers only)………………………………..……………………………… $5.50 
 
Sewer Collection 
 Sewer Rates2 
  10,000 cubit ft or less (inside city)………………………… $13.21 minimum plus $4.70 per 100 cu. ft. 
  Over 10,001 cubit ft (inside city)……………………………$13.21 minimum plus $3.37 per 100 cu. ft. 
  10,000 cubit ft or less (outside city)……………………… $33.01 minimum plus $11.76 per 100 cu. ft. 
  Over 10,001 cubit ft (outside city)……………………….………$33.01 minimum plus $8.46 per cu. ft. 
  
Sewer Collection (Con’t) 
 Sewer Taps 
  4” Sewer Tap………………………………………………………………………………….… $1,000 
  6” Sewer Tap (within manhole)………………………………………………………………… $1,200 
  Above 6” Sewer Tap…………………………………………………. Actual cost of labor, equipment &  
    material plus 10% 
 Capacity Usage Fee……………………………………………….…………………………….. $0.75/gallon 
    (gallons determined by type of establishment) 
 Rentals 
  Jet Vac Machine……………………………………………………….…….………… $300.00 per hour 
 
Sewer Collection I&I 
 Rentals 
  TV Camera Truck……………………………………………………..……………..… $200.00 per hour 
 
Street 
  Street Cuts     
  Asphalt Street (20’0” wide)………………………………………………………………..…… $150.00 
  Concrete Base Street (more than 4”)……………………………………………......................... $350.00 
  Concrete Base Street (less than 4”)…………………………………………………………..…. $320.00 
  Unpaved Street……………………………………………………………………………..…… $100.00 
 Sidewalk Cuts 
  Concrete Sidewalk (except Garnett St. from Spring St. to Church St.)……………………….... $100.00 
  Garnett Street (from Church St. to Spring St.)……………………………………………….…. $150.00 
  Curb and Gutter Cut (3 ft. minimum charge)  ………………………………………………...   $15.00/ft  
 Encroachment Fee………………………………………………………………………………….. $20.00 
 
Water Distribution 
 Water Rates 
  0 – 499 cubic ft. (minimum fee – inside city)…………………………………………………… $10.07 
  0 – 499 cubic ft. (minimum fee - outside city)…………………………………………………... $25.18 
  500 – 4,000 cubic ft. (additional fee - inside city)…….……………….………… $2.28 per 100 cubic ft. 
  500 – 4,000 cubic ft. (additional fee - outside city)……………………………….$5.70 per 100 cubic ft. 
  Consumption exceeding 1st 4,000 cubic ft. (additional fee - inside city)………… $1.72 per 100 cubic ft. 
  Consumption exceeding 1st 4,000 cubic ft. (additional fee - outside city)…….... $4.30 per 100 cubic ft. 
  
 Large Quantity Water Rates 
  First 100,000 cubit ft. (inside city)………………………………………………. $1.29 per 100 cubic ft. 
  First 100,000 cubic ft. (outside city)…………………………………………….. $3.19 per 100 cubic ft. 
  Consumption exceeding 100,000 cubic ft. (inside city)………………….….…. $1.03 per 100 cubic ft. 
  Consumption exceeding 100,000 cubic ft. (outside city)…………………….… $2.57 per 100 cubic ft. 
 Water Taps 
  ¾” Water Tap………………………………………………………………….…….………… $1,235.00 
  1” Water Tap………………………………………………………….……….………………. $1,340.00 
  1” Water Tap w/ two ¾” Branch Meters………………..…………………………………….. $1,590.00 

                                                 
2 CF = Cubic Feet of water consumed or sewer metered through a sewer measuring device. 



 
FY 13 Budget Message—Adoption  

Page 28 of 31 
 

28

  Above 1” Taps……………………….………… Actual cost of labor, equipment & materials plus 10% 
  
 Kittrell Water Association 
  0 – 499 cubic feet (minimum)…………………………………………………………………….. $22.66 
  500 – 4,000 cubic feet (additional fee)……………………………………………………………. $5.13 
  Over 4,000 cubic feet (additional fee)…………………………………..………………………… $3.87 
 
Water Distribution (Con’t) 
 Bulk Water  
  Inside Rate………………………………..……… $7.96 service connection (includes first 500 gallons) 
     .006/gallons for any amount over 500 
  Outside Rate…………………………………..… $13.79 service connection (includes first 500 gallons) 
     .009/gallon for any amount over  500 
 Capacity Usage Fee………………………………………………... $0.50/gallon (gallons are determined by  
    type of establishment) 
 Set Meter Fee (Taps already in place)…………………………………………….…………………. $300.00 
 Fire Protection Sprinkler Fee…………………………………………………………… based on sq. footage 
 Fire Hydrant Meter Deposit Fee (95% refundable if 
  returned in good condition)…………………………………………..……………………….. $1,000.00 
 
Water Distribution/Sewer Collection 
 Utility Reconnection Fee………………………………………………………….….....…………….. $40.00 
 Account Set-up Fee…………………………………………………………………………………… $20.00 
 Late Payment Penalty…………………………………………………………….…………………… $12.00 
 Meter Tampering Fee………………………………………………………………………………... $200.00 
 Rental Fees (Add Personnel/Supervision/Materials fees below to rental fee) 
  Pickup Trucks (3/4 and 1 Ton)……………………….………………………………… $25.00 per hour 
  Backhoe…………………………………………………………….…………………... $60.00 per hour 
  Dump Truck………………………………………………………………….….……… $40.00 per hour 
  Tamp. Concrete Saw……………………………………………………….…………… $20.00 per hour 
  Air Compressor…………………………………………………………….…………… $20.00 per hour 
  Personnel………………………………………………….…………………. Employee wage plus 10% 
  Supervision Charge…………………………………………………….……………… $100.00 per hour 
  Materials………………………………………………………………………... Material Cost plus 10% 
 
Water Reclamation 
 Sewer Surcharges 
  Biochemical Oxygen Demand…………………….……………………….………………… $0.1941 lb. 
  Chemical Oxygen Demand……………………………………………….…………………. $0.0968 lb. 
  Total Suspended Solids…………………………………………………..….………………. $0.0989 lb. 
  Total Kjeldahl Nitrogen……………………………………………………………………... $1.4845 lb. 
  Total Phosphorus……………………………………………………………………..… $2.8697 lb. 
 Sampling Fee……………………………………………………………………………….... $9.06 to $62.63 
 Priority Pollutant Scan – Sampling Fees……………………………………………………..……. $1,661.04 
 Mercury Clean Sampling Fee……………………………………………………………………….. $377.52 
 Compliance Inspection – Pretreatment………………………………………………........................ $754.98 
 Toxicity: Mini Chronic/Full Range……………………………………………………. $490.73 - $1,094.79 
 Permit Fee for Discharge (based on gallons per day)…………………………………….. $305.95 – $758.49 
 Permit Fee for Discharge of Groundwater Remediation Project…………………………………….. $605.52 
 FOG Compliance Inspection and Monitoring………………………………………………..… $7.64 per mo. 
 FOG Permit Fee……………………………………………………………………………………… $153.00 
 

Recreation  
  
  Registration Fees – Youth  



 
FY 13 Budget Message—Adoption  

Page 29 of 31 
 

29

  Youth Athletics  Registration Fee (County Resident) 
   Football, Volleyball, Soccer & Basketball……………………………………..……………. $30.00 
  Youth Athletics Registration Fee (Non-Resident) 
   Football, Volleyball, Soccer & Basketball…………………………………..………………. $45.00 
  Babe Ruth Baseball & Softball……………………………………………………………………. $30.00 
  All Star…………………………………………………………………………………………….. $20.00 
 
 Youth Sponsorship Fees  
  T-Ball League Baseball…………………………………………………………………………. $550.00 
  Rookie League Baseball………………………………………………………………………… $750.00 
  Cal Ripken League Minor Baseball ……………………………………………………………. $350.00 
  Cal Ripken League Major Baseball……………………………………………………………. $375.00 
  Babe Ruth League Baseball……………………………………………………………………. $400.00 
  Babe Ruth League 8-Under Softball…………………………………………………………… $750.00 
  Babe Ruth League 10-Under Softball………………………………………………………….. $350.00 
  Babe Ruth League 12-Under Softball………………………………………………………….. $350.00 
  Babe Ruth League 16-Under Softball………………………………………….……………….. $350.00 
  Youth Basketball, Soccer  & Volleyball……………………………………...……………….. $250.00 
 
 Recreation Insurance………………………………………………………………………………...… $12.00 
 
 Registration Fees - Adult  
  Team Registration Fee (Non-County Resident – add $10.00 per person to fees below) 
   Industrial League Basketball, Softball…………………………………………………….. $420.00 
   Open League Basketball…………………………………………………………………… $420.00 
   Women’s Open Softball…………………………………………………………………… $300.00 
   Men’s Open Softball………………………………………………………………………. $420.00 
 
 Rentals (See Rentals – For- Profit or Rentals – Non-Profit also) 
  Batting Cage per hour (County)……………………………………………………………….…. $10.00 
  Batting Cage per hour (Non-County)……………………………………………………….……. $15.00 
  Aycock Ballfield per field per hour  (County)………………………………………….………... $10.00 
  Aycock Ballfield per field – lighted per hour (County)……………………………..…………… $20.00 
  All other Ballfields per field per hour (County)………………………………….………………. $10.00 
  All other Ballfields per field – lighted per hour (County)…………………….………………….. $15.00 
  Aycock Ballfield per field per hour (Non-County)………………………………………….…… $20.00 
  Aycock Ballfield per field – lighted per hour (Non-County)…………………………………….. $40.00 
  All other Ballfields per field per hour (Non-County)…………………………………………….. $20.00 
  All other Ballfields per field – lighted per hour (Non-County)………………………….………. $30.00 
  Ballfield Weekend (Friday, Saturday & Sunday) (County)…………………………………… $200.00 
  Ballfield Weekend (Friday, Saturday & Sunday) (Non-County)…………………………………$350.00 
   
 Rentals – Non-Profit 
  Aycock Ballfield per field per hour  (County)………………………………………………….... $10.00 
  Aycock Ballfield per field – lighted per hour (County)…………………………………….…… $20.00 
  Aycock Ballfield  one day / all four fields (County)…………………………………….………. $200.00 
  All other Ballfields per field per hour (County)…………………………………….……………. $10.00 
  All other Ballfields per field – lighted per hour (County)……………………….……………….. $15.00 
  Ballfield Weekend (Friday, Saturday & Sunday) (County)…………………………………….. $500.00 
  Lights per field per hour (County)………………………………………………………………... $20.00 
  Old Aycock Gym per hour (County)……………………………………………………………... $30.00 
  Aycock Ballfield per field per hour (Non-County)………………………….…………………… $20.00 
  Aycock Ballfield per field – lighted per hour (Non-County)…………….……………………….. $40.00 
  Aycock Ballfield one day / all four fields (Non-County)……………………………………….. $350.00 
  All other Ballfields per field per hour (Non-County)…………………………………………..… $20.00 
Rentals – Non-Profit (Con’t) 



 
FY 13 Budget Message—Adoption  

Page 30 of 31 
 

30

  All other Ballfields per field – lighted per hour (Non-County)………………………….…..…… $30.00 
  Ballfield Weekend (Friday, Saturday & Sunday) (Non-County)…………………………………$750.00 
  Lights per field per hour (Non-County)…………………………………………………………... $30.00 
  Old Aycock Gym per hour (Non-County)………………………………………………………... $45.00 
 
 Rentals – For Profit 
  Aycock Ballfield – per field per hour (County)………………………………………………….. $20.00 
  All other Ballfields per hour (County)……………………………………………………………. $15.00 
  Aycock Ballfield – per field – lighted per hour (County)………………………………………… $30.00 
  All other Ballfields – lighted per hour (County)…………………………………………………. $20.00  
  Aycock one day / all four fields (County)…………………………..…………………………… $300.00 
  Old Aycock Gym per hour - 2 hour minimum (County)…………………………………………. $50.00 
  Aycock one day / all four fields (Non-County)…………………………………………………. $500.00  
  Aycock Weekend / all four fields (Friday, Saturday & Sunday) (County). …………………….. $650.00 
  Aycock Ballfield per field per hour (Non-County)……………………………………………..… $30.00 
  All other Ballfields per hour (Non-County)……………………………………………….……… $25.00 
  Aycock Ballfield – per field – lighted per hour (Non-County)………………………….……….. $40.00 
  All other Ballfields – lighted per hour (Non-County)…………………………………..………… $30.00 
  Aycock Weekend / all four fields (Friday, Saturday & Sunday) (Non- County)……..………… $800.00 
  Old Aycock Gym per hour – 2 hour minimum (Non-County)…………………………………. $75.00 
  Lights per field per hour ………………………………………………….……………..………. $25.00 
 
 Additional Services 
  Drag/Mark fields between each game per field (County)………………………………………… $20.00 
  Drag/Mark fields after 2 games per field (County)……………………………………………….. $15.00 
  Drag/Mark fields halfway through each day per field (County)………………………………….. $10.00 
  Supply ice water in coolers w/cups per dugout per game (County)………………..…………….. $10.00 
  Drag/Mark fields between each game per field (Non-County)…………………………………… $30.00 
  Drag/Mark fields after 2 games per field (Non-County)…………………………………………. $25.00 
  Drag/Mark fields halfway through each day per field (Non-County)………………………….... $20.00 
  Supply ice water in coolers w/cups per dugout per game (Non-County)……………………..….. $15.00 
 
 Henderson Rec Players Tickets…………………………………………………………………………. $7.00 
 
 Special Events (Athletic) 
  District Tournament Daily Pass for Students………………..……………………………..……… $2.00 
  District Tournament Daily Pass for Adults………………………………………………..………. $4.00 
  District Tournament Pass for entire Tournament………………………………………………… $10.00 
  State Tournament Daily Pass for Students…………………………………………………………. $2.00 
  State Tournament Daily Pass for Adults…………………………………………………………… $5.00 
  State Tournament Pass for Entire Tournament…………………………………………………… $15.00 
  Athletic Event Daily Pass………………………………………………………………………… $3.00 
  Athletic Event Tournament Pass…………………………………………………………………... $6.00 
 
 Special Events (Non-Athletic)…………………………………………………………… not to exceed $8.00 
 

 Aycock Center 
  
  Rental 
   Aquatics –  
   Pool Non-Profit - County (per hour)…………………………………………….………….. $70.00 
   Pool Non-Profit – Non-County (per hour) ………………………………………..………… $75.00 
   Pool For-Profit – County (per hour)…………………………………………………..…… $125.00 
   Pool For Profit – Non-County (per hour)…………………………………………………. $175.00 
   Swim Teams & Clubs – Private County (per lane, per hour)…………………………….…. $6.00 



 
FY 13 Budget Message—Adoption  

Page 31 of 31 
 

31

   Swim Teams & Clubs – Private Non-County (per lane, per hour)……………………….…. $12.00 
   Swim Teams & Clubs – County (per lane/per hour)………………………………………….. $0.00 
   Swim Teams & Clubs – Non-County (per lane, per hour)……………………………………. $9.00 
   Swim Lessons ………………………………………………………………………………… $5.00 
   Water Aerobics (per class – 5 per week)……………………………………………………… $2.00 
 
  Gymnasium 
   Aycock Recreation Complex Non-Profit per hour – County………………………………... $70.00 
   Aycock Recreation Complex Non-Profit per hour – Non-County…………………………... $85.00 
   Aycock Recreation Complex - Non-Profit Private Team - County (per practice/game).....… $22.00 
   Aycock Recreation Complex - Non-Profit Private Team – Non-County (per practice/game)… N/A 
   
   Aycock Recreation Complex For- Profit per hour – County……………………………… $100.00 
   Aycock Recreation Complex For-Profit per hour – Non-County…………………………. $150.00 
   Multi-purpose Room Non-Profit per hour – County………………………………………… $70.00 
   Multi-purpose Room Non-Profit per hour – Non-County…………………………………… $75.00 
   Multi-purpose Room For-Profit per hour – County………………………………………... $125.00 
   Multi-purpose Room For-Profit per hour – Non-County………………………………….. $175.00 
 
  Fees 
   Aycock Recreation Center  
   Resident – Daily 
    Adult Single Admission……………………………………………………………..……. $5.00 
    Teen 18 and under……………………………………………………………...…………. $3.00 
    Senior 55 and over…………………………………………………………………………$2.00 
   Resident – Monthly 
    Adult Single Admission……………………………………………….……………….. $30.00 
    18 and under……………………………………………………….…………………… $25.00 
    Senior 55 and over……………………………………………………………………… $25.00 
    Non-Resident – Daily  
    Adult Single Admission……………………………………………………….……….. $10.00 
    18 and under………………………………………………………………..…………… $5.00 
    Senior 55 and over…………………………………………………………………..…… $5.00 
   Non-Resident – Monthly 
    Adult Single Admission……………………………………..…………………………. $50.00 
    18 and Under…………………………………………..……….………………………. $45.00 
    Senior 55 and Over………………………………………….………….………………. $45.00 
   Resident Family Pass – Monthly 
    Family Pass………………………………………………………………….…………. $35.00 
    Seniors 55 and Over…………………………………………………………….……… $25.00 
   Non-Resident Family Pass – Monthly 
    Family …………………………………………………………………………………. $65.00 
    Seniors 55 and Over……………………………………………………………………. $50.00 
   City/County/State Employee – Monthly 
    Family Pass………………………………………………………….………………….. $17.00 
    Adult …………………………………………………………………..……………….. $15.00 
    Senior 55 and Over……………………………………………………………………... $12.00 
 
  Classes/Programs 
   Preschool per class……………………………………………………………………………. $3.00 
   Walking Program per month (Adult/Senior)…………………………………………..……. $15.00 
   Swim Group…………………………………………………………………………………... $2.00 
 
  Camps 
   Summer Day Camp – per week (8-11 year olds)……………………………………………. $30.00 
   Swim Camp………………………………………………………………………………….. $10.00 



 1

 
 
 
 
 

 
________________________________________ 

 

25 May 2012 
 
TO: The Honorable Mayor James D O’Geary and Members of City Council 
FR: A. Ray Griffin, Jr., City Manager 
RE: CAF:  12-A-09  

Consideration of Approval of 1) Ordinance 12-A-06, an Ordinance Providing for the 
Zoning of Wind Turbines, and 2) Ordinance 12-B-06, an Ordinance Providing for the 
Zoning of Solar Panels & Farms. 
 

Ladies and Gentlemen: 
 
Council Goals Addressed By This Item: 
 
 KSO 3: Enhanced Economic Development: To create new jobs and investment, expand the tax base 

and increase the per capita income. 
 
 
Recommendation: 
 
 Approval of Ordinance 12-A-06, an Ordinance Providing for the Zoning of Wind Turbines. 
 Approval of Ordinance 12-B-06, an Ordinance Providing for the Zoning of Solar Panels & Farms. 
 
 
Executive Summary 
 
Zoning of Solar Farms and Wind Turbines was first brought before Council on 26 March 2012 via CAF 
12-09, Ordinance 12-06, after being recommended by the Planning Board.  After some discussion, it was 
the consensus of the Council that the two entities should be separated and new zoning guidelines 
developed for each.   
 
Ordinance 12-A-06 provides for the zoning of Wind Turbine by adding a new Section 20.5 to Section 
310A of the Zoning Code which permits Wind Turbines in zoning districts with a Special Use Permit in 
zoning districts RA, I1, I2, and I3.  It also provides regulations for setbacks, noise control, screening and 
fencing, and lighting of these facilities. 
 
Ordinance 12-B-06 provides for 1) Zoning of Solar Panels by adding a new Section 20.6 to Section 310A 
of the Zoning Code, which permits Solar Panels (on premises) in all zoning districts and 2) adding 
Section 20.7, permitting Solar Farms (off premises) with a Special Use Permit in zones RA, I1, I2 and I3 
only. 
 
Enclosures: 

1. Ordinance 12-A-06 Wind Turbines 
2. Ordinance 12-B-06 Solar Farms 
3. 12 May 2012 Planning Board Recommendations 
4. Public Hearing Notice 

City Council Action Form 
Office of City Manager 

P. O. Box 1434 
Henderson, NC  27536 

252.430.5701 

    
 
 
 
Agenda Item: _____________ 
 
Council Meeting:  11 June 12 Regular Meeting 
                        



 2

ORDINANCE  12-A-06 
 
 
After receiving the recommendation of the Planning Board and after a duly advertised public 
hearing on the same, Council Member ___________________________ introduced the 
following Ordinance which was seconded by Council Member ______________________ and 
read: 
 

AN ORDINANCE PROVIDING FOR THE ZONING OF 
WIND TURBINES  

 
The City Council of the City of Henderson, North Carolina doth ordain: 

 
Section 1.  That a new section be added to Section 310A of the Zoning Code designated as 
Section 20.5 and reading as follows:   
 
 “20.5 Wind Turbines (not provided for elsewhere in this Code)” and permitting the same 
with a Special Use Permit in RA, I1, I2 and I3 Zoning Districts. 

   
Section 2.  That a new section be added to the Zoning Code being designated as Section 672B 
and reading as follows:   
 

“Section 672B. Wind Turbines  
 
672B.1.  Site Plan.  A site plan drawn to scale must be approved, showing all structures 
located on the site together with the property lines for the site, and the names of all 
adjacent property owners (per the current Vance County Tax Records). 
 
672B.2. Area Required.  A minimum lot size of at least 2 acres shall be required. 
 
672B.3. Setbacks. No structure shall be located within 500 feet of any residence, 
residential district, church or school, and the same shall be located at least 300 feet from 
any other business or commercial enterprise. 
 
672B.4. Noise.  No structure shall be located or operated so that the noise level at any 
existing residence or residential district or business or other enterprise shall exceed 50 
decibels for the entire site or be such to interfere with normal sleep patterns. 
 
672B.5. Screening and Fencing. Adequate fencing shall be provided along the perimeter 
of the area (with all entrances gated) to prevent trespassing on the property.  Moreover, 
adequate screening shall be provided at least to the height of said fence on the exterior 
portion of the same. 
 
672B.6 Lighting.  All lighting shall be arranged and shaded so as to reflect the light away 
from adjoining properties and streets.” 
 

Section 3.  The foregoing Ordinance shall be in full force and effect from and after the date of its 
passage. 



 3

 
The foregoing Ordinance 12-A-06, upon motion of Council member ____________ and 

seconded by Council Member __________________, and having been submitted to a roll call 
vote and received the following votes and was APPROVED/DISAPPROVED on this the ____ 
day of _______________, 2011:     YES:        . NO:      .  ABSTAIN:     .   ABSENT:      . 

 
 
 
       ____________________________________ 
       James D. O’Geary, Mayor 
ATTEST: 
 
_______________________________ 
Esther J. McCrackin, City Clerk 
Approved to Legal Form: 
 
________________________________ 
John H. Zollicoffer, Jr., City Attorney 
 
Reference:  Minute Book 4**, p. **. 
 
_______________________________________ 
 
STATE OF NORTH CAROLINA 
CITY OF HENDERSON 
 
 
I, Esther J. McCrackin, the duly appointed, qualified City Clerk of the City of Henderson, do 
hereby certify the foregoing Ordinance is a true and exact copy of Ordinance 12-A-06 An 
Ordinance Providing For The Zoning Of Wind Turbines, adopted by the Henderson, City 
Council in Regular Session on **  ** 20** (See Minute Book 4*, p. **.).  This Ordinance is 
recorded in Ordinance Book # 8, pp. **. 
 
Witness my hand and corporate seal of the City, this ** day of  *** 20**. 
 
_________________________ 
Esther J. McCrackin 
City Clerk 
City of Henderson, North Carolina 



 4

ORDINANCE 12-B-06 
 
After receiving the recommendation of the Planning Board and after a duly advertised public 
hearing on the same, Council Member ___________________________ introduced the 
following Ordinance which was seconded by Council Member ______________________ and 
read: 
 

AN ORDINANCE PROVIDING FOR THE ZONING OF SOLAR FARMS  
 

The City Council of the City of Henderson, North Carolina doth ordain: 
 
Section 1.  That a new section be added to Section 310A of the Zoning Code designated as 
Section 20.6 and reading as follows:   
 
 “20.6 Solar Panels (on premises) and permitting the same as a matter of right in all 
zoning districts.” 
 
Section 2.  That a new section be added to Section 310A of the Zoning Code designated as 
Section 20.7 and reading as follows:   
 
 “20.7 Solar Farms (off premises)” and permitting the same with a Special Use Permit in 
RA, I1, I2 and I3 Zoning Districts. 

   
Section 3.  The foregoing Ordinance shall be in full force and effect from and after the date of its 
passage. 
 

The foregoing Ordinance 12-B-06,  upon motion of Council member ____________ and 
seconded by Council Member __________________, and having been submitted to a roll call 
vote and received the following votes and was APPROVED/DISAPPROVED on this the ____ 
day of _______________, 2011:     YES:        . NO:      .  ABSTAIN:     .   ABSENT:      . 

 
       ____________________________________ 
       James D. O’Geary, Mayor 
ATTEST: 
 
_______________________________ 
Esther J. McCrackin, City Clerk 
 
Approved to Legal Form: 
 
________________________________ 
John H. Zollicoffer, Jr., City Attorney 
 
Reference:  Minute Book 4**, p. **. 
 
 
_______________________________________ 
 
STATE OF NORTH CAROLINA 



 5

CITY OF HENDERSON 
 
I, Esther J. McCrackin, the duly appointed, qualified City Clerk of the City of Henderson, do 
hereby certify the foregoing Ordinance is a true and exact copy of Ordinance 12-B-06 An 
Ordinance Providing For The Zoning Of Solar Farms, adopted by the Henderson, City Council in 
Regular Session on **  ** 20** (See Minute Book 4*, p. **.).  This Ordinance is recorded in 
Ordinance Book # 8, pp. **. 
 
Witness my hand and corporate seal of the City, this ** day of  *** 20**. 
 
_________________________ 
Esther J. McCrackin 
City Clerk 
City of Henderson, North Carolina 



 6

 
City of Henderson 

Planning and Community Development Department 
Post Office Box 1434 / 134 Rose Avenue / Henderson, NC 27536-1434 

Phone: (252) 430-5723         FAX:  (252) 492-7935 
 
 
 

RECOMMENDATIONS FROM THE May 7, 2012 
PLANNING BOARD MEETING 

 
 Business Discussion: Proposed Ordinance Providing for the Zoning of Wind 

Turbines and an Ordinance Providing for the Zoning of Solar Farms 
 

Item was introduced by Zoning Administrator Sherry Moss. Moss replied this item was 
continued from the last couple of meetings and added City Attorney Zollicoffer drafted both 
ordinances. Vice Chairman Horace Bullock asked the board of any changes to Section 672B. 
Wind Turbines. Board Member Mike Inscoe asked was a special use permit required. Moss 
answered yes.  
 
Board Member Jimmie Ayscue motioned to forward items to the City Council for approval; 
Second by Board Member Arthur Henderson, following an unanimous vote of 4-0;  
 
AYES-Horace Bullock, Mike Inscoe, Jimmie Ayscue, Arthur Henderson; NOES-none; 
ABSENT-Chairman Michael Rainey 
 



 7

 
 
 
 
Please run this in the public notice section on ___________________________. 
 
I will need an affidavit of publication. 
 
Thank You,  
 
Esther McCrackin 
Henderson City Clerk 
252-430-5705 
 
Notice is hereby given that a public hearing will be held by the Henderson City Council on 
Monday, June 11, 2012 at 6:00 p.m. in the City Council Chambers in City Hall located at 134 
Rose Avenue in Henderson, North Carolina. The purpose of the hearing is to receive public 
comment on: 
 
 Recommendation Regarding Ordinances Providing for the Zoning of Wind Turbines 

and Solar Farms 
 

Persons interested are invited to attend and present their arguments relative to the proposed 
amendments, etc. As a result of the public hearings, substantial changes might be made in the 
proposals herein advertised reflecting objective, debate and discussion at the public hearings. 
Copies of all pertinent material are available at the City Planning and Community Development 
Department, 134 Rose Ave.  
 
Esther McCrackin 
Henderson City Clerk 

 

CAF 12-A-09 
Attachment #4 



 
 
1 

 

 
 
 
 

 
 

6 June 2012 
 

TO: The Honorable Mayor James D. O’Geary and Members of City Council 
 
FR: A. Ray Griffin, Jr., City Manager 
 
RE: CAF:  12—46  

Consideration of Approval of Ordinance 12-26, FY11-12 Budget Amendment #51 
Creating Fund 73: Economic Development Capital Reserve Fund and Resolution 
12-46, An Authorizing Resolution by the Henderson City Council in Support of a 
NC Building Restoration and Reuse Grant Program for Economic Development 
Prospect 10-C 

 
Ladies and Gentlemen: 
 
Council Goals Addressed By This Item: 
 
 KSO 3:  To create new jobs and investment, expand the tax base and increase the per capita 

income. 
 
Recommendation:             
 
 Approval of Ordinance 12-26, FY11-12 Budget Amendment #51 Creating Fund 73: 

Economic Development Capital Reserve Fund and Resolution 12-46 An Authorizing 
Resolution by the Henderson City Council in Support of a NC Building Restoration and 
Reuse Grant Program for Economic Development Prospect 10-C 

 
 
Executive Summary 
 
Council identified the need for economic development as a Key Strategic Objective in its 
Strategic Plan.  It has implemented multiple initiatives in this regard including re-establishment 
of the Henderson/Vance Economic Development Commission and actively participating on it, 
providing for economic development incentives, along with the County, in an effort to attract 
new and expand existing businesses and industries.   
 
Council participated with the County in obtaining a grant for the now defunct start-up business, 
PRI via Resolution 10-28.  The City’s reimbursement from the County for its initial investment 
is $13,392.86.  It is recommended these funds be utilized to pay for three other commitments 

City Council Action Form 
Office of City Manager 

P. O. Box 1434 
Henderson, NC  27536 

252.430.5701 

 
Agenda Item:  
 
Council Meeting: 11 June 2012 
 



 
 
2 

 

made for expansion and start-up businesses as follows:  $5,000 for Optimum Lighting expansion 
and relocation to the old Purolator building on US Rt 1 Bypass (Resolution 12-46) and $1,000 
each for the Thermo King (Resolution 12-08) and Appliance Store (Resolution 12-16)  projects.  
It is recommended the balance would be held in reserve for future economic development 
incentives  
 
Optimum Lighting has met its obligations for jobs creation and investment, thus it is time to pay 
the City’s Rural Center Local Match of $5,000.  Resolution 12-46 embodies the partnership for 
the project. Work is underway on Thermo King and has not yet begun for the Appliance Store.  
These funds will be held in reserve until such time as it is appropriate to pay the City’s share of 
the Rural Center local matches for these two economic development projects.  
 
The FY13 Budget provided for the establishment of Fund 73: Economic Development Capital 
Reserve Fund; however, the PRI refund and payment for the Optimum Lighting incentive need 
to be made in this fiscal year.   
 
Do I need to add the Resolutions for these grant opportunities? 
 
Enclosures:  

1. Ordinance 12-26  
2. Resolution 12-46 

  



 
 
3 

 

O R D I N A N C E   12—26 
 

CREATION OF FUND 73: 
ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT CAPITAL RESERVE FUND 

FY 2011—2012 Budget Amendment # 51 
 
 
WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Henderson on 13 June 2011 adopted the FY11-12 

Annual Operating and Capital Budget; and 
 
WHEREAS, the City of Henderson is an active member of the Henderson-Vance Economic 

Development Commission and as part of this role participates from time-to-time with the 
provision of economic development incentives via grant matches; and 

 
WHEREAS, the City participated in an economic development incentive for the now-defunct 

PRI company, and subsequent to its demise the Vance County has reimbursed the City 
for its share of the incentive amount; and 

 
WHEREAS, the City plans to participate with incentive grant matches for Thermo King and the 

Appliance Store, both of which are just under $1,000 each and to make payment to the 
county for its share of the Optimum Lighting building upgrade; and 

 
WHEREAS, the creation of the economic development capital reserve fund and utilization of the 

proceeds from the PRI refund offers an opportunity to reserve funds for future incentive 
matches as well as providing for the obligations for the previously mentioned two new 
companies should they meet job and investment requirements. 

 
NOW THEREFORE BE IT ORDAINED by the City Council of The City of Henderson, that 

the following Ordinance be approved, and said Ordinance shall be effective immediately 
upon approval of the City Council: 

 



 
 
4 

 

 
 
The foregoing Ordinance 12-26, upon motion of Council Member *** and second by Council 
Member ***, and having been submitted to a roll call vote and received the following votes and 
was **** on this the 11th  day of June 2012:  YES:  . NO:  .   ABSTAIN:  .   ABSENT:   .             
 
 
 
 

___________________________________ 
James D. O’Geary, Mayor 

ATTEST: 
_______________________________ 
Esther McCrackin, City Clerk 
 
Reference:  Minute Book 42, p.**; CAF 12-46;  
 
 

Approved Current
Department Line Item Code 1-Jul-11 Budget Amendment Revised

Reimbursement from Vance Co 10-100-477-070 -$             -$               13,400$          13,400$                      
-$             -$               -$                -$                           

Total -$             -$               13,400$          13,400$                      
13,400$                      

Approved Current
Department Line Item Code 1 Jul 11 Budget Amendment Revised

Non-Departmental To Vance Co-Econ Dev Incentive 10-660-509-034 -$             -$               5,000$            5,000$                        
Non-Departmental TO 73: Econ Dev Capital Reserve Fund 10-660-561-073 -$             -$               8,400$            8,400$                        

Total -$             -$               13,400$          13,400$                      
13,400$                      

Variance -$               

Approved Current
Department Line Item Code 1-Jul-11 Budget Amendment Revised

Transfer from 10: General Fund 73-980-461-010 -$             -$               8,400.00$        8,400.00$                   
-$             -$               -$                -$                           

Total -$             -$               8,400.00$        8,400.00$                   
8,400.00$                   

Approved Current
Department Line Item Code 1-Jul-11 Budget Amendment Revised

Non-Departmental Reserve for EDP 12-2, Thermo King 73-660-509-851 -$             -$               1,000.00$        1,000.00$                   
Non-Departmental Reserve for EDP-12-1, Appliance Store 73-660-509-852 -$             -$               800.00$          800.00$                      
Non-Departmental Reserve-unspecified 73-660-509-850 -$             -$               6,600.00$        6,600.00$                   

Total -$             -$               8,400.00$        8,400.00$                   
8,400.00$                   

Variance -$               

Approval of Resolution 12-08 for EDP 12-1 (Applliance Store)

Approval of Resolution 12-16 for EDP 12-2 (Thermo King)

Reference: Notes:

Council Meeting of 11 June 2012

The $13,392.86 from Vance County is the City's share of the econmic development grant 
match from Rural Center City had to pay for PRI.  PRI went out of business and funds 
reimbursed to both Rural Center and local governments.  Since Vance County was the fiscal 
agent for the grant, Henderson's reimbursement was issued by the County.   The City will have 
some limited grant match requirement with the Thermo King and Appliance Store projects as 
noted above.  Also, approval of Resolution 12-46 (previously assigned as R 10-68) for EDP 10-
C (Optimum Lighting)

6 June 2012

Approval of Resolution 10-28 for EDP A (PRI)Council Meeting of 8 March 2010

Council Meeting of 23 January 2012

Council Meeting of 13 February 2012

73:  CAPITAL RESERVE ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT FUND REVENUES

73:  CAPITAL RESERVE ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT FUND EXPENDITURES

10: GENERAL FUND EXPENDITURES

Ordinance 12-26

FUNDS:
10: General Fund and                                                            
73: Economic Development Capital Reserve Fund

FY 11-12 Budget Amendment #51

Establishing Fund 73: Economic Development Capital Reserve

10: GENERAL FUND REVENUES



 
 
5 

 

____________ 
 
STATE OF NORTH CAROLINA - CITY OF HENDERSON 
 
I, Esther McCrackin, the duly appointed, qualified City Clerk of the City of Henderson, do 
hereby certify the attached is a true and exact copy of Ordinance 12-26 adopted by the 
Henderson, City Council in Regular Session on 11 June 2012. This Ordinance is recorded in 
Ordinance Book 8, p.***. 
 
Witness my hand and corporate seal of the City, this ****. 
 
_________________________ 
Esther McCrackin 
City Clerk 
City of Henderson, North Carolina 

 
 
 
 

This Budget Ordinance Amendment has been prepared and reviewed by the City Manager and 
Finance Director. 
 
  Reviewed by:  _______________________________ Date:  _______________________ 
                         Katherine C. Brafford, Finance Director 
 
Reviewed by:  _______________________________ Date: _______________________ 
  A. Ray Griffin, Jr., City Manager  
  



 
 
6 

 

R E S O L U T I O N   12—46 
 

AN AUTHORIZING RESOLUTION BY THE HENDERSON CITY 
COUNCIL IN SUPPORT OF A NORTH CAROLINA BUILDING 

RESTORATION AND REUSE GRANT PROGRAM FOR ECONOMIC 
DEVELOPMENT PROSPECT 10-C 

 
WHEREAS, the Henderson City Council (Council) conducted its Annual Planning Retreat in 

January 2012, and during said Retreat identified eight Key Strategic Objectives (KSO) 
and Goals; and 

 
WHEREAS, this Resolution addresses KSO 3-5 Redevelop Downtown - Enhanced Economic 

Development as follows:  The purpose of this Action Plan is to form strategies that result 
in the redevelopment of downtown Henderson, and 

 
WHEREAS, In June 2004, the North Carolina General Assembly passed House Bill 1352, 

authorizing funds to stimulate economic development and job creation in distressed areas 
through constructing critical water and wastewater facilities, addressing technology 
needs, renovating vacant buildings, and implementing research and demonstration 
projects; and 

 
WHEREAS, In July 2007, the General Assembly passed House Bill 1473 to expand the 

Economic Infrastructure Fund and to provide funding to facilitate economic transitions in 
rural communities; and 

 
WHEREAS, The Rural Center Building Restoration and Reuse Grants Program was created to 

spur economic activity and job creation by assisting in the productive reuse of vacant 
buildings in small, rural towns and counties ; and 

 
WHEREAS, Henderson and Vance County are engaged in activities to assist in the productive 

reuse of vacant buildings, specifically the vacant Purolator building on Rt 1 By Pass; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Council discussed this matter on 28 June 2010 and achieved consensus in 

working with the County on this application; and 
 
WHEREAS, Vance County applied for and received funding from the Rural Center for this 

Economic Development Prospect C, said prospect being Optimum Lighting, now known 
as Phillips Optimum, and has now requested the City provide its $5,000 contribution 
toward the economic development project.  The expansion and relocation project has 
been completed satisfactorily per grant requirements for jobs and investment created. 

 
NOW, THERFORE BE IT RESOLVED BY THE HENDERSON CITY COUNCIL THAT: 
 



 
 
7 

 

1. The City of Henderson will provide $5,000 towards the required local match for the 
Rural Center Grant. 

2. That Vance County will provide for the efficient administration, implementation and 
operation/maintenance of the project. 
 

3. That James D O’Geary, Mayor of the City of Henderson, and successors so titled, is 
hereby authorized to execute and file an application as appropriate with Vance 
County and NCREDC (Rural Center) for a Building Restoration and Reuse Grant.  

 
The foregoing Resolution 12-46, upon motion of Council Member *** and seconded by Council 
Member ***, and having been submitted to a roll call vote received the following votes and was 
Approved on this the 11th  day of June 2012:  YES:.  NO:  None.  ABSTAIN:  None.  ABSENT:  

 
 
_____________________________ 
James D. O’Geary, Mayor 

ATTEST: 
 
 
_______________________________ 
Esther McCrackin, City Clerk 
 
Approved to Legal Form: 
 
________________________________ 
John H. Zollicoffer, Jr., City Attorney 
 
Reference: 

Minute Book 42, p  
Ordinance 12-26 

 
 



Page 1 of 4 
 

 
 
 
 
 

 
________________________________________ 

5 June 2012 
 
 

TO: The Honorable Mayor James D. O’Geary and Members of City Council 
 
FR: A. Ray Griffin, Jr., City Manager 
 
RE: CAF: 12-69 

Consideration of Approval of Ordinance 12-38, FY 12 Budget Amendment #48 to 
Provide Funds to Restock Parts for the Kerr Lake Regional Water Facility. 
 

Ladies and Gentlemen: 
 
 
Council Retreat Goals Addressed By This Item:   
 
 KSO 5:  Provide Reliable, Dependable Infrastructure. 
 
Recommendation:   
 
 Approval of  Ordinance 12-38, FY 12 Budget Amendment #48 to Provide Funds to Restock 

Parts for the Kerr Lake Regional Water Facility. 
 
 
Executive Summary: 
 
This budget amendment is necessary to fund the restocking of parts and supplies due to two 
major line breaks, which occurred on the Regional Transmission lines to Oxford, one on the 24” 
line and one on the 20” line, closer to Oxford.   
 
Due to the size of the mains and the materials of the existing and new pipe, the repair parts are 
not readily accessible and must be custom ordered.  The existing pipe materials are 
asbestos/cement (AC) pipe.  This budget amendment will allow the restocking of 24” ductile iron 
pipe and AC to DI repair couplings used in reconnecting the existing pipe. 
 
Enclosures: 
 

1. Ordinance 12-38 

City Council Action Form 
Office of City Manager 

P. O. Box 1434 
Henderson, NC  27536 

252.430.5701 

    
 
 
 
Agenda Item: _____________ 
 
Council Meeting: 11 June 12 Regular Meeting 



Page 2 of 4 
 

O R D I N A N C E  12—38 
 
Council Member **  introduced the following Ordinance that was seconded by Council Member 
** and read: 

AN AMENDMENT TO THE FY 2011 -- 2012 BUDGET 
BUDGET AMENDMENT #48 

 
WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Henderson, on 13 June 2011, adopted the FY 11-12 

Municipal Operating and Capital Budget; and 
 
WHEREAS, it is necessary to amend the various revenue and expense accounts of the annual 

budget from time-to-time, and the reason for FY 11-12 Budget Amendment #48 is more 
fully articulated in Attachment A to this Ordinance. 

 
NOW THEREFORE BE IT ORDAINED by the City Council of The City of Henderson, that 

the following Budget Ordinance Amendment be approved and said Ordinance shall be 
effective immediately upon approval of the City Council: 



Page 3 of 4 
 

 

Approved Current
Department Line Item Code 1-Jul-11 Budget Amendment Revised

 Trans from: 78 Regional 64-640-461077 -$             -$               23,000.00$      23,000.00$                  
     Water Reserve  -$             -$               -$                -$                           

-$             -$               -$                -$                           
-$             -$               -$                -$                           
-$             -$               -$                -$                           

Total -$             -$               23,000.00$      23,000.00$                  
23,000.00$                  

Approved Current
Department Line Item Code 1-Jul-11 Budget Amendment Revised

 Departmental Supplies 64-900-503300 -$             -$               23,000.00$      23,000.00$                  
   -$             -$               -$                -$                           

-$             -$               -$                -$                           
-$             -$               -$                -$                           
-$             -$               -$                -$                           
-$             -$               -$                -$                           

Total -$             -$               23,000.00$      23,000.00$                  
23,000.00$                  

Variance -$               

Approved Current
Department Line Item Code 1-Jul-11 Budget Amendment Revised

  -$             -$               -$                -$                           
  -$             -$               -$                -$                           
  -$             -$               -$                -$                           

Total -$             -$               -$                -$                           
-$                           

Approved Current
Department Line Item Code 1-Jul-11 Budget Amendment Revised

Trans to: 64 Regional Water 78-865-561064 -$             -$               23,000.00$      23,000.00$                  
Capital Reserve 78-865-509850 147,614.00$   (23,000.00)$     124,614.00$                

-$             -$               -$                -$                           
-$             -$               -$                -$                           

Total -$             147,614.00$   -$                147,614.00$                
147,614.00$                

Variance -$               

64: REGIONAL WATER SYSTEM EXPENDITURES

78: REGIONAL WATER RESERVE REVENUES

78: REGIONAL WATER RESERVE EXPENDITURES

Reference: Notes:
CAF: 12-69, Ord 12-38 To amend the Regional Water System and the Regional Water Reserve budgets to reflect a 

transfer from Regional Reserve to the Regional Water System in order to purchase parts for 
stock.  The parts stock  was depleted due to numerous line breaks.

Ordinance 12-38

FUNDS:
78: Regional Water Reserve and 64: 
Regional Water System

FY 11-12 Budget Amendment #48

64: REGIONAL WATER SYSTEM REVENUES

 
 
 
BE IT FURTHER ORDAINED that the City Manager and Finance Director are authorized to 

effect appropriate budgetary closeout of this grant in the City’s budgetary accounting 
system. 

 
 



Page 4 of 4 
 

The foregoing Ordinance 12-38, upon motion of Council Member ** and second by Council 
Member ***, and having been submitted to a roll call vote and received the following votes and 
was *** on this the 11day of June 2012:  YES: ***.  NO:  **.   ABSTAIN:  **.   ABSENT:  **.             
 

___________________________________ 
James D. O’Geary, Mayor 

 
ATTEST: 
 
_______________________________ 
Esther J. McCrackin, City Clerk 
 
Reference:  Minute Book 42 p. ***; CAF 12-69 
____________ 
 
STATE OF NORTH CAROLINA 
CITY OF HENDERSON 
 
I, Esther J. McCrackin, the duly appointed, qualified City Clerk of the City of Henderson, do 
hereby certify the attached is a true and exact copy of Ordinance 12—38 adopted by the 
Henderson, City Council in Regular Session on 11 June 2012 (Minute Book 42 p.**). This 
Ordinance is recorded in Ordinance Book 8, p. ***. 
 
Witness my hand and corporate seal of the City, this *** day of June 2012. 
 
_________________________ 
Esther J. McCrackin 
City Clerk 
City of Henderson, North Carolina 
 
 

Attachment A 
Ordinance 12—38 

FY 11-12 Budget Ordinance Amendment 48 
(Reference:  CAF: 12-69;  Ordinance 12-38) 

 
This Budget Amendment serves to amend the Regional Water System and the Regional Water 
Reserve budgets to reflect a transfer from Regional Reserve to the Regional Water System in 
order to purchase parts for stock.  The parts stock was depleted due to numerous line breaks.   
 
 
   
Reviewed by:  _______________________________ Date:  _______________________ 
                         Katherine C. Brafford, Finance Director 
 
Reviewed by:  _______________________________ Date: _______________________ 
  A. Ray Griffin, Jr., City Manager 



 
 
 
 
 

 
_______________________________________ 

 

16 May 2012 
 

TO: The Honorable Mayor James D. O’Geary and Members of City Council 
FR: A. Ray Griffin, Jr., City Manager 
RE: CAF:  12-64 

Consideration of Approval of Resolution 12-43, Approval of Official Results for Municipal 
Election Held 8 May, 2012 and Action to Receive by Council and File with the City Clerk 

 

Ladies and Gentlemen: 
 

Council Goals Addressed By This Item: 
 
  

Recommendation: 
 
Approve Resolution 12-43, Approval of Official Results for Municipal Election held 8 May 2012 and action 
to receive by Council and file with the City Clerk 
 
Executive Summary 
 
The City Clerk has received the abstract of votes for the City of Henderson’s Municipal Election held on 8 
May 2012 by the Vance County Board of Elections office.  It is recommended that Council approve 
Resolution 12-43 accepting these election results.  The Resolution and results will then be filed with the City 
Clerk’s office. 
 
 
 

Enclosures: 
1. Resolution 12-43 
2. Official Municipal Election 8 May 2012 Abstract of Votes for City of Henderson from the 

Vance County Board of Elections Office 

City Council Action Form 
Office of City Manager 

P. O. Box 1434 
Henderson, NC  27536 

252.430.5701 

 
Agenda Item: _____________ 
 
Council Meeting:  11 June 12 Reg Meeting 
 



RESOLUTION 12-43 
 

RESOLUTION OF THE CITY OF HENDERSON  
ACCEPTING THE OFFICIAL RESULTS OF THE  

8 May 2012 MUNICIPAL ELECTION  
 
WHEREAS, the City of Henderson Municipal Election was held by the Vance County Board of Elections 

Office on 8 May 2020; and 
 

WHEREAS, the Mayor and City Council Members were elected in the Municipal Election held in 
accordance with North Carolina Municipal Election Laws; and 
 

WHEREAS, the official Primary Election Abstract of Votes results are shown in Attachment A; and 
 
WHEREAS, those elected were: 
 
 Mayor, James D. O’Geary for a four-year term; 
 
 Ward 1 Council Member, James C. Kearney, Sr. for a four-year term; Ward 1 At-Large Council 

Member, Sara M. Coffey for a two-year term;  
 
 Ward 2 Council Member, D. Michael Rainey; for a four-year term; Ward 2 At-Large Council 

Member, Michael C. Inscoe for a two-year term;  
 
 Ward 3 Council Member, Garry D. Daeke, for a two-year term; Ward 3 At-Large Council Member, 

Brenda Peace-Jenkins for a four-year term;  
 
 Ward 4 Council Member, Vernon L. Brown, for a two-year term; Ward 4 At-Large Council Member, 

George M. Daye for a four year term.   
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, by the City of Henderson City Council that the Official Results 

for the Municipal Elections held 8 May 2012 be approved by Council and Filed with the City Clerk. 
    
The foregoing Resolution 12-43, introduced by Council Member ______________ and seconded by Council 
Member _________ on this the 11th day of June 2012, and having been submitted to a roll call vote, was 
approved by the following votes:   YES:  NO:  ABSTAIN:  ABSENT:   
 
 
       __________________________________  
       James D. O’Geary, Mayor 
        
ATTEST: 
______________________________________ 
Esther J. McCrackin, City Clerk  
 
Approved to Legal Form: 
 
_____________________________________ 
John H. Zollicoffer, Jr., City Attorney  
Reference:  Minute Book 42, p  



 

CAF 12-64 
Attachment A 



 



 



 



 



 



 



 



 



 



 



 
 
 
 
 

 
________________________________________ 

4 June 2012 
 
 

TO: The Honorable Mayor James D. O’Geary and Members of City Council 
 
FR: A. Ray Griffin, Jr., City Manager 
 
RE: CAF:  12-67  

Consideration of Approval of Resolution 12-14, Authorizing the Submission of the 
FY12 BJA Bulletproof Vest Grant Application for the Police Department  
 

Ladies and Gentlemen: 
 
Council Goals Addressed By This Item: 
 
 KSO 2: Reduce Crime: To reduce crime and provide for a safe community 
 KSO 8: Financial Resourcing: To provide sufficient funds for municipal operations and 

capital outlay necessary to meet the needs of citizens, customers and mandates of regulatory 
authorities 

 
Recommendation: 
 
 Approval of Resolution 12-14, authorizing the submission of the FY12 BJA Bulletproof Vest 

Grant Application for the Police Department  
 
Executive Summary 
 
The BJA Bulletproof Vest Grant, if awarded, would provide reimbursement for 50% of all 
expenditures (including shipping and handling) for the purchase of law enforcement body armor 
and body armor carriers.  Total project cost is $8,397.00.  The City will be requesting the 
maximum amount available which is $4,198.50.  This grant, if awarded, will not take effect until 
1 October 2012.   
 
Enclosures:    

1. Resolution 12-14   
2. Grant Application Permission Form 
3. Grant Application 

 
 
 

City Council Action Form 
Office of City Manager 

P. O. Box 1434 
Henderson, NC  27536 

252.430.5701 

 
Agenda Item: _____________ 
 
Council Meeting: 11 June 12 Regular Meeting 
 



 2

R E S O L U T I O N 
12-14  

 
A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE SUBMISSION OF AN 

APPLICATION TO THE BUREAU OF JUSTICE ASSISTANCE OFFICE  
FOR THE FY11 BULLETPROOF VEST PROGRAM GRANT 

FOR THE POLICE DEPARTMENT 
 
WHEREAS, the Henderson City Council identified eight Key Strategic Objectives (KSO) at its 

2010 Strategic Planning Retreat; and 
 
WHEREAS, two of the Key Strategic Objectives are addressed by this request as follows:  KSO 

2: To Reduce Crime and Provide for a Safe Community, and KSO 8:  To Provide 
Sufficient Funds for Municipal Operations and Capital Outlay Necessary to Meet the 
Needs of Citizens, Customers and Mandates of Regulatory Authorities; and  

 
WHEREAS, the grant application is seeking $4,198.50 in federal funds to provide for 50% 

reimbursement of all expenditures for the purchase of law enforcement body armor and 
body armor carriers.  

 
NOW, THERFORE BE IT RESOLVED BY THE HENDERSON CITY COUNCIL THAT IT 

DOES HEREBY APPROVE the City Manager to file the grant application to the Bureau 
of Justice Assistance Office as outlined above. 

 
The foregoing Resolution, introduced by Councilmember ********** and seconded by 
Councilmember ******* on this the **** day of ********* 2012 and having been submitted to 
a roll call vote, was approved by the following votes: Ayes:  Nayes:  Absent:   

 
___________________________________ 

James D. O’Geary, Mayor 
 
ATTEST: 
  
_______________________________ 
Esther McCracken, City Clerk 
 
Approved to Legal Form: 
 
________________________________ 
John H. Zollicoffer, Jr., City Attorney 



 3

 

CAF 12-67 
Attachment #2 



 4

 



 5

 



 6

 



 7

 



 8

 



 9

 



 10

 



 11

 



 12

 
 

 



 
CAF:  12--72 
Page 1 of 7 

 

 
 
 
 

 
 

 
8 June 2012 

 
TO: The Honorable Mayor James D. O’Geary and Members of City Council 
 
FR: A. Ray Griffin, Jr., City Manager 
 
RE: CAF:  12-72 

Consideration of Resolution 12-36, A Resolution Ratifying and Approving an 
Application to the US Department of Justice for a BJA-2012 Grant for Henderson 
Community Revitalization Initiative (CRI) Enhancement Grant 
 

 
Ladies and Gentlemen: 
 
Council Goals Addressed By This Item: 
 

 KSO 2: To Reduce Crime and Provide for a Safe Community, and  
 KSO 8:  To Provide Sufficient Funds for Municipal Operations and Capital Outlay 

Necessary to Meet the Needs of Citizens, Customers and Mandates of Regulatory 
Authorities. 

 
Recommendation:             
 
 Approval of Resolution 12-36, A Resolution Ratifying and Approving an Application to the 

US Department of Justice for a BJA-2012 Grant for Henderson Community Revitalization 
Initiative (CRI) Enhancement Grant 

 
Executive Summary 
 
Given time constraints vis-à-vis grant application deadline and Council meeting dates, I 
authorized  Chief Sidwell to  apply for a DOJ BJA grant to assist the City of Henderson in the 
reduction of crime, removal of blighted properties, and improving the safety and security of 
neighborhoods within the targeted areas most impacted by crime. This three year grant will 
partner with the "Property Manager's Group", with statistical data being gathered by our Crime 
Analysis unit, partnering with JCPC. The total amount of the grant requested is $575,371.  
 
This grant encompasses technological needs through proactive Community Policing, Geographic 
Policing, as well as actual overtime allocation for data gathering, pro-active patrols to reduce 

City Council Action Form 
Office of City Manager 

P. O. Box 1434 
Henderson, NC  27536 

252.430.5701 

 
Agenda Item:  
 
Council Meeting: 11 June 2012 
 



 
CAF:  12--72 
Page 2 of 7 

 

crime, and the removal of blighted properties. This grant, as other grants of the past is very fluid 
in nature and funding can be used as needed on various requests throughout the three year 
process.  
 
For instance, the initial request for the demolition/removal of blighted properties is $100,000.00. 
However, the total amount of the budget allocated for this facet of the strategy to improve the 
quality of life in the designated area could be increased during the fact-finding and research 
phase (first six months) based on the information provided by Crime Analysis, JCPC research 
and the input of our CRI shareholders and the Property Manager's Group. The final "working" 
budget will be then revised and approved by the BJA, the City of Henderson (as the Fiscal 
Agent). If necessary, the initial amount for structure removal may be increased and other 
budgeted requests adjusted as necessary to meet the overall goals and objectives of the project.  
 
This grant submission is based upon past successful grants and is also based on successful 
strategies utilized by the Massachusetts State Police and the Springfield, MS Police Department 
in their "C3" Community revitalization program. The research phase of the project will allow us 
to more effectively "customize" the grant expenditures based on the analysis of both crime 
statistics and environmental factors.  
 
Ratification of the application submission is requested.  This action does not bind the Council to 
accept the grant.  Should funding be awarded, a Resolution accepting the grant and a Budget 
Ordinance establishing the grant project will be brought to Council for consideration and 
approval.  Importantly, the grant does not require a local match. 
 
 
Enclosures:  

1. Resolution 12-36 
2. Grant Application Supporting Materials 

  



 
CAF:  12--72 
Page 3 of 7 

 

R E S O L U T I O N   12—36 
 

A RESOLUTION  RATIFYING AND APPROVING AN APPLICATION 
TO US DEPARTMENT OF JUSTICE FOR A BJA-2012 GRANT 

FOR HENDERSON COMMUNITY REVITALIZATION INITIATIVE (CRI) 
ENHANCEMENT GRANT 

 
WHEREAS, the Henderson City Council identified eight Key Strategic Objectives (KSO) at its 

2012 Strategic Planning Retreat; and 
 
WHEREAS, two of the Key Strategic Objectives are addressed by this request as follows:  KSO 

2: To Reduce Crime and Provide for a Safe Community, and KSO 8:  To Provide 
Sufficient Funds for Municipal Operations and Capital Outlay Necessary to Meet the 
Needs of Citizens, Customers and Mandates of Regulatory Authorities; and  

 
WHEREAS, the Police Chief has identified a grant opportunity to assist the City in the reduction 

of crime, removal of blighted properties and improve the safety and security of 
neighborhoods within the targeted areas most impacted by crime; and 

 
WHEREAS, the application deadline for said grant was 7 June 2012 and in order to be eligible to 

compete for funding the application had to be submitted and said submission was 
approved by the City Manager; and 

 
WHEREAS, the grant for which the Police Department is applying would provide $575,371 in 

funding over a three (3) year period of time; and 
 
WHEREAS, ratification of the application for said grant funding is appropriate at this.  Should 

funding be awarded, the Council will be requested to accept the grant. 
 
NOW, THERFORE BE IT RESOLVED BY THE HENDERSON CITY COUNCIL THAT IT 

DOES HEREBY RATIFY AND APPROVE  the application for the US Department of 
Justice BJA-2012 Grant in the amount of $575,371. 

 
The foregoing Resolution, introduced by Council Member _____________and seconded by 
Council Member __________on this the 11th day of June 2012, and having been  
Submitted to a roll call vote, was approved by the following votes: YES:  .  NO:  .  ABSTAIN:  .  
NO:  .       __________________________________ 
       James D. O’Geary, Mayor 
ATTEST: 
______________________________________ 
Esther McCrackin, City Clerk  
Approved to Legal Form: 
_____________________________________ 
John H. Zollicoffer, Jr., City Attorney 



 
CAF:  12--72 
Page 4 of 7 

 

Grant Application Supporting Materials 
 

Year One (10/01/2012 to 09/30/2013) 
As required in the grant specifications, the first six (6) months of the grant will be dedicated to 
the research and strategy planning phase of the project operation to ensure that the core elements 
of the BCJI are in place and that strong research and data is in place for proposed place-based 
programs.  
The first year of the project will focus on the research and solicitation of more CRI shareholders 
and residents while moving into the implementation phase approximately in May 2013. 
Personnel 
Name/Position     Computation    Cost 
Police Officer – Premium Overtime  750 hours X $31 per hour  $23,250.00 
        SUB-TOTAL  $23,250.00 
Fringe Benefits 
401K      750 hrs X $31 X 5%   $1,162.50 
FICA      750 hrs X $31 X 7.65%  $1,778.63 
Retirement     750 hrs X $31 X 6.41%  $2,490.44 
        SUB-TOTAL  $4,431.46 
 
As the lead agency in the CRI group dealing with crime issues, the Henderson Police Department 
is budgeting to provide overtime pay (based on an average of $31.00 total per hour as the median 
pay) to officers to work special details during both the planning stage and the full 
implementation stage. These details will include neighborhood “walk and talks” that can also be 
used to accompany JCPC researchers to the designated area, directed patrols designed to 
document traffic patterns, identify “hot spots” of activity within the area and to increase the 
communication between the Police Department, CRI shareholders and area residents. 
Contracts 
Contracted services for JCPC to conduct research/Crime Analysis   $24,000.00 
Contracted services for the City of Henderson to demolish buildings identified 
As “dilapidated structures” within the designated area    $100,000.00 
        SUB-TOTAL  $124,000.00 
Based on the needs for our area our initial budgeted amount for the Juvenile Crime Prevention 
Council to expend in researching and obtaining data for the “evidence-based” approach to be 
finalized is included and will be expended within the planning stage. The JCPC will be working 
closely with the Henderson Police Department Crime Analyst in order to “mine” information 
from the department’s records management system. Assistance may be needed from the RMS 
vendor in order to modify the Records Management System’s reports to provide past history 
information in order to predict future trends. We are including this estimate in the total assigned 
to research functions.  
One of the primary areas of concern within the designated area and with our partners in the 
Rental Property Owners’ Group is the lack of funding available to safely dismantle, haul off 
debris, and landscape lots where dilapidated or unsafe buildings currently exist. We are confident 
that the research of our partner will mirror this concern in regards to dealing with lots that have 
been adjudicated through civil due process to be condemned and torn down.  
 



 
CAF:  12--72 
Page 5 of 7 

 

Equipment 
Item      Computation    Cost 
Vehicle-based License Recognition System 2 X $16,550    $33,100.00 
Back Office System/Server   1 X $4,000    $4,000.00 
Portable License Recognition System 1 X $40,000    $40,000.00 
Police Records/Mobile Field Reporting 1 X $86,000    $86,000.00 
        SUB-TOTAL  $163,100.00 
One of the greatest needs of the Henderson Police Department in dealing with crime in the 
designated area is the means to gather and disseminate information accurately and quickly 
without the assignment of additional manpower. License Plate Recognition Systems are one of 
the most frequently cited pieces of technology available to law enforcement that is recognized as 
a “force multiplier” technology. Henderson has no public transportation system. Therefore, 
almost all traffic to and from the designated area is in privately owned vehicles or on foot. 
Persons engaged in criminal enterprises and who are wanted and their vehicle listed in State and 
Local “hot files” can be difficult to locate when “on the move” constantly. Within the last year, 
the Henderson Police Department has experienced an increase in the location of and arrests for 
persons possessing heroin “bindles” for sale and use. Intelligence gathered indicates that the 
heroin trade within the City is being conducted almost completely from private vehicles rather 
than sold in residences.  
Another area of intelligence information and “real time” data needed for officers to respond more 
effectively in the designated area is access to Mobile Computer Assisted Dispatch (CAD) and to 
online Field Based Reporting (FBR) which will integrate with the Henderson Police 
Department’s existing Records Management System. While officers currently have Mobile Data 
Terminals that have access to the NC information “clearinghouse” known as CJLEADS and the 
statewide State Warrant database (NCAWARE) there is no interface with the 911 Dispatch 
computer system or the Police Department’s Records System to inform officers of calls in “hot 
spots”, access to local image databases or out of state warrants (NCIC). Some cars do have 
access to NCIC through older Motorola VPN Data Modems but these units are obsolete and are 
difficult to repair. Without funding the Police Department is unable to implement a Mobile Data 
Network that is fully accessible to all officers. No system of providing “real time” information is 
available.  
 
Personnel   $23,250.00 
Fringe Benefits  $4,431.46 
Contracts    $100,000.00 
Equipment   $163,100.00 
TOTAL FIRST YEAR $290,781.46 
 
 
Year Two 
Personnel 
Name/Position     Computation    Cost 
Police Officer – Premium Overtime  750 hours X $31 per hour  $23,250.00 
        SUB-TOTAL  $23,250.00 
Fringe Benefits 



 
CAF:  12--72 
Page 6 of 7 

 

401K      750 hrs X $31 X 5%   $1,162.50 
FICA      750 hrs X $31 X 7.65%  $1,778.63 
Retirement     750 hrs X $31 X 6.41%  $1,490.33 
        SUB-TOTAL  $4,431.46 
In Year Two of this project, officers of the Henderson Police Department will continue Zone-
Oriented assignments to target hot spots, including initiatives with other law enforcement 
agencies. Assignments will be based on the desired goals and objectives as outlined by the CRI 
Partnership following the initial stage, Crime Analysis and community input.  
Equipment 
Item      Computation    Cost 
Sirchie Mobile Office/Command Unit 1 X $220,000    $220,000.00 
        SUB-TOTAL  $220,000.00 
This is a “big ticket item” in comparison to the other requests in the overall project budget. 
However, the Henderson Police Department does not have the funding to purchase an 
operational mobile office to use as a “field office” or temporary satellite office within the 
designated area. While our partners in the Rental Property Owner’s Group have offered some 
locations within the area to utilize as a “base of operations” in the past the costs of ensuring 
security for any equipment, computers, telephones, etc. housed in this locations did not make this 
a viable alternative. By purchasing an equipped mobile office the Police Department and our 
partners can “bring the PD to the problem”. The unit will be specified to enable HPD 
communications, telephone and computer systems to be operated out of the mobile office which 
would allow not only officers to have a temporary headquarters in a “hot spot” area but would 
also enable support personnel and personnel gathering intelligence direct street level access to 
the “hot spot” sight while working with officers to deal with problems.  
Personnel   $23,250.00 
Fringe Benefits  $4,431.46 
Equipment   $220,000.00 
Second Year Total  $247,681.46 
 
Year Three 
Personnel 
Name/Position     Computation    Cost 
Police Officer – Premium Overtime  1000 hours X $31 per hour  $31,000.00 
        SUB-TOTAL  $31,000.00 
Fringe Benefits 
401K      1000 hrs X $31 X 5%   $1,550.00 
FICA      1000 hrs X $31 X 7.65%  $2,371.50 
Retirement     1000 hrs X $31 X 6.41%  $1,987.10 
        SUB-TOTAL  $5,908.60 
 
In Year Three of this project, the primary focus as far as grant funding will be allowing Police 
Officers to fully implement the strategies that the CRI program indicates will be most effective 
in dealing with the crime problems in the designated area. Officers will also be used to collect 
data from residents and business owners in the area in order to perform the planned evaluation of 
the CRI efforts in the area and any future needs that should be addressed. Other expenses, costs 



 
CAF:  12--72 
Page 7 of 7 

 

and projects at this point will be funded through leveraged resources, volunteer “match in kind” 
work and in allowing public or private agencies assume some of the prevention and maintenance 
programs within the area so that law enforcement and other agencies can focus their attention on 
dealing with issues in another area using similar problem solving skills.  
Personnel  $31,000.00 
Fringe Benefits $5,908.60 
Year Three Total $36,908.60 
 
TOTAL FIRST YEAR $290,781.46 
TOTAL SECOND YEAR $247,681.46 
TOTAL THIRD YEAR $36,908.60 
Total Funding Request $575,371.52 
 

 



 
 
 
 
 

 
________________________________________ 

4 June 2012 
 
 

TO: The Honorable Mayor James D. O’Geary and Members of City Council 
 
FR: A. Ray Griffin, Jr., City Manager 
 
RE: CAF:  12-16 

Consideration of Approval of Ordinance 12-13, FY 12 BA #47 to Close Out the 2010 
Weed Seed Grant 2010 –WS-QX-0108 

 
Ladies and Gentlemen: 
 
Council Goals Addressed By This Item: 
 
 KSO 2:  Reduce Crime ( in the designated Weed/Seed Zone) 

 
 KSO 8:  Adequate Financial Resourcing 

 
 
Recommendation: 
 
 Approval of Ordinance 12-13, FY 12 BA #47 to Close Out the 2010 Weed Seed Grant 

2010 –WS-QX-0108 
 
Executive Summary 
 
The Weed and Seed grant approved for Henderson and Vance County recently completed the 
fifth of a five year appropriation by the Unites States Department of Justice.  Additionally on the 
national level the Federal Government has eliminated all funding for Weed and Seed programs 
across the country.   Close-out documents have been submitted and accepted/approved by the 
Grants Program Manager with the USDOJ and it is now appropriate to officially close out this 
Weed Seed Grant.   
 
Enclosures: 

1. Ordinance 12-13 
2. USDOJ Standard Closeout Package Status 
3. Final Financial Status Report 
4. Final Progress Report 

City Council Action Form 
Office of City Manager 

P. O. Box 1434 
Henderson, NC  27536 

252.430.5701 

 
Agenda Item: _____________ 
 
Council Meeting:  11 June 12 Regular Meeting 
 



O R D I N A N C E  12—13 
 
Council Member **  introduced the following Ordinance that was seconded by Council Member 
** and read: 

FY 2011 -- 2012  
AN AMENDMENT TO THE WEED & SEED 2010 GRANT 

BUDGET AMENDMENT #47 
 

WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Henderson, on 27 September 2010, adopted the 
Weed & Seed Grant – 2010 Budget; and 

 
WHEREAS, it is necessary to amend the various revenue and expense accounts of the Weed & 

Seed Fund as different projects open and close. 
 
NOW THEREFORE BE IT ORDAINED by the City Council of The City of Henderson, that 

the following Ordinance be approved and said Ordinance shall be effective immediately 
upon approval of the City Council: 

 



Approved Current
Department Line Item Code 1-Jul-11 Budget Amendment Revised

Dept of Justice 95-921-458218 -$             157,000.00$   (13,337.00)$     143,663.00$                
-$             -$               -$                -$                           
-$             -$               -$                -$                           
-$             -$               -$                -$                           
-$             -$               -$                -$                           

Total -$             157,000.00$   (13,337.00)$     143,663.00$                
143,663.00$                

Approved Current
Department Line Item Code 1-Jul-11 Budget Amendment Revised

Salaries & Wages 95-926-500200 -$             39,552.00$     (4,175.00)$       35,377.00$                  
Salaries & Wages - PT 95-926-500300 -$             11,910.00$     (59.00)$           11,851.00$                  
FICA 95-926-500500 -$             6,211.00$       (388.00)$         5,823.00$                   
Medicare 95-926-500501 -$             -$               173.00$          173.00$                      
Group Insurance 95-926-500600 -$             5,610.00$       (521.00)$         5,089.00$                   
Retirement 95-926-500700 -$             2,536.00$       (341.00)$         2,195.00$                   
Overtime 95-926-500800 -$             36,700.00$     (2,250.00)$       34,450.00$                  
Telephone 95-926-501100 -$             1,620.00$       (967.00)$         653.00$                      
Travel & Schools 95-926-501400 -$             1,139.00$       (1,032.00)$       107.00$                      
Advertising 95-926-502600 -$             2,998.00$       (2,998.00)$       -$                           
Departmental Supplies 95-926-503300 -$             3,958.00$       (438.00)$         3,520.00$                   
Contracted Services 95-926-504500 -$             37,000.00$     -$                37,000.00$                  
Insurance 95-926-505400 -$             1,766.00$       (335.00)$         1,431.00$                   
Capital Outlay <$5,000 95-926-507400 -$             6,000.00$       (6.00)$             5,994.00$                   

-$             -$               -$                -$                           

Total -$             157,000.00$   (13,337.00)$     143,663.00$                
143,663.00$                

Variance -$               

Approved Current
Department Line Item Code 1-Jul-11 Budget Amendment Revised

Dept. of Justice 95-921-458218 -$             143,663.00$   (143,663.00)$   -$                           
-$             -$               -$                -$                           
-$             -$               -$                -$                           

Total -$             143,663.00$   (143,663.00)$   -$                           
-$                           

Approved Current
Department Line Item Code 1-Jul-11 Budget Amendment Revised

Salaries & Wages 95-926-500200 -$             35,377.00$     (35,377.00)$     -$                           
Salaries & Wages - PT 95-926-500300 -$             11,851.00$     (11,851.00)$     -$                           
FICA 95-926-500500 -$             5,823.00$       (5,823.00)$       -$                           
Medicare 95-926-500501 -$             173.00$         (173.00)$         -$                           
Group Insurance 95-926-500600 -$             5,089.00$       (5,089.00)$       -$                           
Retirement 95-926-500700 -$             2,195.00$       (2,195.00)$       -$                           
Overtime 95-926-500800 -$             34,450.00$     (34,450.00)$     -$                           
Telephone 95-926-501100 -$             653.00$         (653.00)$         -$                           
Travel & Schools 95-926-501400 -$             107.00$         (107.00)$         -$                           
Advertising 95-926-502600 -$             -$               -$                -$                           
Departmental Supplies 95-926-503300 -$             3,520.00$       (3,520.00)$       -$                           
Contracted Services 95-926-504500 -$             37,000.00$     (37,000.00)$     -$                           
Insurance 95-926-505400 -$             1,431.00$       (1,431.00)$       -$                           
Capital Outlay <$5,000 95-926-507400 -$             5,994.00$       (5,994.00)$       -$                           

Total -$             143,663.00$   (143,663.00)$   -$                           
-$                           

Variance -$               

Notes:
This Budget Amendment serves to re-align the revenue and expenditures of the Weed and 
Seed 2010 Grant as they were received and spent and then to subsequently close out that 
grant.  The grant was administered on a reimbursement basis; therefore, there are no funds 
to return.

Reference:
Ord 12-13 & CAF 12-16 on 11 Jun 2012

Ordinance 12-13
FY 11-12 Budget Amendment #47

Weed & Seed 2010 Grant

95: WEED & SEED GRANT EXPENDITURES

FUNDS:

95: WEED & SEED 2010 GRANT EXPENDITURES

95: WEED & SEED GRANT REVENUES

95: WEED & SEED 2010 GRANT REVENUES

 



BE IT FURTHER ORDAINED that the City Manager and Finance Director are authorized to 
effect appropriate budgetary closeout of this grant in the City’s budgetary accounting 
system. 

 
The foregoing Ordinance 12-13, upon motion of Council Member ** and second by Council 
Member ***, and having been submitted to a roll call vote and received the following votes and 
was *** on this the 11 day of June 2012:  YES: ***.  NO:  **.   ABSTAIN:  **.   ABSENT:  **.             
 

___________________________________ 
James D. O’Geary, Mayor 

 
ATTEST: 
 
_______________________________ 
Esther J. McCrackin, City Clerk 
 
Reference:  Minute Book 42 p. ***; CAF 12-16 
 
____________ 
 
STATE OF NORTH CAROLINA 
CITY OF HENDERSON 
 
I, Esther J. McCrackin, the duly appointed, qualified City Clerk of the City of Henderson, do 
hereby certify the attached is a true and exact copy of Ordinance 12-13 adopted by the 
Henderson, City Council in Regular Session on 11 June 2012 (Minute Book 42 p.**). This 
Ordinance is recorded in Ordinance Book 8, p. ***. 
 
Witness my hand and corporate seal of the City, this 11th day of June 2012. 
 
_________________________ 
Esther J. McCrackin 
City Clerk 
City of Henderson, North Carolina 



Attachment A 
Ordinance 12—13 

FY 11-12 Budget Ordinance Amendment #47 
(Reference:  CAF: 12-16  Ordinance 12-13) 

 
This Budget Amendment services to re-align the expenditures of the Weed and Seed 2010 Grant 
as they were spent and then to subsequently close out that grant.  The grant was administered on 
a reimbursement basis; therefore, there are no funds to return.   
 
 
   
Reviewed by:  _______________________________ Date:  _______________________ 
                         Katherine C. Brafford, Finance Director 
 
 
Reviewed by:  _______________________________ Date: _______________________ 
  A. Ray Griffin, Jr., City Manager 



 



 



 



 



 



 



 



 



 



 



 



 



 



 



 



 



 



 



 



 



 



 
 



 1

 
 
 
 
 
 

______________________________________ 
 

4 June 2012 
 

TO: The Honorable Mayor James D O’Geary and Members of City Council 
 
FR: A. Ray Griffin, Jr., City Manager 
 
RE: CAF:  12—70    

Consideration of Approval of Ordinance 12-39, Authorizing FY 12 Budget 
Amendment #49, to Budget a Reimbursement from Vance County for the City’s 
Participation in a Disaster Preparedness Training Exercise sponsored By FEMA. 

 
Ladies and Gentlemen: 
 
Recommendation: 
 
 Approval of Ordinance 12-39, Authorizing FY 12 Budget Amendment #49, to Budget a 

Reimbursement from Vance County for the City’s Participation in a Disaster Preparedness 
Training Exercise sponsored By FEMA. 

 
Executive Summary 
 
Vance County coordinated a Disaster Preparedness Exercise which took place on Saturday, 
February 4, 2012.  The City’s Public Safety and Public Works departments participated in this 
exercise.  The County received FEMA funds to help offset the costs of the exercise.  The County, 
in turn, has reimbursed the City for the majority of the costs incurred in overtime for its 
employees.  This budget amendment will allocate the funds to the three departments which 
participated, Police, Fire and Public Works, based on the total overtime costs incurred by each of 
the departments.  Police had 15 officers who participated, Fire had 17, and Public Works had 4. 
 
Enclosures  
 

1. Ordinance 12-39 
 
 

City Council Action Form 
Office of City Manager 

P. O. Box 1434 
Henderson, NC  27536 

252.430.5701 

 
Agenda Item: _____________ 
 
Council Meeting:  11 June 12 Regular Meeting 
 



 2

O R D I N A N C E  12—39 
 
Council Member **  introduced the following Ordinance that was seconded by Council Member 
** and read: 

AN AMENDMENT TO THE FY 2011 -- 2012 BUDGET 
BUDGET AMENDMENT #49 

 
WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Henderson, on 13 June 2011, adopted the FY 11-12 

Municipal Operating and Capital Budget; and 
 
WHEREAS, it is necessary to amend the various revenue and expense accounts of the annual 

budget from time-to-time, and the reason for FY 11-12 Budget Amendment #49 is 
described in the Notes box of the Ordinance. 

 
NOW THEREFORE BE IT ORDAINED by the City Council of The City of Henderson, that 

the following Budget Ordinance Amendment be approved and said Ordinance shall be 
effective immediately upon approval of the City Council: 

 

FUND: General

REASON: Reimbursement from Vance County

Approved Current
1-Jul-11 Budget Amendment Revised

10-100-477070 -$             -$               4,113.00$        4,113.00$                   
-$             -$               -$                -$                           

Total -$             -$               4,113.00$        4,113.00$                   
4,113.00$                   

Approved Current
1-Jul-11 Budget Amendment Revised

10-510-500800 6,600.00$     6,600.00$       1,838.00$        8,438.00$                   
10-530-500800 -$             -$               43.00$            43.00$                        
10-530-500801 30,000.00$    30,000.00$     1,876.00$        31,876.00$                  
10-570-500800 500.00$        5,860.48$       356.00$          6,216.48$                   

 -$             -$               -$                -$                           
-$             -$               -$                -$                           

Total 37,100.00$    42,460.48$     4,113.00$        46,573.48$                  
46,573.48$                  

Variance -$               

Callback Time - Fire
Overtime - Public Works

Reimbursement from Vance County - Misc
GENERAL FUND REVENUES

GENERAL FUND EXPENDITURES
Overtime - Police

 

Overtime - Fire

Reference:
CAF: 12-70, Ordinance 12-39; 11 June 12 Council Meeting

Ordinance 12-39
FY 11-12 Budget Amendment #49

Notes:

Reimbursement from Vance County for the City's participation in the Disaster Readiness 
training on Saturday, 2/4/12.  Thirty-six employees from public safety and public works 
participated (15 from Police; 17 from Fire;  4 from Public Works).  FEMA reimbursed Vance 
County and the County sent us our portion.

 
 
 
 
 
 



 3

The foregoing Ordinance 12-39, upon motion of Council Member ** and second by Council 
Member ***, and having been submitted to a roll call vote and received the following votes and 
was *** on this the 11 day of June 2012:  YES: ***.  NO:  **.   ABSTAIN:  **.   ABSENT:  **.             
 

___________________________________ 
James D. O’Geary, Mayor 

 
ATTEST: 
 
_______________________________ 
Esther J. McCrackin, City Clerk 
 
Reference:  Minute Book 42 p. ***; CAF 12-70 
 
____________ 
 
STATE OF NORTH CAROLINA 
CITY OF HENDERSON 
 
I, Esther J. McCrackin, the duly appointed, qualified City Clerk of the City of Henderson, do 
hereby certify the attached is a true and exact copy of Ordinance 12—39 adopted by the 
Henderson, City Council in Regular Session on ** *** 2012 (Minute Book 42 p.**). This 
Ordinance is recorded in Ordinance Book 8, p. ***. 
 
Witness my hand and corporate seal of the City, this *** day of June 2012. 
 
_________________________ 
Esther J. McCrackin 
City Clerk 
City of Henderson, North Carolina 
 
 
 
 
 
Reviewed by:  __________________________________        Date:  ______________________ 
                         Katherine C. Brafford, Finance Director 
 
 
Reviewed by:  __________________________________         Date: ______________________ 
  A. Ray Griffin, Jr., City Manager 
 
 
 
 

 



 

 
 
 
 
 

 
________________________________________ 

 

22 May 2012 
 
 
TO: The Honorable Mayor James D O’Geary and Members of City Council 
FR: A. Ray Griffin, Jr., City Manager 
RE: CAF: 12-11 Consideration of Approval of Resolution 12-27, Authorizing the 

Closeout of the 2007 HOPE VI Grant Number NC19URD27536M07 and Ordinance 
12-30, FY 12 Budget Amendment #40 to Close Out the Revenue and Expense 
Accounts for This Grant.  
 

Ladies and Gentlemen: 
 
Council Goals Addressed By This Item: 
 
Recommendation: 
 
 Approval of Resolution 12-27, Authorizing the Closeout of the 2007 HOPE VI Grant 

Number NC19URD27536M07 and Ordinance 12-30, FY 12 Budget Amendment #40 to 
Close Out the Revenue and Expense Accounts for This Grant.  

 
 
Executive Summary 
 
In 2007, the City of Henderson was awarded a Hope VI Main Street revitalization grant in the 
amount of $1,000,000, and the budget for this grant was adopted on 28 July 2008. The grant was 
to provide funds for renovation of the second floors above existing downtown retail spaces.  This 
project consisted of 12 one bedroom and two bedroom apartments.  It was a collaboration of a 
public and private partnership.  The total project cost for HOPE VI Phase I was $1.38 million, 
with $1,012,000 managed by the City of Henderson and the remainder, which were private 
funds, by the individual entities owning the properties. It is respectfully requested that the 
Council approve Resolution 12-27 authorizing the Mayor to sign, on behalf of the City Council; 
and Ordinance 12-30, FY 12 Budget Amendment #40,  to effectively close out the budget for this 
grant. 
 
Attachments: 

1. Resolution 12-27 
2. Ordinance 12-30 
3. Final Budget 
4. Actual Hope VI Cost Certificate 
5. Financial Status Report (HUD Form 269A) 
6. Termination of Disbursement Letter 

City Council Action Form 
Office of City Manager 

P. O. Box 1434 
Henderson, NC  27536 

252.430.5701 

    
 
 
 
 
Agenda Item: _____________ 
 
Council Meeting:  11 June 12 Regular Meeting



 

RESOLUTION 12-27 
 

RESOLUTION  
REQUESTING THE CLOSEOUT OF THE HOPE VI MAIN STREET 

REVITALIZATION GRANT # NC19URD27536M07 
 
 

WHEREAS, City of Henderson was awarded a HOPE VI Main Street Revitalization grant in 
2007 in the amount of $1 million; and 

 
WHEREAS, this was the first grant of this kind to be constructed in the country; and 
 
WHEREAS, this grant was for the renovation of the second floors of existing businesses in the 

downtown commercial district; and  
 
WHEREAS, this grant created 12 residential two and three bedroom apartment units in the 

downtown business district; and  
 
WHEREAS, this was a public private partnership effort with a total investment of $1.38 million; 

and 
 
 WHEREAS, this resolution authorizes the Mayor to sign and execute all closeout documents  

on behalf of the City. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED BY THE HENDERSON CITY COUNCIL that it 

does hereby request the United States Department of Housing and Urban Development 
close grant # NC19URD27537M07. 

 
The foregoing Resolution 12-27, upon motion of Council Member _____ and second by Council 
Member ______, and having been submitted to a roll call vote received the following votes 
YES:**. NO: **. ABSTAIN: ** ABSENT: ** and was approved on this 11th day of June 2012. 
 
        ______________________________ 
        James D. O’Geary, Mayor 
 
ATTEST: 
 
_______________________________________ 
Esther McCrackin, City Clerk 
 
Approved as to Legal Form 
 
______________________ 
John H. Zollicoffer, Jr., City Attorney 
 
Reference Minute Book 42, pg. *** 



 

O R D I N A N C E  12—30 
 
Council Member **  introduced the following Ordinance that was seconded by Council Member 
** and read: 

FY 2011 -- 2012  
AN AMENDMENT TO THE HOPE VI GRANT 

BUDGET AMENDMENT #40 
 

WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Henderson, on 28 July 2008, adopted the Hope VI 
Grant; and 

 
WHEREAS, it is necessary to amend the various revenue and expense accounts of the Hope VI 

Grant Fund as different projects open and close. 
 
NOW THEREFORE BE IT ORDAINED by the City Council of The City of Henderson, that 

the following Ordinance be approved and said Ordinance shall be effective immediately 
upon approval of the City Council: 

 



 

FUND: 91: Hope VI
PROJECT: Hope VI Phase I

Approved Current
28-Jul-08 Budget Amendment Revised

91-910-458209 1,000,000$    1,000,000$     (85)$                999,915$                    
91-910-509901 -$             -$               12,000$          12,000$                      

-$             -$               -$                
-$             -$               -$                
-$             -$               -$                -$                           

Total 1,000,000$    1,000,000$     11,915$          1,011,915$                  
1,011,915$                  

Approved Current
28-Jul-08 Budget Amendment Revised

91-911-504514 172,425$      172,425$        (2,700)$           169,725$                    
91-911-504516 227,500$      240,420$        240,420$                    
91-911-504517 600,075$      587,155$        2,615$            589,770$                    
91-911-504519 -$             -$               12,000$          12,000$                      

-$             -$               -$                -$                           
-$             -$               -$                -$                           
-$             -$               -$                -$                           
-$             -$               -$                -$                           

-$                -$                           

Total 1,000,000$    1,000,000$     11,915$          1,011,915$                  
1,011,915$                  

Variance -$               

FUND: 91: Hope VI
PROJECT: Hope VI Phase I

Approved Current
28-Jul-08 Budget Amendment Revised

91-910-458209 1,000,000$    999,915$        (999,915)$        -$                           
91-910-509901 -$             12,000$         (12,000)$         -$                           

-$             -$               -$                
-$             -$               -$                
-$             -$               -$                -$                           

Total 1,000,000$    1,011,915$     (1,011,915)$     -$                           
-$                           

Approved Current
28-Jul-08 Budget Amendment Revised

91-911-504514 172,425$      169,725$        (169,725)$        -$                           
91-911-504516 227,500$      240,420$        (240,420)$        -$                           
91-911-504517 600,075$      589,770$        (589,770)$        -$                           
91-911-504519 -$             12,000$         (12,000)$         -$                           

-$             -$               -$                -$                           
-$             -$               -$                -$                           
-$             -$               -$                -$                           
-$             -$               -$                -$                           

-$                -$                           

Total 1,000,000$    1,011,915$     (1,011,915)$     -$                           
-$                           

Variance -$               
Reference: Notes:  This Budget Amendment serves to close out the project budget.  $85.92 needs to

be returned to the US Dept of Housing & Urban Development.
 

EXPENDITURES
Fees & Costs
Site Improvements
Dwelling Structures
Façade Repairs

Fees & Costs
EXPENDITURES

Site Improvements
Dwelling Structures
Façade Repairs

façade repsirs.These entries will complete the paperwork  so that the grant can be closed out.

Notes:  This Budget Amendment serves to re-align expenditure budgets in the project 
grant to those line items from which they were spent and to budget the $12,000 transfer from

Ordinance 12-30

Transfer from Henderson-Vance DDC

Reference:

Project Budget Created: 28 July 08:        
REVENUES
US Dept of Housing & Urban Development
Grant Match

FY 11-12 Budget Amendment #40

Budget Amendment #1 to this Capital/Grant Project

Project Budget Created: 28 July 08:        
REVENUES
US Dept of Housing & Urban Development

Henderson-Vance DDC for the grant match.  Records indicate that the budget was never
amended to reflect the transfer for the grant match & the corresponding expenditure for

Ordinance 12-30
FY 11-12 Budget Amendment #40

Budget Amendment #1 to this Capital/Grant Project

 
 
 
 
 
BE IT FURTHER ORDAINED that the City Manager and Finance Director are authorized to 

effect appropriate budgetary closeout of this grant in the City’s budgetary accounting 
system. 



 

 
The foregoing Ordinance 12-30 upon motion of Council Member ** and second by Council 
Member ***, and having been submitted to a roll call vote and received the following votes and 
was *** on this the 11 day of June 2012:  YES: ***.  NO:  **.   ABSTAIN:  **.   ABSENT:  **.             
 

___________________________________ 
James D. O’Geary, Mayor 

 
ATTEST: 
 
_______________________________ 
Esther J. McCrackin, City Clerk 
 
Reference:  Minute Book 42 p. ***; CAF 12-11 
 
____________ 
 
STATE OF NORTH CAROLINA 
CITY OF HENDERSON 
 
I, Esther J. McCrackin, the duly appointed, qualified City Clerk of the City of Henderson, do 
hereby certify the attached is a true and exact copy of Ordinance 12-30 adopted by the 
Henderson, City Council in Regular Session on 11 June 2012 (Minute Book 42 p.**). This 
Ordinance is recorded in Ordinance Book 8, p. ***. 
 
Witness my hand and corporate seal of the City, this *** day of June 2012. 
 
_________________________ 
Esther J. McCrackin 
City Clerk 
City of Henderson, North Carolina 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Attachment A 
Ordinance 12—30 

FY 11-12 Budget Ordinance Amendment 40 
(Reference:  CAF: 12-11  Ordinance 12-30) 

 



 

This Budget Amendment services to re-align the expenditures of the Hope VI Grant as they were 
spent and then to subsequently close out that grant.  Funds in the amount of $85.00 are to be 
returned to the US Dept. of Housing and Urban Development.   
 
 
   
Reviewed by:  ___________________________________ Date:  _______________________ 
                         Katherine C. Brafford, Finance Director 
 
 
Reviewed by:  ___________________________________ Date: _______________________ 
  A. Ray Griffin, Jr., City Manager 



 

 

CAF 12-11 
Attachment #3 



 



 

 



 

 



 

 



 

 



 

 



 

 

CAF 12-11 
Attachment # 4 



 



 

 

                   CAF 12-11 
                       Attachment #5 



 

 



 

 
 
 

 
Office of the Mayor  

134 Rose Avenue, P. O. Box 1434, Henderson, NC  27536 
Phone 252.430.5708 : Fax 252.492.7935 :  E-mail pogeary@ci.henderson.nc.us 

www.ci.henderson.nc.us  
             

 
11 June 2012 

 
 
 
Ms. Dominique Blom 
Deputy Assistant Secretary 
Office of Public Housing Investments 
U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development 
451 7th Street, SW, Suite 4130 
Washington, DC  20410 
 
RE:   HOPE VI Main Street Grant Close-Out 
 Henderson, North Carolina 
         HOPE VI Grant No.: NC19URD27536M07 
  
 
Dear Ms.  Blom: 
 
This letter serves as our Termination of Disbursements Letter in connection with our HOPE VI 
Main Street Grant for the Henderson NC FY 2007 Main Street project.  The City of Henderson 
NC has completed all activities to be performed using HOPE VI Main Street funds.  All 
requirements of the Grant Agreement have been met, including reporting requirements.  All 
obligated HOPE VI Main Street grant funds have been disbursed.  The City of Henderson NC 
will abide by all continuing Federal regulations.  In addition, the City of Henderson NC will 
complete all non-HOPE VI Main Street funded activities, if any, associated with the Main Street 
revitalization effort and complete and close-out the Henderson 2007 Main Street grant as 
directed by the Office of Public Housing Investments. 
 
In addition, enclosed please find the following Preliminary Close-Out Materials required per the 
Close-Out Procedures for HOPE VI Main Street Grants: 
 
 1)  Final HOPE VI Main Street Budget  
 2)  Financial Status Report 
 3)  Actual HOPE VI Cost Certificate (use this form for Main Street Cost Certificate) 
 4)  Final Main Street Evaluation Report 
 
 

                          CAF 12-11 
Attachment #6 



 

There were no Community and Supportive Services (CSS) provided or funded with this FY 2007 
HOPE VI Main Street grant and therefore no CSS Close-Out materials are required. 
 
Upon your approval of the above documents, the City of Henderson NC will contract for a final 
audit of the HOPE VI Main Street Grant. 
 
Sincerely, 
 
 
 
 
Mayor James D. O’Geary 
City of Henderson, North Carolina 
 



 1

 
 
 
 
 

 
________________________________________ 

3 June 2012 
 

TO: The Honorable Mayor James D. O’Geary and Members of City Council 
FR: A. Ray Griffin, Jr., City Manager 
RE: CAF 12-68 

Consideration of Approval of Tax Releases and Refunds from Vance County for the 
months of July 2011 through January 2012. 

  
 
Ladies and Gentlemen: 
 
Recommendation: 
 
 Approval of tax releases and refunds from Vance County for the months of July 2011 

through January 2012. 
 
Executive Summary 
 
The Vance County Tax office submitted the following tax releases and refunds to the Finance 
Department for the months July 2011 through January 2012.  These releases and refunds are now 
being sent to Council.  They are found to be in order and are being recommended for approval.  
 
    
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

City Council Action Form 
Office of City Manager 

P. O. Box 1434 
Henderson, NC  27536 

252.430.5701 

 
Agenda Item: _____________ 
 
Council Meeting:  11 June 12 Reg Meeting 
 



 2

July 2011 

   
   

Short, Eddie S. Mrs. Foreclosure 2000                       178.98 

Short, Jessie & Eddie Foreclosure 2000                       327.88 

Short, Eddie S. Mrs. Foreclosure 2001                       178.98 

Short, Jessie & Eddie Foreclosure 2001                       327.88 

Short, Eddie S. Mrs. Foreclosure 2002                       194.96 

Short, Jessie & Eddie Foreclosure 2002                       357.16 

Woodlief, G. Wayne Mrs. Foreclosure 2002                         32.59 

Short, Eddie S. Mrs. Foreclosure 2003                       194.96 

Short, Jessie & Eddie Foreclosure 2003                       357.16 

Woodlief, G. Wayne Mrs. Foreclosure 2003                         81.80 

Short, Eddie S. Mrs. Foreclosure 2004                       204.54 

Short, Jessie & Eddie Foreclosure 2004                       374.72 

Woodlief, G. Wayne Mrs. Foreclosure 2004                         85.82 

Short, Eddie S. Mrs. Foreclosure 2005                       214.13 

Short, Jessie & Eddie Foreclosure 2005                       392.29 

Woodlief, G. Wayne Mrs. Foreclosure 2005                         89.85 

Short, Eddie S. Mrs. Foreclosure 2006                       214.13 

Woodlief, G. Wayne Mrs. Foreclosure 2006                         89.85 

Plummer, Malcolm Foreclosure 2007                       163.35 

Short, Eddie S. Mrs. Foreclosure 2007                       214.13 

Woodlief, G. Wayne Mrs. Foreclosure 2007                         89.85 

Plummer, Malcolm Foreclosure 2008                         93.45 

Rooker, Waverly Lee Foreclosure 2008                       356.23 

Short, Eddie S. Mrs. Foreclosure 2008                       104.64 

Woodlief, G. Wayne Mrs. Foreclosure 2008                         84.75 

Plummer, Malcolm Foreclosure 2009                         96.76 

Rooker, Waverly Lee Foreclosure 2009                       368.84 

Short, Eddie S. Mrs. Foreclosure 2009                    1,958.34 

Woodlief, G. Wayne Mrs. Foreclosure 2009                         87.75 

Plummer, Malcolm Foreclosure 2010                         96.76 

Rooker, Waverly Lee Foreclosure 2010                       368.84 

Short, Eddie S. Mrs. Foreclosure 2010                       108.34 

Woodlief, G. Wayne Mrs. Foreclosure 2010                         87.75 

Compare Foods Correct Value 2011                    3,822.37 

Compare Foods Correct Value 2011                    4,452.30 

Compare Foods Correct Value 2011                    5,044.22 

Compare Foods Correct Value 2011                    6,835.61 

Compare Foods Correct Value 2011                    7,735.44 

Shearin, Angela Faye
Personal Property 
Billed

2011                         10.54 

Cash, Rita Dianne Pro-rate 2010                           9.96 

Cash, Rita Dianne Pro-rate 2010                           8.92 

NAME
REASON FOR 

RELEASES
TAX YEAR

AMOUNT OF 
RELEASE



 3

July 2011 (cont’d)  

   
 

   

Champion, Walter Pro-rate 2010                          13.63 

Cook, Stephanie Mozell Pro-rate 2010                          10.58 

Foster Septic Tank  Correct Situs 2010                        140.75 

Fuller, James William  Correct Situs 2010                          58.15 

Hanley, Patricia Taylor  Non-Military SPO 2010                          87.07 

Hargrove, Nannie Brandom  Pro-rate 2010                            2.15 

Harrison, Germaine Lamont  Correct Situs 2010                          62.30 

Hughes, Mickey Mantle  Pro-rate 2010                          13.47 

Johnson, Felicia Nacole  Pro-rate 2010                            2.39 

Jones Charles Louis  Pro-rate 2010                            2.81 

Ledesma, Alfredo Salinas Pro-rate 2010                            1.89 

Person, Tony Leander Pro-rate 2010                            7.95 

Person, Tony Leander Pro-rate 2010                          24.89 

Prudencio , Ruben Moreno Pro-rate 2010                            3.10 

Rogers, Bobby Wayne Pro-rate 2010                          23.83 

Wilkins, Shannon Marie Pro-rate 2010                            8.26 

Williams, Angela Marie Pro-rate 2010                            2.56 

Williams, ClaudeJr. Correct Value 2010                          72.13 

Allen, Ronnie Earl Correct Value 2011                        276.38 

Bennett, Clifton Curtis Correct Situs 2011                          14.10 

Howard, Laneatria Keisa Pro-rate 2011                          16.99 

Hudson, John Russell Correct Situs 2011                          13.33 

Johnson, James Joseph Correct Situs 2011                          56.51 

Johnson, Wilfort Ferrell Correct Situs 2011                            1.76 

Johnson, Wilfort Ferrell Correct Situs 2011                          20.18 

Orr, Daniel Walter Correct Situs 2011                          63.76 

Ranes, William Ray Correct Situs 2011                          55.66 

Ranes, William Ray Correct Situs 2011                            4.89 

Richardson, Elisabeth Ann Pro-rate 2011                            2.29 

Steagall, Robert Ray Correct Situs 2011                          37.38 

White, Marshall Dwayne Pro-rate 2011                            4.91 

Williams, Pattie Lee Correct Situs 2011                          51.71 

Zuniga, Dagoberto Rosa Correct Situs 2011                          46.04 

                  37,300.62 

REASON FOR 
RELEASES

TAX YEAR
AMOUNT OF 

RELEASE

Total

NAME

Baines, James LaCurtis Pro-rate 2010                            2.96 

Evans, Christine Harris Pro-rate 2010                            8.95 

Hargrove, Victor Young Pro-rate 2010                            2.38 

Meadows, Todd Hampton Pro-rate 2010                            6.43 

Steed, Florence Rainey Pro-rate 2010                            1.03 

Twisdale, Verla Ellington Pro-rate 2010                            2.63 

Wortham, Tony Sr. Pro-rate 2010                            6.77 

Total                         31.15 

NAME
REASON FOR 

REFUND
TAX YEAR

AMOUNT OF 
REFUND



 4

August 2011  

   
 

Abbott Chiropractic Audit Discovery 2008                       174.64 

Boone, Lillie A. Correct Value 2011                       174.57 

Boyd, Earl M. & Jessie 2011                      (156.74)

Burwell, Francine Y. Correct Value 2011                       466.22 

Burwell, Tommie G Correct Value 2011                       263.25 

Carolina Power & Light State Assessed 2011                    3,307.59 

Carolina Power & Light State Assessed 2011                         18.44 

Carolina Power & Light State Assessed 2011                       157.77 

Carolina Power & Light State Assessed 2011                    1,606.85 

Carolina Telephone State Assessed 2011                         46.80 

Cheek, Eugene H. Correct Value 2011                       286.81 

Clopton, Gayle Manry Correct Value 2011                       746.40 

Davis, Brenda Thomas Correct Value 2011                       252.43 

Deans, Fay W. Correct Value 2011                       106.80 

Fort, Charles B. Correct Value 2011                       791.09 

Foster, Ella Pro-rate 2011                       181.27 

Glover, Joseph U. Correct Value 2011                       131.89 

Gregg, Marjorie W. Correct Value 2011                       133.31 

Haskins, Ruby D. Correct Value 2011                       109.64 

Holmes, James A. Correct Value 2011                       422.80 

Hoyle, Sylvia L. Correct Value 2011                       311.03 

Kittrell, Billy N. Correct Value 2011                       235.55 

Malone, Margaret Harris Correct Value 2011                         69.41 

Mason, Ivery Carr Correct Value 2011                       179.71 

NC Dept. of Transportation State Assessed 2011                    1,561.95 

NC Dept. of Transportation State Assessed 2011                    2,717.79 

NC Dept. of Transportation State Assessed 2011                         58.50 

NC Dept. of Transportation State Assessed 2011                    2,182.32 

NC Dept. of Transportation State Assessed 2011                    8,784.99 

NC Dept. of Transportation State Assessed 2011                         58.50 

NC Dept. of Transportation State Assessed 2011                         26.33 

NC Dept. of Transportation State Assessed 2011                         58.50 

NC Dept. of Transportation State Assessed 2011                         58.50 

NC Dept. of Transportation State Assessed 2011                         58.50 

NC Dept. of Transportation State Assessed 2011                         47.14 

NC Dept. of Transportation State Assessed 2011                    1,665.73 

NC Dept. of Transportation State Assessed 2011                         17.55 

NC Dept. of Transportation State Assessed 2011                       122.78 

NC Dept. of Transportation State Assessed 2011                       536.74 

NC Dept. of Transportation State Assessed 2011                           0.59 

NC Dept. of Transportation State Assessed 2011                         58.50 

NC Dept. of Transportation State Assessed 2011                         51.18 

NC Dept. of Transportation State Assessed 2011                       115.83 

NC Dept. of Transportation State Assessed 2011                         70.67 

NAME
REASON FOR 

RELEASES
TAX YEAR

AMOUNT OF 
RELEASE



 5

August 2011 (cont’d) 

   
   

NC Dept. of Transportation State Assessed 2011                          70.67 

NC Dept. of Transportation State Assessed 2011                          63.03 

NC Dept. of Transportation State Assessed 2011                        585.00 

NC Dept. of Transportation State Assessed 2011                          60.11 

NC Dept. of Transportation State Assessed 2011                          29.25 

NC Dept. of Transportation State Assessed 2011                          29.25 

NC Dept. of Transportation State Assessed 2011                          29.25 

NC Dept. of Transportation State Assessed 2011                          29.25 

NC Dept. of Transportation State Assessed 2011                          87.75 

NC Dept. of Transportation State Assessed 2011                          46.80 

NC Dept. of Transportation State Assessed 2011                          14.63 

NC Dept. of Transportation State Assessed 2011                          14.63 

NC Dept. of Transportation State Assessed 2011                          87.27 

NC Dept. of Transportation State Assessed 2011                          14.63 

NC Dept. of Transportation State Assessed 2011                        142.10 

NC Dept. of Transportation State Assessed 2011                          91.28 

NC Dept. of Transportation State Assessed 2011                            6.44 

NC Dept. of Transportation State Assessed 2011                          58.50 

Overby, Beverly Colbert Correct Value 2011                        236.64 

Perry, Thornton Carter Correct Value 2011                        120.71 

Powell, Robert Henry Correct Value 2011                        208.22 

Robinson, Freeland & Margaret Correct Value 2011                        157.47 

Sellers, Elsie A. Correct Value 2011                        164.95 

Stafford, Pauline M. Correct Value 2011                          95.85 

State of North Carolina State Assessed 2011                          55.25 

Theret, Thomas V. Correct Value 2011                          72.93 

Turner, Geneva F. Correct Value 2011                        248.47 

Walker, Haywood Lee Correct Value 2011                        192.81 

Wells, John L. & Marilyn C. Correct Value 2011                        309.14 

Rios, Jose Francisco Pro-rate 2009                            5.39 

Barnett, Mary Morris 2010                        (62.18)

Brantley, Elisabeth Pro-rate 2010                            8.09 

Bridges, Brian Lamont Pro-rate 2010                            6.93 

Brooks, Betty Alston Pro-rate 2010                            2.75 

Davis, Lillian Fleming 2010                        (35.33)

Farmer, Torrey Wade Pro-rate 2010                          51.62 

Hermosillo, Rafael G Pro-rate 2010                            7.23 

Howard, Demanester III Pro-rate 2010                          13.74 

Hoyle, Annie McDaniel 2010                        (33.46)

King, Shaun N. Military Exemption 2010                          97.63 

McDaniel, Earl Ray Correct Value 2010                          14.27 

McDaniel, Shirley Dennis 2010                      (101.55)

Morton, Floyd Thomas Correct Situs 2010                          11.76 

Trice, Derek Scott Pro-rate 2010                            5.02 

Turrentine, Whitaker Joann Pro-rate 2010                          12.04 

White, James MeKurry Pro-rate 2010                          10.31 

NAME
REASON FOR 

RELEASES
TAX YEAR

AMOUNT OF 
RELEASE



 6

August 2011 (cont’d) 

   

   

Abbott, Wade Thomas Correct Situs 2011                         16.84 

Abbott, Wade Thomas Correct Situs 2011                           1.76 

Abbott, Wade Thomas Correct Situs 2011                         23.51 

Abbott, Wade Thomas Correct Situs 2011                           1.76 

Abbott, Wade Thomas Correct Situs 2011                         23.51 

Baines, James Lacurtis Pro-rate 2011                         30.94 

Callahan, William M. Correct Situs 2011                         87.94 

Carroll, Kenneth Neal Correct Value 2011                         13.60 

Clodfelter, Reynolds C. Correct Value 2011                         10.75 

Ellis, Louis Berkeley Pro-rate 2011                           4.54 

Foster, John C. Correct Situs 2011                         60.60 

Foster, John C. Correct Situs 2011                           1.76 

Foster, John C. Correct Situs 2011                       151.80 

Hargrove, Jerry Pro-rate 2011                         63.17 

Harp-, Curtis Ray Correct Situs 2011                         39.43 

Hilliard, Perry H. Pro-rate 2011                           6.16 

Hundhausen, Cigdem D. Correct Situs 2011                         34.66 

Hunt, Dora Webster 2011                        (54.46)

Johnson, Wilford F. Correct Situs 2011                         13.51 

Jones, Shirley Marie Pro-rate 2011                         10.73 

LeBao, Ngoc Hopang 2011                       123.14 

Matney, Roger Lee Correct Situs 2011                         70.43 

Matney, Roger Lee Correct Situs 2011                         19.65 

Moss, Stephen Wade 2011                      (139.87)

MR Williams, Inc. Pro-rate 2011                         33.62 

Newton, Robert L. Correct Situs 2011                         38.49 

Orr, Daniel Walter Correct Situs 2011                         14.91 

Pandimakeel, Xavier G. Transfer Out 2011                         89.56 

Patane, Rocco Transfer Out 2011                         17.66 

Perdue, Kenneth Correct Situs 2011                         12.93 

Riddle, Tommy Dean Transfer Out 2011                         14.92 

Stewart, Patrick A. Pro-rate 2011                         52.29 

Williams, Iris A. Pro-rate 2011                         10.11 

                 32,507.01 

NAME
REASON FOR 

RELEASES
TAX YEAR

AMOUNT OF 
RELEASE

Total

Chase Ventures Inc. Pro-rate 2010                         57.58 

Cox, William David Jr. Pro-rate 2010                           1.08 

Edwards, Stephen H & Wendy W Pro-rate 2010                           4.90 

Gill, Donna Ann Pro-rate 2010                         12.84 

Peace, Ernestine Jones Pro-rate 2010                           1.17 

Stevenson, Timothy Ray Pro-rate 2010                           0.53 

Honda Lease Trust Pro-rate 2011                         75.24 

Pierce, Serena Pro-rate 2011                         19.80 

Total                       173.14 

NAME
REASON FOR 

REFUND
TAX YEAR

AMOUNT OF 
REFUND



 7

Sept 2011 

   

Baskett, Ella G. Heirs Foreclosure 2005                          34.11 

Baskett, Ella G. Heirs Foreclosure 2006                          34.11 

Marrow, Charles Clinton Foreclosure 2006                        182.98 

Baskett, Ella G. Heirs Foreclosure 2007                          34.11 

Marrow, Charles Clinton Foreclosure 2007                        182.98 

Baskett, Ella G. Heirs Foreclosure 2008                          43.79 

Marrow, Charles Clinton Foreclosure 2008                     5,476.34 

Baskett, Ella G. Heirs Foreclosure 2009                          45.33 

Marrow, Charles Clinton Foreclosure 2009                        220.90 

Baskett, Ella G. Heirs Foreclosure 2010                          45.33 

Marrow, Charles Clinton Foreclosure 2010                        220.90 

Stovall, Mary T. Correct Value 2010                            1.17 

Zamarripa, Josel Personal Prop Billed 2010                          34.78 

Allen, Marilyn D. Correct Value 2011                        126.12 

Allen, Norman Correct Value 2011                        269.61 

Bawcum, Bettie R. Personal Prop Billed 2011                            1.76 

BNS Properties 2011                        (89.14)

Bobbitt, Hellon Correct Value 2011                          11.22 

Brigham, Lelia C. 2011                        (71.20)

Brodie, William C. 2011                          (2.26)

Bullock, Eva Bennett Correct Value 2011                          52.93 

Burroughs, Charlie 2011                      (218.04)

Butler, Anthony O. 2011                        211.82 

Chavis, Joe Douglas Correct Value 2011                          50.28 

Cheek, Amelia J. Correct Value 2011                        224.58 

Cheek, David L. Correct Value 2011                        261.72 

Childress, Betty R. Correct Value 2011                        310.07 

Clearview Baptist Church Religious 2011                        218.67 

Clearview Baptist Church Religious 2011                        243.59 

Clearview Baptist Church Religious 2011                        175.50 

Clements, Rosa Taylor Correct Value 2011                          19.65 

Crews, Alicia D. Correct Value 2011                          15.18 

Crosby, Beulah M 2011                      (144.45)

Deans, Fay W. Correct Value 2011                          39.45 

Debnam, Queen D. Correct Value 2011                        167.53 

Dickerson, Jawoundaa Correct Value 2011                          70.86 

Divine Habitation Ministery Int'l Inc. Religious 2011                        523.87 

DND Brothers LLC, /Sleep Inn Correct Value 2011                     3,380.83 

Dunston, Marshall H. Correct Value 2011                          45.35 

Edwards, Carl N. 2011                        (38.06)

Ellis, James Melvin Correct Value 2011                          64.44 

Faucette Properties 2011                      (277.87)

Fell, Joseph Correct Value 2011                          55.63 

Fields, Arnold W. 2011                        (17.28)

Fore, Alphonso 2011                      (211.82)

NAME
REASON FOR 

RELEASES
TAX YEAR

AMOUNT OF 
RELEASE



 8

Sept 2011 (cont’d)           

   

Francis, Clint Andrew Personal Prop Billed 2011                            9.36 

Frigoletti, Paul J. Correct Value 2011                          36.55 

Greenway, Tracy S. Correct Value 2011                          18.67 

Guillen, Octovio Personal Prop Billed 2011                          31.62 

Hanks, Diana D. Correct Value 2011                            4.80 

Hargrove, Edith W. Correct Value 2011                          51.98 

Hargrove, Marthelia B. 2011                        218.04 

Harriet Baptist Church Religious 2011                          81.40 

Hart, Harold N. & Lizz Correct Value 2011                          28.23 

Henderson, James H. Correct Value 2011                        218.98 

Henderson Realty Co (R. Irving) 2011                        284.23 

Housing & Urban Development 2011                     1,184.68 

Jackson, David W & Alice Correct Value 2011                          41.16 

Jarrell, A. W. Correct Value 2011                          54.09 

Johnson, Michael T. Correct Value 2011                          81.42 

Jones, Eliza B. Correct Value 2011                          28.76 

Jones, Stella D. Real Property Bill 2011                        242.83 

Jordan & Rand Restaurant Correct Value 2011                        289.79 

Jordan & Rand Restaurant Correct Value 2011                        304.13 

Kearney, Lee Correct Value 2011                          70.70 

Kelly, Emma A. Correct Value 2011                          24.70 

Kincaid, Kathy M. Remove Late List 2011                            0.81 

Martin, Brneda B. Correct Value 2011                            9.55 

Massenburg, Lafayette Correct Value 2011                          49.15 

Meadows, Harry Jr. Correct Value 2011                          47.45 

Odom, Joyce D. 2011                        (25.94)

Perry, Barbara H. Correct Value 2011                          39.81 

Pierce, Serena Correct Value 2011                          (0.06)

Prather, Una Kay 2011                        225.77 

Redevelopment Comm Henderson Government 2011                          19.74 

Redevelopment Comm Henderson Government 2011                          19.74 

Redevelopment Comm Henderson Government 2011                          87.51 

Redevelopment Comm Henderson Government 2011                          85.71 

Redevelopment Comm Henderson Government 2011                          43.58 

Redevelopment Comm Henderson Government 2011                          29.61 

Redevelopment Comm Henderson Government 2011                          16.50 

Redevelopment Comm Henderson Government 2011                          20.62 

Redevelopment Comm Henderson Government 2011                          10.34 

Redevelopment Comm Henderson Government 2011                          42.82 

Redevelopment Comm Henderson Government 2011                          21.87 

Redevelopment Comm Henderson Government 2011                        184.58 

Redevelopment Comm Henderson Government 2011                          23.69 

Redevelopment Comm Henderson Government 2011                        103.37 

Redevelopment Comm Henderson Government 2011                          97.12 

Redevelopment Comm Henderson Government 2011                          26.33 

Redevelopment Comm Henderson Government 2011                        120.29 

Redevelopment Comm Henderson Government 2011                          86.63 

Redevelopment Comm Henderson Government 2011                        102.07 

Redevelopment Comm Henderson Government 2011                          31.37 

Robinson, Margie Heirs Correct Value 2011                          57.13 

Rogers, Samuel R. Correct Value 2011                            4.09 

Russell, Maple D. Correct Value 2011                          44.04 

NAME
REASON FOR 

RELEASES
TAX YEAR

AMOUNT OF 
RELEASE



 9

Sept 2011 (cont’d) 

   

Salvation Army Correct Value 2011                       542.88 

Salvation Army Correct Value 2011                    3,081.04 

Salvation Army Correct Value 2011                         97.33 

Schuster, Virginia C. Correct Value 2011                       185.76 

Siemens Financial Service Personal Prop Billed 2011                    2,316.08 

Smith, Susie Hicks Correct Value 2011                       153.73 

Stokes, Reba H. 2011                      (146.25)

Stovall, Mary T. Correct Value 2011                       154.84 

Subway of Henderson Correct Value 2011                       614.38 

Subway of Henderson Correct Value 2011                       684.45 

Sumners, Carolyn Bell Correct Value 2011                         43.92 

Thomas, Andrew & Juanita 2011                   (1,184.68)

Thomas, June W. Jr. Correct Value 2011                         57.86 

Thorne Residential Leasing 2011                      (284.23)

Thorpe, Walter Correct Value 2011                         42.98 

Vaughan, Ralph Correct Value 2011                         16.97 

Walker, Edmond D. Jr. Correct Value 2011                         28.94 

Walker, Tami Joy Correct Value 2011                         30.66 

Williams, Allen Correct Value 2011                       101.86 

Williams, Nellie G. Correct Value 2011                           9.35 

Wyatt, Jim K. Jr. Correct Value 2011                         27.02 

Hargrove, Mildred Stevenson Discharged Bank 2001                         73.17 

Hargrove, Mildred Stevenson Discharged Bank 2001                         17.73 

Elliott, Tammy Lee Pro-rate 2010                           0.88 

Gooch, Ernnest Jr. Correct Situs 2010                         14.33 

Gooch, Ernnest Jr. Correct Situs 2010                         28.60 

Johnson, David Correct Situs 2010                         70.14 

Marrow, Charles Zeit Foreclosure 2010                         12.19 

Martin, Joyce Batchelor Pro-rate 2010                           9.39 

Miller, Walter Asbury III Correct Situs 2010                       123.55 

Overby, Jonathan Semaj Pro-rate 2010                           6.90 

Shearin, Melinda McGhee Correct Situs 2010                         15.15 

Thomas, Robert Lewis Correct Situs 2010                         18.78 

Valentine, Doris Ann Pro-rate 2010                           1.17 

Williams, Patricia Small Pro-rate 2010                           4.05 

Alston, Jasmine Christ 2011                         19.13 

Alves, Simon Una Pro-rate 2011                           9.21 

Ellis, Patrick O'Neal Pro-rate 2011                         15.76 

Ellis, Vernell Pro-rate 2011                           6.40 

Jones, Latoria Sharlyn Pro-rate 2011                         41.83 

McQueen, Dottie Patricia Pro-rate 2011                         10.27 

North Henderson Baptist Church Religious 2011                       103.60 

Parham, David Southerland Real Property Billed 2011                         16.14 

PNC Equipment Finance State Assessed 2011                       134.14 

Roberson, William Edward Pro-rate 2011                         27.91 

Taylor, Kym Alise Pro-rate 2011                         13.48 

The Salvation Army Correct Value 2011                         46.56 

The Salvation Army Correct Value 2011                         62.30 

Thomas, Robert Lewis Jr. Correct Situs 2011                           1.76 

Thomas, Robert Lewis Jr. Correct Situs 2011                         17.37 

Thomas, Robert Lewis Jr. Correct Situs 2011                         18.78 

Thomas, Robert Lewis Jr. Correct Situs 2011                         17.14 

Yanez, Jose Cruz Ortiz Pro-rate 2011                         19.13 

                 24,510.61 Total

NAME
REASON FOR 

RELEASES
TAX YEAR

AMOUNT OF 
RELEASE



 10

Sept 2011 (cont’d) 

   
 
Oct 2011 

   
 

Bryant, Devonuee O'Dell Pro-rate 2010                            5.05 

Haskins, Ruby D. Correct Value 2010                          36.61 

Nelson, Bryant Antwon Correct Situs 2010                          25.85 

Nelson, Bryant Antwon Correct Situs 2010                          56.22 

Pharr, Ray Wallace Pro-rate 2010                            3.39 

Stainback, Audrey Singley Correct Situs 2010                          23.98 

Critcher, John Brooks Pro-rate 2011                            9.87 

Enterprise FM Trust Pro-rate 2011                          45.90 

Foushee, Russell Alexander Correct Situs 2011                            1.76 

Mueller, Richard G. Correct Situs 2011                            1.76 

Pace, J. Byron Correct Situs 2011                            1.76 

Rigsbee, Ronald Wayne Correct Situs 2011                            1.76 

Senter, Hubert Harris Jr. Correct Situs 2011                            1.76 

 

Total                       215.67 

NAME
REASON FOR 

REFUND
TAX YEAR

AMOUNT OF 
REFUND

Green, Helen Heirs Foreclosure 2006                       155.17 

Cleaton, Janet R. Foreclosure 2007                       183.55 

Green, Helen Heirs Foreclosure 2007                       155.17 

Cleaton, Janet R. Foreclosure 2008                       223.29 

Green, Helen Heirs Foreclosure 2008                       129.22 

Cleaton, Janet R. Foreclosure 2009                       231.19 

Green, Helen Heirs Foreclosure 2009                       133.79 

Cleaton, Janet R. Foreclosure 2010                       231.19 

Green, Helen Heirs Foreclosure 2010                       133.79 

Butler, Natalie Hope 2011                      (192.31)

Cleaton, Janet R. Foreclosure 2011                       231.17 

Colonial Rentals, LLC 2011                       574.54 

Green, Helen Heirs Foreclosure 2011                       133.75 

Kirby, Thomas D. Pers Property Billed 2011                         12.62 

McDaniel, Shirley J. Correct Value 2011                       545.61 

Moon, Michael J. Correct Value 2011                         42.12 

Norwood, Richard H. Jr. 2011                        (39.05)

Person, Eddie M. 2011                        (29.82)

Pirie, Robert C. Jrr. Pers Property Billed 2011                           9.62 

Prestigious Housing 2011                      (574.54)

Scarboro Enterprises Correct Ownership 2011                         29.83 

Spencer, Wayne G. Correct Value 2011                       409.33 

Terry, Willie Lee 2011                      (146.25)

Vance Co Habitat for Humanity 2011                       192.31 

Brandon, Ricardo Pro-rate 2010                           5.62 

Burt, Ruth Corena Pro-rate 2010                           1.32 

Carrillo, Jorge Aro Pro-rate 2010                         27.40 

Enterprise FM Trust Pro-rate 2010                         10.94 

NAME
REASON FOR 

RELEASES
TAX YEAR

AMOUNT OF 
RELEASE



 11

Oct 2011 (cont’d)           

   

Fritz, Gregory Pro-rate 2010                            2.06 

Hargrove, Willie Gene Pro-rate 2010                            0.44 

Hawkins, Jacquel Taylor Pro-rate 2010                            8.20 

Kemp, Kellie Araadia Pro-rate 2010                          10.00 

Kincaid, Fannie Prewer & Raven Pro-rate 2010                          39.57 

Lewis, Nicholas Roshau Pro-rate 2010                          13.85 

Lilley, Bridget Knight Pro-rate 2010                            3.80 

Lunsford, Herman Gregg Pro-rate 2010                            2.12 

Magbie, Barbara Kingsbury Pro-rate 2010                            4.68 

Schwartzburg, Alfreta Correct Value 2010                          12.55 

Vellejo, Joel Gerardo Pro-rate 2010                            4.31 

West, Carl Leonard Pro-rate 2010                          12.92 

Williams Megan Lavon Pro-rate 2010                            1.84 

Wright, Robert Jamell Pro-rate 2010                            5.13 

Alexander, Barbara Leslie Pro-rate 2011                          28.22 

Alston, Mary Frances Correct Situs 2011                          22.52 

Baines, James Lacurtis Pro-rate 2011                          10.53 

Barton, Tammy Marie Pro-rate 2011                            3.99 

Bridges, Annette Poythress Pro-rate 2011                          11.89 

Brown, Gladys Sneed Pro-rate 2011                            8.31 

Carter, Raymond Fredrick Correct Situs 2011                          31.70 

County of Vance 2011                        114.83 

County of Vance 2011                        114.83 

Dickies Grove Baptist Church Religious 2011                          24.16 

Edwards, Deavro Jr. Transfer Out 2011                          70.49 

Evans, Christine Harris Pro-rate 2011                          81.71 

Foster, Christopher James Correct Situs 2011                          54.58 

Franklin Vance Warren OPP Government 2011                          94.77 

Fruit of the Spirit Correct Situs 2011                            5.56 

Fuller, Beverly Barker Pro-rate 2011                          56.79 

Hanley Particia T & Robert M Non Military SPO 2011                          78.04 

Harris, Waverly Jr. Correct Situs 2011                          18.07 

Johnson, Wilfort Ferrell Correct Situs 2011                            1.76 

Johnson, Wilfort Ferrell Correct Situs 2011                            2.57 

Lowry, Samuel Earl Correct Situs 2011                            1.76 

Maldonado, Maria Ines Pro-rate 2011                          10.04 

Nunnery, Edith Fisher Correct Situs 2011                        153.27 

Olearo, Robert Thomas Pro-rate 2011                            5.17 

Perry, Juwauna Monique Pro-rate 2011                            8.33 

Poplin, Jayne Hayes Correct Situs 2011                        111.21 

Poplin, Michael F. Jayne H. Correct Situs 2011                          30.18 

Powell, Katherine M Pro-rate 2011                          17.90 

Ranes, Elizabeth K. Pro-rate 2011                        100.71 

Sharpe, John Wesley Jr. Transfer Out 2011                          15.50 

Sorrell, Troy Lee Transfer Out 2011                          72.71 

Steagall, Robert Ray Reg Vehicle Billed 2011                          25.84 

Vera, Roman Osorio Pro-rate 2011                            7.62 

Wilkins, Kevin Michael Military Exemption 2011                          24.57 

Wilkins, Kevin Michael Military Exemption 2011                          54.93 

Williams, George Edward Correct Situs 2011                          14.91 

Williams, Henry Pro-rate 2011                          75.24 

Williams, Jaquetta P. Correct Situs 2011                          36.73 

Williams, Paul W Correct Situs 2011                          18.74 

Williams, Sharon Pro-rate 2011                            7.81 

Wright, Gwendolyn G. Pro-rate 2011                            6.93 

                    4,577.46 Total

NAME
REASON FOR 

RELEASES
TAX YEAR

AMOUNT OF 
RELEASE



 12

Oct 2011 (cont’d) 

   
Nov 2011  

   

Spencer, Wayne G. Modify Exemption 2010                        409.26 

Marrow, Kettisha Cheri Pro-rate 2011                            2.63 

Total                       411.89 

NAME
REASON FOR 

REFUND
TAX YEAR

AMOUNT OF 
REFUND

Burton, Willie Heirs Foreclosure 2000                         46.42 

Burton, Willie Heirs Foreclosure 2001                         46.42 

Burton, Willie Heirs Foreclosure 2002                         50.57 

Burton, Willie Heirs Foreclosure 2003                         50.57 

Burton, Willie Heirs Foreclosure 2004                    2,542.36 

Burton, Willie Heirs Foreclosure 2005                         17.82 

Burton, Willie Heirs Foreclosure 2006                         17.82 

Burton, Willie Heirs Foreclosure 2007                         17.82 

Smith, John E. & Mildred Foreclosure 2007                       182.44 

Burton, Willie Heirs Foreclosure 2008                         21.87 

Smith, John E. & Mildred Foreclosure 2008                       181.25 

Burton, Willie Heirs Foreclosure 2009                         22.64 

Smith, John E. & Mildred Foreclosure 2009                       187.67 

Burton, Willie Heirs Foreclosure 2010                         22.64 

Smith, John E. & Mildred Foreclosure 2010                       187.67 

Canon Financial Services Correct Value 2011                         36.34 

F & A Businesses 2011                         68.33 

Perry, Mildred R. 2011                      (146.25)

Poythress, Grace B. Correct Value 2011                       401.88 

Roberson, Theodore M. Personal Prop Billed 2011                         22.50 

Smith, John E. & Mildred Foreclosure 2011                       187.68 

Valdedivar, Ivan Personal Prop Billed 2011                         48.77 

Osborne, Ashley Marie Transfer Out 2007                         59.11 

Baker, Rayshane Lamar Pro-rate 2010                           1.21 

Bryant, Delores Cheek Correct Situs 2010                         42.70 

Bryant, Delores Cheek Correct Situs 2010                         90.26 

Bullock, Yolanda C. Pro-rate 2010                           2.74 

Burton, Pamela Jean Pro-rate 2010                           2.58 

Closs, Kenneth Maurice Pro-rate 2010                           1.71 

Finch, Andrew J. Jr. Pro-rate 2010                           2.61 

Forsythe, Elizabeth D. Pro-rate 2010                         28.73 

Gooch, Ernest Jr. Correct Situs 2010                         32.76 

Jones, Star-shemah S. Pro-rate 2010                           4.47 

Manning, Marcellus D. Correct Situs 2010                         25.15 

Rollinson, Karen Ellis Pro-rate 2010                         42.66 

Townes, Kevin D. Correct Situs 2010                         85.47 

White, Charles Craig Pro-rate 2010                         44.85 

Alston, Calvin Fred Pro-rate 2011                         13.20 

Bates, Gloria Mechelle Pro-rate 2011                         36.75 

Burton, Pamela Jean Pro-rate 2011                           3.72 

Callahan, William M. Correct Situs 2011                         54.34 

Cash, James Jr. Correct Situs 2011                         46.45 

Cash, Janet Hale Correct Situs 2011                         38.61 

Cheek, Earnestine W. Pro-rate 2011                           6.50 

Edwards, Deavrow Jr. Transfer Out 2011                         70.49 

First Baptist Church Religious 2011                       126.15 

First Baptist Church Religious 2011                       117.06 

First Baptist Church Religious 2011                       117.06 

Fuentes, Nelson A. Pro-rate 2011                           4.43 

Gaston Special Police Regular Vehicle Billed 2011                       106.35 

NAME
REASON FOR 

RELEASES
TAX YEAR

AMOUNT OF 
RELEASE



 13

Nov 2011 (cont’d) 

   
 

   
 

Green, Carol Yvette Pro-rate 2011                          38.21 

Gupton, Betty Davis Pro-rate 2011                          10.49 

Hanford, Rayford Ray Correct Situs 2011                          16.84 

Hanks, Sandra Nelson Pro-rate 2011                          32.80 

Harrison, Penelope L. Pro-rate 2011                          12.38 

Hart, Ginealla Lynn Pro-rate 2011                          34.42 

Jenkins, Joseph T. Correct Value 2011                          42.23 

Johnson, Hiram Alvin Jr. Correct Value 2011                          53.35 

Johnson, James Joseph Correct Situs 2011                          27.14 

Johnson, Wilfort F. Correct Situs 2011                            1.76 

Jones, Charlie Louis Pro-rate 2011                          22.96 

Jones, Derrick Lamar Pro-rate 2011                            6.29 

Jones, Star-Shemah S. Pro-rate 2011                            8.32 

Kasey, Teresa Butler Correct Value 2011                            6.70 

Kelly, Alice Wright Pro-rate 2011                          28.46 

Leonard, Catherine M. Pro-rate 2011                          10.03 

Magbie, Georgia Jones Correct Situs 2011                          16.38 

Malone, Margaret H. Pro-rate 2011                            3.18 

Manning, Louise A. Correct Situs 2011                          22.81 

Molina, Mario Alberto Pro-rate 2011                          21.30 

O'Geary, Howell A and Denise B. Correct Value 2011                          42.94 

PNC Equipment Finance State Assessed 2011                        336.43 

Riddle, Tommy Dean & Thomas Lee Pro-rate 2011                          73.14 

Rush, George Blackmore Transfer Out 2011                          62.88 

Speake, George Donald 2011                        177.25 

Speake, George Donald 2011                        177.25 

Starnes, Timothy Ray Correct Situs 2011                          13.94 

Stevenson, Felisia B. Correct Situs 2011                          17.31 

Vaughn, Stephanie C. Correct Situs 2011                          63.59 

Wassum, Douglas E. Pro-rate 2011                            0.88 

Watkins, Frederica L. 2011                        208.61 

West, Michael Wayne Correct Situs 2011                          18.42 

                    7,032.04 Total

NAME
REASON FOR 

RELEASES
TAX YEAR

AMOUNT OF 
RELEASE

Bowes, William Rancher Pro-rate 2010                            5.41 

Faulkner, Melissa D &Alan D. Correct Situs 2010                          74.41 

Kelly, Gregory Wayne Correct Value 2010                            6.29 

White, Ricky Lee Pro-rate 2010                            8.39 

Allgood, Lee Roy Correct Situs 2011                          13.33 

Allgood, Lee Roy Correct Situs 2011                          21.82 

Hargrove, Craig Bernard Pro-rate 2011                            3.32 

Jones, Cassandra Pro-rate 2011                          13.38 

Robertson, Susan L. Pro-rate 2011                          10.94 

Total                       157.29 

NAME
REASON FOR 

REFUND
TAX YEAR

AMOUNT OF 
REFUND



 14

Dec 2011 

   

Cheek, John N. Heirs Foreclosure 2000                          43.90 

Cheek, John N. Heirs Foreclosure 2001                          43.90 

Cheek, John N. Heirs Foreclosure 2002                          47.82 

Cheek, John N. Heirs Foreclosure 2003                          47.82 

Cheek, John N. Heirs Foreclosure 2004                          50.18 

Cheek, John N. Heirs Foreclosure 2005                          52.53 

Cheek, John N. Heirs Foreclosure 2006                          52.53 

Cheek, John N. Heirs Foreclosure 2007                          52.53 

Cheek, John N. Heirs Foreclosure 2008                          44.30 

Cheek, John N. Heirs Foreclosure 2009                          45.86 

Cheek, John N. Heirs Foreclosure 2010                          45.86 

Alston, Donald Personal Prop Billed 2010                          34.78 

Alston, Donald Personal Prop Billed 2011                          34.78 

Caring Hearts Health Correct Value 2011                        140.99 

Cheek, John N. Heirs Foreclosure 2011                          45.89 

Arias, Montes Maria Pro-rate 2010                            5.32 

Carter, Felicia Taylor Pro-rate 2010                            0.77 

Escamilla, Bianca E. Pro-rate 2010                            3.19 

Floyd, Lycia Denea Pro-rate 2010                            1.66 

Gouldman, Gregory D. Correct value 2010                          21.21 

Harris, Cassandra Ann Pro-rate 2010                            4.26 

Maynard, Willie Winston correct situs 2010                        265.06 

Moore, NE Dempsey Jr correct situs 2010                          16.26 

Orr, Harry Lane Pro-rate 2010                            1.66 

Richardson, J'Maine Pro-rate 2010                            3.86 

Addington, Ramona O. Pro-rate 2011                            7.68 

Baskerville, Patricia Correct Situs 2011                          58.85 

Baskerville, Patricia Correct Situs 2011                          56.45 

Bullock, John Earl Pro-rate 2011                            3.26 

Bullock, Shariah Perry Pro-rate 2011                            4.35 

Carrillo, Jorge Aro Correct Value 2011                          87.31 

Carter, Natalie & Ophelia Correct Situs 2011                        123.72 

Carter, Natalie Correct Situs 2011                          42.47 

Carter, Ophelia C. Correct Situs 2011                          12.93 

Carter, Ophelia C. Correct Situs 2011                          16.96 

Carter, Richard Henry Correct Situs 2011                          45.22 

Compton Dynamics Inc. Pro-rate 2011                          41.19 

Egerton, Ella Matilda Correct Situs 2011                          20.94 

Gregory, Derrick T. Correct Value 2011                            2.14 

Gupton, William G. Pro-rate 2011                          16.41 

Hartscok, Tennille B. Pro-rate 2011                          10.36 

Hester, Connie King Pro-rate 2011                          35.60 

Holden, Toki Taylor Pro-rate 2011                            8.07 

Lotz, Joyce Louise Pro-rate 2011                            4.31 

Lourenco, Mandel Luiz Pro-rate 2011                            5.94 

Marrow, Chiquita M. Pro-rate 2011                          19.99 

Marrow, Chiquita M. Pro-rate 2011                          24.56 

Marsalone, Paul Thomas Pro-rate 2011                          19.27 

Martinez, Jose Andres Pro-rate 2011                          16.10 

McCullough, James R. Pro-rate 2011                            5.83 

NAME
REASON FOR 

RELEASES
TAX YEAR

AMOUNT OF 
RELEASE



 15

Dec 2011 (cont’d) 

   
 

   
 
Jan 2012 

   

Montague, Debra H. Pro-rate 2011                           7.02 

Moore, NE Dempsey Jr. Correct Situs 2011                         13.51 

Moticka, Betty Correct Value 2011                         12.25 

Pettaway, Bryan O'Neal Military Exemption 2011                       146.83 

Roberson, Donald Ray Jr. Pro-rate 2011                         77.22 

Roberson, Michael T. Pro-rate 2011                         44.57 

Roberson, Michael T. Pro-rate 2011                       171.69 

Vellejo, Joel Gerardo Pro-rate 2011                           9.39 

Welch, Jesse Dywane Pro-rate 2011                           9.39 

Williams, Margaret M. Correct Situs 2011                         55.16 

Wilson, Dale Elliott Correct Value 2011                           7.90 

                   2,351.76 Total

NAME
REASON FOR 

RELEASES
TAX YEAR

AMOUNT OF 
RELEASE

Colbert, Donald Alvin Pro-rate 2011                         12.15 

Total                         12.15 

NAME
REASON FOR 

REFUND
TAX YEAR

AMOUNT OF 
REFUND

Woods, Marcella Personal Prop Billed 2010                         34.78 

Copley, Karen Correct Value 2011                           2.25 

Falkner, John Henry II Correct Value 2011                         84.58 

Fresh Anointed Tabernacle Religious 2011                         20.48 

Fresh Anointed Tabernacle Religious 2011                    1,283.26 

Houston, Christopher M.  2011                          (7.82)

Roberson, Linda C. & Donald R. Personal Prop Billed 2011                           5.85 

Simmons, Jeffrey D. Personal Prop Billed 2011                           9.56 

Terry, Cherry M. 2011                      (146.25)

Unknown Unknown Owner 2011                           2.93 

Unknown Unknown Owner 2011                           5.08 

Unknown Unknown Owner 2011                           4.68 

Woods, Marcella Personal Prop Billed 2011                         34.78 

Balthrope, George W. Pro-rate 2010                           6.70 

Billinger, Curtis L. Pro-rate 2010                           0.59 

Aaron's Inc. Pro-rate 2011                         35.36 

Aaron's Inc. Pro-rate 2011                         55.59 

Baines, James Lacurtis Correct Situs 2011                         20.59 

Balthrope, George W. Pro-rate 2011                           2.44 

Byczynski, Leonard. L. Pro-rate 2011                         38.39 

Clayton Farms Correct Situs 2011                         13.10 

Collier, Michael J. Correct Situs 2011                         14.56 

Collins, Marie Antonia Transfer Out 2011                         37.34 

Davis, Melvin Jr. Pro-rate 2011                           2.53 

Davis, Michelle Jones Pro-rate 2011                         21.88 

F & N Enterprises, Inc. Correct Value 2011                           5.25 

NAME
REASON FOR 

RELEASES
TAX YEAR

AMOUNT OF 
RELEASE



 16

Jan 2012 (cont’d) 

   
 

   

Gregorio, Octavio G. Pro-rate 2011                          17.36 

Gupton, Harriet J. Correct Situs 2011                          48.96 

Harris, Johanna A. Pro-rate 2011                            2.40 

Harris, Peggy Ann Pro-rate 2011                            2.96 

Henderson, Helen W. Pro-rate 2011                            6.92 

Hughes, Mickey Mantle Pro-rate 2011                            6.60 

Martinez, Jose Andres Pro-rate 2011                          64.93 

Matthews, William John Correct Situs 2011                          10.00 

Medlin, Larry Carl Pro-rate 2011                            9.04 

Moon, Andrea Saunders Pro-rate 2011                          49.10 

Moreno, Domingo D. Pro-rate 2011                          23.40 

Olearo, Christopher R. Correct Situs 2011                        111.32 

Perry, James Otis Pro-rate 2011                            4.27 

Perry, James Otis Pro-rate 2011                          14.96 

Roberts, Dannie Thomas Pro-rate 2011                          10.53 

Rodriquez, Stacia R. Pro-rate 2011                            1.61 

Royster, Shajuan P. Pro-rate 2011                          12.14 

Shabazz, Naomie Jones Pro-rate 2011                            4.18 

Shukair, Rand Adnan Pro-rate                          34.95 

Stanley, Linda P. Pro-rate 2011                          23.45 

Terry, Raymond Thomas Jr. Reg Vehice Billed 2011                        168.48 

Thomas, Robert Lewis Correct Situs 2011                          10.00 

Thomas, Robert Lewis Correct Situs 2011                            1.76 

Thomas, Robert Lewis Correct Situs 2011                          10.00 

Thomas, Robert Lewis Correct Situs 2011                          10.00 

United Telephone State Assessed 2011                          76.30 

Woodard, Betty Tucker Correct Situs 2011                          60.13 

Wright, William Asa Jr. Pro-rate 2011                            8.07 

Wynn, Brandy Denise Pro-rate 2011                          10.67 

Zuniga, Dagoberto Rosa Correct Situs 2011                          10.00 

                    2,412.97 Total

NAME
REASON FOR 

RELEASES
TAX YEAR

AMOUNT OF 
RELEASE

Breedlove, Ione Powell  Pro-rate 2011                           6.98 

Gregorio, Octavio G. Pro-rate 2011                           0.74 

Henderson, Johnnie Pro-rate 2011                           3.97 

Root, Larry Marvin Pro-rate 2011                           6.43 

Soliman, Essam Safwat Pro-rate 2011                           2.38 

Sweeney, Sharon Gay Pro-rate 2011                           3.37 

Yancey, Vivian Cox Pro-rate 2011                           3.94 

Total                         27.81 

NAME
REASON FOR 

REFUND
TAX YEAR

AMOUNT OF 
REFUND



 1

 
 
 
 
 
 

______________________________________ 
11 June 2012 

 
TO: The Honorable Mayor James D O’Geary and Members of City Council 
 
FR: A. Ray Griffin, Jr., City Manager 
 
RE: CAF:  12—65    

Consideration of Approval of Resolution 12—45, Issuing Sewer Credit for Outside 
Watering of Lawns, Plants and Vegetation from June 1, 2012 through October 31, 2012 

 
Ladies and Gentlemen: 
 
 
Recommendation: 
 
 Approve Resolution 12—45 Issuing Sewer Credit for Outside Watering of Grass, Plants and 

Vegetation from June 1, 2012 through October 31, 2012. 
 
 
Executive Summary 
 
For the past several years the City Council has authorized the issuance of sewer credits due to 
outside watering of grass, plants, and vegetation.   
 
The City Council has offered this credit in an effort to reduce the cost to the customer for such 
watering.  If this policy is adopted, the City Council does have the discretion to discontinue it 
prior to October if it is not in the City’s best interest due to drought and/or implementation of 
water conservation measures. 
 
 
Enclosures  
 

1. Resolution 12—45 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

City Council Action Form 
Office of City Manager 

P. O. Box 1434 
Henderson, NC  27536 

252.430.5701 

 
Agenda Item: _____________ 
 
Council Meeting:  11 June 12 Reg Meeting 
 



 2

R E S O L U T I O N 
12—45  

 
A RESOLUTION PROVIDING FOR THE ISSUING OF A SEWER CREDIT FOR 

OUTSIDE WATERING OF GRASS, PLANTS AND VEGETATION 
 
 
WHEREAS, the City of Henderson has provided for a sewer credit to its customers for the 

period of June, July and August provided certain conditions are met via adopting a 
“Sewer Credit Due to Outside Watering of Grass, Plants and Vegetation” on 9 June 2008; 
the details of the policy are more fully articulated in Attachment A to this Resolution, 
and 

 
WHEREAS, in the past this credit has been extended to include the months of September and 

October, and 
 
NOW, THERFORE BE IT RESOLVED BY THE HENDERSON CITY COUNCIL THAT IT 

DOES HEREBY APPROVE the Amended Policy for Sewer Credit Due to Outside 
Watering of Grass, Plants and Vegetation Policy to include the months of June, July, 
August, September and October. 

 
The foregoing Resolution 12—45 upon motion of Council Member ** and second by Council 
Member **, and having been submitted to a roll call vote received the following votes and was 
***** on this the *** day of **** 2011:  YES:   .  NO:   .       ABSTAIN:   .          ABSENT:   . 
 
 

_____________________________ 
James D. O’Geary, Mayor 

ATTEST: 
 
_______________________________ 
Esther J. McCrackin, City Clerk 
 
Approved to Legal Form: 
 
________________________________ 
John H. Zollicoffer, Jr., City Attorney 
 
Reference:  Minute Book 42, pp. **. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 3

          Resolution 12—45 
          Attachment A 
 

Sewer Credit Due to Outside Watering of  
Grass, Plants and Vegetation Policy 

 
Qualifications 
 

1.  A customer of whose monthly water and sewer consumption in question is equal to or 
greater than 1.5 times the average water and sewer consumption of the preceding twelve months 
may request an adjustment.  Where a customer has not been on the City’s system for a full 
twelve months, the average shall be computed using the total number of months on the system; 
but, in no case shall a customer who has not been on the system for at least six months be 
eligible for an adjustment. 

 
2.  The general time frame for these credits can be for the June billing until the October 

billing for that residence; however the City Council shall set the time frame each year prior to 
this period and can be for less than or more than the stated June – October period if 
circumstances due to water restrictions or any other unforeseen emergency situations that are 
occurring during these months and/or is not to the City’s best interest to allow these adjustments.  
The City Council also has the discretion to discontinue these “watering credits for sewer” at any 
time. 

 
3.  After City Council approval, the Finance Director or designee shall be authorized to 

adjust the customer’s monthly sewer bill as follows: 
 

a. The customer’s average monthly water and sewer consumption for the 
preceding twelve months shall be established and 1.5 times that average 
should be used to determine the average monthly cost of service using current 
sewer rates. 

b. This average monthly cost of sewer shall then be subtracted from the monthly 
sewer charge in question. 

c. The Director of Finance (or her designee) shall be authorized to reduce the 
customer’s monthly sewer charge in question by a maximum of seventy-five 
(75) percent for the difference between the twelve (12) months average sewer 
charge and the monthly sewer charge in question. 

d. The customer must request this adjustment in writing and affirm he/she has 
been irrigating grass, plants and vegetation from the collections office after 
receiving the bill in question but in no case shall be issued a credit for more 
than the previous two months after failing to request the adjustment in the first 
month.  Failure to request this adjustment after the two months period shall 
result in no adjustment. 

e. This policy shall not apply for individuals that use water to fill swimming 
pools. 

f. This policy shall be effective for the June – October 2012 period.  



Page 1 of 18 
 

 
 
 
 
 

 
_____________________________________ 

4 June 2012 
 

TO: The Honorable Mayor James D. O’Geary and Members of City Council 
FR: A. Ray Griffin, Jr., City Manager 
RE: CAF: 12-71 

Consideration of Approval of Ordinance 12-40, FY 12 Budget Amendment #50, Amending 
the 2010 BJA JAG Grant Fund Providing the Necessary Funds to Cover the Expense of 
Four Mobile Data Terminal Computers and Docking Stations. 

 
Ladies and Gentlemen: 
 
Council Retreat Goals Addressed By This Item:   
 
 KSO 8:  Provide Financial Resourcing:  To provide sufficient funds for municipal operations and 

capital outlay necessary to meet the needs of citizens, customers and mandates of regulatory 
authorities. 

 
Recommendation:   
 
 Approval of Ordinance 12-40, FY 12 Budget Amendment #50, Amending the 2010 BJA JAG Grant 

Fund Providing the Necessary Funds to Cover the Expense of Four Mobile Data Terminal Computers 
and Docking Stations. 

 
Executive Summary: 
 
The City Council approved the acceptance of the 2010 BJA JAG Grant on 13 September 2010 via 
Resolution 10-90. The Police Department indicated at that time that these Funds would be used to 
purchase a “Ground Hog” Video Surveillance System, a “Graffiti Cam” Video System, and replace four 
(4) of the Mobile Data Terminal (MDT) computers for Police Patrol Vehicles. 
 
The cost of the four (4) mobile data terminal units from Dell has been quoted at $9,064.76.  The most 
recent trial balance report shows a balance of $8,201.00.  This leaves a shortage of $863.76, which is 
attributed to the fact that the surveillance camera system, purchased in 2011, cost slightly more than 
anticipated.  
 
The approval of Ordinance 12-40, Budget Amendment #50 would allow the purchase of these four (4) 
MDT units. 
  
Enclosure: 
 

1. Ordinance 12-40 
2. Resolution 10-90 

City Council Action Form 
Office of City Manager 

P. O. Box 1434 
Henderson, NC  27536 

252.430.5701 

    
 
 
 
Agenda Item: _____________ 
 
Council Meeting: 11 June 12 Regular Meeting 



Page 2 of 18 
 

O R D I N A N C E  12—40 
 
Council Member **  introduced the following Ordinance that was seconded by Council Member 
** and read: 

AN AMENDMENT TO THE FY 2011 - 2012 BUDGET and the 2010 BJA GRANT  
BUDGET AMENDMENT #50 

 
WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Henderson, on 13 June 2011, adopted the FY 11-12 

Municipal Operating and Capital Budget; and 
 
WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Henderson, on 13 September 2010, adopted the 

2010 BJA Grant; and 
 
WHEREAS, it is necessary to amend the various revenue and expense accounts of the annual 

budget and Grant budgets from time-to-time, and the reason for FY 11-12 Budget 
Amendment #50 is described in the Notes box of the Ordinance. 

 
NOW THEREFORE BE IT ORDAINED by the City Council of The City of Henderson, that 

the following Budget Ordinance Amendment be approved and said Ordinance shall be 
effective immediately upon approval of the City Council: 



Page 3 of 18 
 

 

Approved Current
Department Line Item Code 1-Jul-11 Budget Amendment Revised

-$             -$               -$                           
-$             -$               -$                -$                           
-$             -$               -$                -$                           
-$             -$               -$                -$                           
-$             -$               -$                -$                           

Total -$             -$               -$                -$                           
-$                           

Approved Current
Department Line Item Code 1-Jul-11 Budget Amendment Revised

Asset Forfeitures Transfer to 2010 BJA Grant 10-512-561065 -$             -$               900.00$          900.00$                      
Asset Forfeitures Discretionary Funds 10-512-509903 100,000.00$  72,725.25$     (900.00)$         71,825.25$                  
   -$             -$               -$                -$                           
   -$             -$               -$                -$                           

-$             -$               -$                -$                           
-$             -$               -$                -$                           

Total 100,000.00$  72,725.25$     -$                72,725.25$                  
72,725.25$                  

Variance -$               

Approved Current
Department Line Item Code 13-Sep-10 Budget Amendment Revised

Transfer from General Fund 65-510-461010 -$             -$               900.00$          900.00$                      
-$             -$               -$                -$                           
-$             -$               -$                -$                           
-$             -$               -$                -$                           
-$             -$               -$                -$                           

Total -$             -$               900.00$          900.00$                      
900.00$                      

Approved Current
Department Line Item Code 13-Sep-10 Budget Amendment Revised

 Capital Outlay < $5,000 65-510-507400 11,930.00$    8,226.00$       875.00$          9,101.00$                   
 Capital Outlay > $5,000 65-510-507405 12,285.00$    15,989.00$     25.00$            16,014.00$                  

-$             -$               -$                -$                           
-$             -$               -$                -$                           
-$             -$               -$                -$                           
-$             -$               -$                -$                           

Total 24,215.00$    24,215.00$     900.00$          25,115.00$                  
25,115.00$                  

Variance -$               

10: General Fund and 65: 2010 BJA Grant

65: 2010 BJA GRANT FUND REVENUES

Ordinance 12-40; 11 June 12 Council Meeting Notes: To transfer funds from the Federal Asset Forfeitures account to cover the remaining 
cost of four (4) mobile data terminal (MDT) units being purchased from the 2010 BJA Grant 
Fund.  A shortfall in the Grant Budget resulted from the cost of the surveillance camera 
system purchased in 2011 being over budget. 

Ordinance 12-40
FY 11-12 Budget Amendment #50

10: GENERAL FUND REVENUES

FUNDS:

10: GENERAL FUND EXPENDITURES

65: 2010 BJA GRANT FUND EXPENDITURES

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Page 4 of 18 
 

The foregoing Ordinance 12-40, upon motion of Council Member ** and second by Council 
Member ***, and having been submitted to a roll call vote and received the following votes and 
was *** on this the 11 day of June 2012:  YES: ***.  NO:  **.   ABSTAIN:  **.   ABSENT:  **.             
 

___________________________________ 
James D. O’Geary, Mayor 

 
ATTEST: 
 
_______________________________ 
Esther J. McCrackin, City Clerk 
 
Reference:  Minute Book 42 p. *** 
 
____________ 
 
STATE OF NORTH CAROLINA 
CITY OF HENDERSON 
 
I, Esther J. McCrackin, the duly appointed, qualified City Clerk of the City of Henderson, do 
hereby certify the attached is a true and exact copy of Ordinance 12—40 adopted by the 
Henderson, City Council in Regular Session on ** *** 2012 (Minute Book 42 p.**). This 
Ordinance is recorded in Ordinance Book 8, p. ***. 
 
Witness my hand and corporate seal of the City, this *** day of June 2012. 
 
_________________________ 
Esther J. McCrackin 
City Clerk 
City of Henderson, North Carolina 
 
 
 
 
 
Reviewed by:  _______________________________ Date:  _______________________ 
                         Katherine C. Brafford, Finance Director 
 
 
Reviewed by:  _______________________________ Date: _______________________ 
  A. Ray Griffin, Jr., City Manager 



Page 5 of 18 
 

R E S O L U T I O N   10—90 
 
 

A RESOLUTION ACCEPTING 
THE 2010 BJA JUSTICE ASSISTANCE GRANT 

FOR 
THE CITY OF HENDERSON POLICE DEPARTMENT 

AND 
THE COUNTY OF VANCE SHERIFF DEPARTMENT 

 
 
WHEREAS, the Henderson City Council (Council) identified eight Key Strategic Objectives 

(KSO) at its 2010 Strategic Planning Retreat; and 
 
WHEREAS, two of the Key Strategic Objectives are addressed by this request as follows: KSO 2: 

Reduce Crime:  To Reduce Crime and Provide for a Safe Community; and KSO 8:  To Provide 
Sufficient Funds for Municipal Operations and Capital Outlay Necessary to Meet the Needs of 
Citizens, Customers and Mandates of Regulatory Authorities.  

 
WHEREAS, the Council authorized the submission of a grant application for 2010 BJA funding 

that would be shared between the City of Henderson and the County of Vance via 
Resolution 10-48 at the Council’s 24 May 2010 meeting, said grant application being in 
the amount of $35,833, with $11,618 being designated for the Vance County Sheriff’s 
Department and $24,215 being designated for the City’s Police Department; and 

 
WHEREAS, the City has received notice of grant award in the amount of $35,833, said grant 

funds to be distributed to the City’s Police Department and the County’s Sheriff 
Department as noted in the preceding paragraph and it is now appropriate to accept the 
grant. 

 
 NOW, THERFORE BE IT RESOLVED BY THE HENDERSON CITY COUNCIL THAT it 

does hereby accept the 2010 BJA Grant in the amount of $35,833, and said funds to be 
disbursed in accordance with grant requirements to the Henderson Police Department in 
the amount of $24,215 and the Vance County Sheriff Department in the amount of 
$11,618, and 

 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED THAT the City Manager is authorized to sign all documents 

necessary to accept and execute grant with the US Department of Justice, said grant 
agreement being more fully articulated in Attachment A of this Resolution. 

 



Page 6 of 18 
 

The foregoing Resolution 10-90 was presented for consideration on 13 September 2010, and 
upon a motion by Council Member Peace-Jenkins and seconded by Council Member Coffey was 
APPROVED by the following vote:  YES:  Daeke, Davis, Daye, Evans, Coffey, Rainey and 
Peace-Jenkins.  NO: None. ABSTAIN:  None.   ABSENT:  Inscoe.      
 
 

 ______________________________ 
James D. O’Geary, Mayor 

 
 
ATTEST: 
        
________________________________ 
A. Ray Griffin, Jr., Interim City Clerk 
 
 
Approved as to Legal Form: 
 
______________________________ 
John H. Zollicoffer, Jr., City Attorney 
 
Reference:  Minute Book 41, p. 648. 

 



Page 7 of 18 
 

 



Page 8 of 18 
 

 



Page 9 of 18 
 

 



Page 10 of 18 
 

 



Page 11 of 18 
 

 



Page 12 of 18 
 

 



Page 13 of 18 
 

 



Page 14 of 18 
 

 



Page 15 of 18 
 

 



Page 16 of 18 
 

 



Page 17 of 18 
 

 



Page 18 of 18 
 

 



  

                   

                Last Updated: 6/8/2012 2:59 PM 

Date Time Event Location 

June 
12th 

3:00 PM Henderson Appearance Committee City Council Chambers 

June 12th 6:00 PM 
City Council Budget Work Session #10 

(If Needed) 
City Council Chambers 

June 14th 12:00 PM 
Henderson Vance Parks & Recreation 

Commission 
Aycock Recreation Center 

June 14th  6:00 PM 
City Council Budget Work Session #11 

(If Needed) 
City Council Chambers 

June 21st 7:00 PM Human Relations Commission City Council Chambers 

June 25th 6:00 PM 
City Council Meeting 

Work Session to Follow 
City Council Chambers 

July 2nd 3:30 PM Henderson Planning Board City Council Chambers 

July 3rd 3:30 PM 
Henderson Zoning  

Board of Adjustment 
City Council Chambers 

July 4th 
 

City Hall Closed 
Independence Day 

    Happy July 4TH       

 

July 7th 5:00 PM Library Board of Trustees 
H. Leslie Perry Memorial  

Library Board Room 

July 9th 6:00 PM Regular City Council Meeting City  Council Chambers 

July 10th 3:00 PM Henderson Appearance Committee City Council Chambers 

July 12th 12:00 PM Henderson-Vance Parks & Recreation 
Commission 

Aycock Recreation Center 

July 19th 7:00 PM Human Relations Commission City Council Chambers 

July 23rd 6:00 PM 
City Council Meeting 

Work Session to Follow 
City Council Chambers 

July 27th 10:00 AM Henderson-Vance E911  
Advisory Board Meeting 

E911 Operation Center 

Aug 1st 8:00 AM Clean Up Henderson City Operations Center 

Aug 6th  3:30 PM Henderson Planning Board City Council Chambers 

Aug 7th 3:30 PM Henderson Zoning  
Board of Adjustments 

City Council Chambers 

Aug 9th 12:00 PM 
Henderson-Vance Parks & Recreation 

Commission 
Aycock Recreation Center 

Aug 13th 6:00 PM City Council Regular Meeting City Council Chambers 

Aug 14th 3:00 PM Henderson Appearance Committee City Council Chambers 

Aug 16th 7:00 PM Human Relations Commission City Council Chambers 

Meetings and Events Calendar 
































































	#16 RM 11 June 2012
	#15 14 May 12 reg meeting
	Budget Meeting #1
	Budget Meeting #2
	Budget Meeting #3
	CAF 12-A-62 Approval of FY13 Budget
	CAF 12-A-09  Ord 12-A-06-wind turbines and Ord 12-B-06 solar farms
	CAF 12-46 Economic Development fund and incentives
	CAF 12-69 providing funds to RW for restocking parts O 12-38 BA # 48
	CAF 12-64  2012 Municipal Election Results Acceptance
	CAF 12-67 BJA Bulletproof vest grant
	CAF 12-72 Ratify BJA-2012 Grant Application CRI activities
	CAF 12-16 2010 Weed & Seed grant close out
	CAF 12-70 Reimbursement from Vance County
	CAF 12-11 closeout of HOPE VI Phase I
	CAF 12-68 Tax releases-refunds July 2011 - January 2012
	CAF 12-65- R 12-45  sewer Credits for Watering Lawns  Gardens 2012
	CAF 12-71 2012 BJA JAG  Grant Interfund transfer O 12-40
	REFERENCE Meetings and Event
	May 2012 HFD Report
	#5 May 2012 Report
	May 2012 Report

